[HE CITY of

U

Audit Committee

Notice is hereby given pursuant to the
provisions of the Local Government Act,
1999, that the next Meeting of the
Confidential Audit Committee will be held
in the Council Chambers, 181 Unley Road
Unley on

Monday 11 November 2019 6.30

for the purpose of considering the items
included on the Agenda.

Chief Executive Officer






MEMBERS

Independent Member D Powell (Presiding Member)
Councillor K. Anastassiadis

Councillor M. Broniecki

Independent Member N Handley

Independent Member A Martin

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to acknowledge this land that we meet on today is the traditional
lands for the Kaurna people and that we respect their spiritual relationship with
their country.

We also acknowledge the Kaurna people as the custodians of the Adelaide region

and that their cultural and heritage beliefs are still as important to the living Kaurna
people today.
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ORDER OF BUSINESS

ITEM

PAGE NO

1. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS

1.1 APOLOGIES
Nil

1.2 LEAVE OF ABSENCE
Nil

1.3 CONFLICT OF INTEREST
Members to advise if they have any material, actual or perceived
conflict of interest in any Items in this Agenda and a Conflict of
Interest Disclosure Form (attached) is to be submitted.

1.4 MINUTES
1.4.1 Minutes of the Audit Committee Meeting held Tuesday, 2

July 2019

1.5 DEFERRED / ADJOURNED ITEMS

Nil
2. REPORTS

2.1 Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy Review

2.2 Revised Risk Management Policy

2.3 2018-2019 General Purpose Financial Statements

2.4  Procurement Savings ldentified

3. OTHER BUSINESS

NEXT MEETING

Tuesday 10 December 2019 - 6.30pm

Council Chambers, 181 Unley Road Unley
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DECISION REPORT

REPORT TITLE:

ITEM NUMBER:

DATE OF MEETING:

AUTHOR:
JOB TITLE:
ATTACHMENTS:

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION PREVENTION
POLICY REVIEW

2.1

11 NOVEMBER 2019

LIDA CATALDI

PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT OFFICER

1.  FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
PREVENTION POLICY - CURRENT -
2017

2.  FRAUD AND CORRUPTION
PREVENTION POLICY - PROPOSED -
2019

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to present the revised Fraud and Corruption
Prevention Policy for recommendation to Council for endorsement.

Council is required to review all policies within 12 months of an election.
Policies should be reviewed on a regular basis to ensure they remain
current and reflect any changes to legislative or industry

guidelines/requirements.

Changes made to this Policy have been based on a review of the Local
Government Association’s Model Fraud, Corruption, Misconduct and
Maladminitration Policy, which was circulated to Councils in September
2019. The primary changes proposed are the inclusion of a Roles and
Responsibilities table and reference to the requirements of the Public
Interest Disclosure Act 2018.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

2. The Fraud and Prevention Prevention Policy as set out in Attachment
2 to this report (Item 2.1, Audit Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be

endorsed.
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RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES/POLICIES

4. Civic Leadership
4.1 We have strong leadership and governance.
4.3 Our business systems are effective and transparent

BACKGROUND

The Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy enables Public Officers to be
informed of the requirements and responsibitlies in relation to Fraud and
Corruption, Misconduct and Maladministration. The Policy also outlines
the process for reporting a reasonable suspicion in relation to fraud and
corruption and how this will be investigated.

The Policy communicates to the Council Members, Council Employees,
Volunteers and Contractors that Council will not tolerate fradualent or
corrupt behaviour or activity.

DISCUSSION

The review of this Policy identified two main areas that needed to be
updated;

- inclusion of requirements under the Public Interest Disclosure Act
2018, and

- clearer definition of ‘roles and responsibilities’ of Council Members,
Chief Executive Officer, Council Employees and the Audit Committee.

A new policy template has been adopted for all Council Policies and the
Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy has been transferred to the new
policy template. This has resulted in relocation of text within the Policy,
and as such, the use of revision marks to track changes was not
conducive to ensuring the document was easy to read. Consequently, a
copy of the current Policy is provided as Attachment 1 and the proposed
revised Policy is provided as Attachment 2.

Attachment 1

Attachment 2

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

Option 1 —
1. The Report be received.

2. The Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy as set out in Attachment 2
to this report (Item 2.1, Audit Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be
endorsed
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The current Policy requires revision to align with best practice and include
the requirements under the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2018. This
Option allows for the revised version of the Fraud and Corruption Prevent
Policy to be endorsed and implemented.

Option 2 —

1. The Report be received.

2. Subject to the amendments set out below, the Fraud and Corruption
Prevention Policy as set out in Attachment 2 to this report (Item 2.1,
Audit Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be adopted:

2.1 insert amendments required

The Committee may wish to request amendments to the Policy and
include these in the recommendation to Council for endorsement. If this is
the case, the amendments should be articulated as part of the resolution.
This Option provides the relevant wording to enable the Committee to
articulate any changes required to the policy, and to recommend these be
incorporated by Council at the time it adopts the revised Fraud and
Corruption Prevention Policy.

Option 3 —

1. The Report be received.

2. The Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy as set out in Attachment
2 to this report (Item 2.1, Audit Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be
further amended and returned to the Audit Committee for review, prior
to presentation to Council for endorsement.

The Committee may consider that further work is required to the
documents prior to them being endorsed by Council. This Option
requests further development of the documents and that they be returned
to the Audit Committee for recommendation to Council.

RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 is the recommended option.

REPORT AUTHORISERS
Name Title
Tami Norman Executive Manager, Office of the CEO
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Current - 2017

THE CITY of

(9

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION PREVENTION POLICY

' Policy Type:
' Responsible Department:
Responsible Officer:

Related Policies and Procedures

- Date Adopted
Last review date
: Next review date:

' ECM Doc set 1.D.

1. POLICY STATEMENT

Council Policy

Office of the Chief Executive Officer

Group Manager Governance & Risk

¢ Whistleblowers' Protection Policy

+ Risk Management Policy and Framework
¢ Internal Control Procedures

e Code of Conduct for Council Employees
e Code of Conduct for Council Members

e Council Members Allowances and Benefits Policy

e Fraud and Corruption Prevention Reporting
Procedure

| C1072, 11/03/2014
C887, 26 June 2017

June 2020

2192544

The City of Unley ("the Council") is committed to acting in the best interest of the
community and to upholding the principles of honesty, collaboration, integrity and
transparency, which are all key components of good governance.

The Council recognises that Fraud and Corruption in Public Administration have the
potential to cause significant financial and reputational harm and that therefore, the
prevention and control of Fraud and Corruption should feature predominantly within the
systems and procedures of a responsible Council.

2. COMMUNITY GOAL

05.3 Good governance & legislative framework

3. PRINCIPLES

This Policy is intended to complement and be implemented in conjunction with other

Council policies, including:

. Whistleblowers’ Protection Policy

Fraud and cormuption prevention policy
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Current - 2017

Risk Management Policy and Framework
Internal Control Procedures

Code of Conduct for Council Employees
Code of Conduct for Council Members, and

Elected Members Allowances and Benefits Policy.

This Policy applies to all disclosures that relate to the actual or suspected occurrence
of Fraud and/or Corruption within the Council.

4. POLICY OBJECTIVES

This Policy is designed to protect public funds and assets and the integrity, security and
reputation of the Council.

This Policy outlines the Council's approach to the prevention or minimisation,
identification and control of fraudulent and/or corrupt activity and, summarises the
associated responsibilities of Council Members and Council Employees.

The Council will not tolerate fraudulent or corrupt activity and is committed to its control
and prevention by:

complying with the requirements of the Independent Commissioner Against
Corruption Act 2012 (ICAC Act)

establishing and maintaining an effective system of internal controls and
enforcing compliance with those controls

regularly undertaking risk assessments to identify circumstances in which Fraud
and Corruption could potentially occur

implementing Fraud and Corruption prevention and mitigation strategies in its day
to day operations

taking appropriate action in response to allegations of fraudulent and/or corrupt
activity including:
(i) reporting allegations in accordance with the ICAC Act and the reporting

system established by the Independent Commissioner Against Corruption
(ICAC) under section 20 of the ICAC Act, and

(i) where allegations are substantiated, in addition to applicable criminal
sanctions, disciplinary action may be taken in accordance with the Codes
of Conduct for Council Members and Council Employees or, if relevant, a
Council Employee's contract of employment with the Council

ensuring all Council Employees and Council Members are aware of their
obligations in regards to the prevention of Fraud and Corruption within the
Council and the inclusion of preliminary education in any induction process

active participation in education and evaluation of practices relevant to Fraud and
Corruption.

fostering an ethical environment in which dishonest and fraudulent behaviour is
actively discouraged, and

generating community awareness of the Council's commitment to the prevention
of Fraud and Corruption.

Fraud and corruption prevention policy Page 2 of 7
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Current - 2017

5. PREVENTION

The Council recognises that:

the occurrence of Fraud and Corruption will prevail in an administrative
environment where opportunities exist for waste, abuse and maladministration,
and

the most effective way to prevent the occurrence of Fraud and Corruption is to
promote an ethical environment in which internal control mechanisms have been
implemented.

In general, the Council expects that Public Officers will assist in preventing Fraud and
Corruption within the Council by:

understanding the responsibilities of their position

familiarising themselves with the Council's policies and procedures and adhering
to them

understanding what behaviour constitutes fraudulent and/or corrupt conduct

maintaining an awareness of the strategies that have been implemented by the
Council to minimise Fraud and Corruption

being continuously vigilant to the potential for Fraud and/or Corruption to occur,
and

reporting suspected or actual occurrences of Fraud or Corruption in accordance
with the Fraud and Corruption Prevention Reporting Procedure.

Specific Responsibilities

Collectively, as the decision making body of the Council, Council Members are
responsible for ensuring that the Council:

promotes community awareness of the Council's commitment to the prevention of
Fraud and Corruption

provides adequate security for the prevention of Fraud and Corruption. This
includes the provision of secure facilities for storage of assets and data, and
procedures to deter fraudulent or corrupt activity from occurring

provides mechanisms for receiving allegations of Fraud or Corruption, including
by ensuring a Responsible Officer is appointed

ensures that, where appropriate, proper investigations are conducted into
allegations that involve Fraud or Corruption

makes reports and facilitates cooperation with any investigation undertaken by an
external authority (such as SAPOL or the Commissioner)

ensures that all Employees are aware of their responsibilities in relation to Fraud
and Corruption through the provision of appropriate and regular training

promotes a culture and environment in which Fraud and Corruption is actively
discouraged and is readily reported should it occur, and

undertakes a Fraud and Corruption risk assessment on a regular basis.

Managers are responsible for:

the conduct of any Employees whom they supervise and, will be held
accountable for such

any property under their control and, will be held accountable for such

Fraud and corruption prevention policy Page 3 of 7
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Current - 2017

reporting in accordance with the Fraud and Corruption Prevention Reporting
Procedure

creating an environment in which Fraud and Corruption is discouraged and
readily reported by Employees. Such an environment shall be fostered by the
Manager's own attitude and behaviours to Fraud and Corruption and, by the
accountability and integrity they both display and encourage from other
Employees

ensuring that new Employees for whom they are responsible are aware of their
responsibilities in relation to Fraud and Corruption and, of the standard of
conduct expected from all Employees as outlined in the Code of Conduct for
Council Employees and this Policy

identifying, monitor and report potential Fraud and Corruption risks, and
leading by example to promote ethical behaviour.

Employees are responsible for:

performing their functions and duties with care, diligence, honesty and integrity
conducting themselves in a professional manner at all times

adhering to these guidelines and other Council procedures that have been
established to prevent Fraud or Corruption

taking care of Council's property which includes avoiding the waste or misuse of
the Council's resources

maintaining and enhancing the reputation of the Council

remaining scrupulous in the use of Council information, assets, funds, property,
goods or services, and

reporting in accordance with the Fraud and Corruption Prevention Reporting
Procedure.

6. DEFINITIONS

For the purposes of this Policy the following definitions apply:

Corruption in public administration means:

a)

b)

An offence against Part 7 Division 4 (Offences relating to public officers) of the
Criminal Law Consolidation Act 1935, which includes the following offences:
(iy bribery or Corruption of public officers

(i) threats or reprisals against public officers

(ili) abuse of public office

(iv) demanding or requiring benefit on basis of public office

(v) offences relating to appointment to public office.

Any other offence (including an offence against Part 5 (Offences of dishonesty) of
the Criminal Law Consolidation Act 1935) committed by a public officer while
acting in his or her capacity as a public officer or by a former public officer and
related to his or her former capacity as a public officer, or by a person before
becoming a public officer and related to his or her capacity as a public officer, or
an attempt to commit such an offence (see Appendix 1 to the Fraud and
corruption reporting procedure for examples of offences under the Local

Fraud and cormruption prevention policy Page 4 of 7
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Current - 2017

Government Act 1999, Local Government (Elections) Act 1999 and Development
Act 1993); or

c)  Any of the following in relation to an offence referred to in a preceding paragraph:
(i) aiding, abetting, counselling or procuring the commission of the offence

(i) inducing, whether by threats or promises or otherwise, the commission of
the offence

(iii) being in any way, directly or indirectly, knowingly concerned in, or party to,
the commission of the offence

(iv) conspiring with others to effect the commission of the offence.

d) The AS8001:2008 Fraud and Corruption Control standard defines corruption as:

‘Dishonest activity where an employee or external third party acts contrary to the
interests of the Council by abusing their position of trust in order to achieve
personal gain or advantage for themselves or for another person or entity. The
concept of ‘corruption’ within this definition can also involve corrupt conduct by
the Council, or a person purporting to act on behalf of and in the interest of the
Council, in order to secure some form of improper advantage for the Council
either directly or indirectly’.

Directions and Guidelines is a reference to the Directions and Guidelines issued
pursuant to section 20 of the ICAC Act, which are available on the
Commissioner's website (www.icac.sa.gov.au).

Employee is any person who is employed by the Council, but also includes any
contractors, volunteers and consultants undertaking work for, or on behalf of the
Council.

A False Disclosure is a disclosure of information relating to Fraud or Corruption that is
made by a person who knows the information to be false or, who is reckless as to
whether it is false.

Fraud is an intentional dishonest act or omission done with the purpose of deceiving.
The AS8001:2008 Fraud and Corruption Control standard defines fraud as:

‘Dishonest activity causing actual or potential financial loss to any person or entity
including theft of moneys or other property by employees or persons external to
the entity and where deception is used at the time, immediately before or
immediately following the activity. This also includes deliberate falsification,
concealment, destruction or use of falsified documentation or intended for use for
a normal business purpose or the improper use of information or position for
personal benefit financial or otherwise.’

Note: unlike ‘Corruption’ there is no statutory definition of ‘Fraud’. Fraud is a style
of offending. The offences addressed under Part 5 and Part 6 of the Criminal
Law Consolidation Act 1935 are considered to constitute Fraud offences.

Independent Commissioner Against Corruption (Commissioner) means the
person holding or acting in the office of the Independent Commissioner Against
Corruption.

Local government body defined at Section 4 of the ICAC Act 2012 means a council
or a subsidiary of a council established under the Local Government Act 1999.

Fraud and corruption prevention policy Page 5 of 7
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Current - 2017

Manager means any Employee of the Council who is responsible for the direct
supervision of other Employees, and/or, for the management of a Council
Department.

Office for Public Integrity (OPI) is the office established under the ICAC Act that has
the function to:

a) receive and assess complaints about public administration from members
of the public

b) receive and assess reports about Corruption, misconduct and
maladministration in public administration from the Ombudsman, the
Council and public officers

c) make recommendations as to whether and by whom complaints and
reports should be investigated

d) perform other functions assigned to the Office by the Commissioner.

Public administration defined at section 4 of the ICAC Act 2012 means without
limiting the acts that may comprise public administration, an administrative act
within the meaning of the Ombudsman Act 1972 will be taken to be carried out in
the course of public administration.

Public Officer defined under the ICAC Act 2012 includes:
. a Council Member, and
. an Employee or Officer of the Council, and

. a member of a local government body.
A Responsible Officer is a person (or persons) appointed by the Council pursuant to
section 302B of the Local Government Act 1999 who is (are) authorised to

receive and act upon disclosures of public interest information reported to him/her
under the Whistleblowers’ Protection Act 1993.

7. LEGISLATION
Local Government Act 1999
Independent Commissioner Against Corruption Act 2012 (ICAC Act)
Criminal Law Consolidation Act 1935
Whistleblowers' Protection Act 1993
8. POLICY DELEGATIONS
Full information about the sub-delegated powers and duties is contained in the

Council Delegations Register.

9. AVAILABILITY OF POLICY

The Policy is available for public inspection during normal office hours at;

The Civic Centre,
181 Unley Road, Unley SA 5061.

A copy may be purchased for a fee as determined annually by Council.

Fraud and cormuption prevention policy Page 6 of 7
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 1 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Current - 2017

It is also available for viewing, download and printing free of charge from the Council’'s
website www.unley.sa.gov.au.

10. DOCUMENT HISTORY

Date Council / Committee Comment
!/ Internal
12/11/2013 A&G 75 New policy
11/02/2014 A&G 80
11/03/2014 Council 1072
26/06/2017 Council 887
Fraud and corruption prevention policy Page 7 of 7
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 2 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Proposed - 2019

THE CITY of .
Lnley”

FRAUD AND CORRUPTION PREVENTION POLICY

Policy Type: Council Policy

Responsible Department: Office of the CEO

Responsible Officer: Executive Manager Office of the CEO
Related Policies and e Public Interest Disclosure Procedure
Procedures ¢ Risk Management Policy and Framework

e Better Practice Model — Internal Financial Controls for
South Australian Councils

e Code of Conduct for Council Employees

e Code of Conduct for Council Members

e Elected Member Allowances and Benefits Policy

Community Plan Link 4.1 We have strong leadership and governance
Date Adopted 11 March 2014: C1072

Last review date 26 June 2017: C887

Next review date October 2022

Reference/Version Number

ECM Doc set I.D. 2192544

1. PREAMBLE

1.1. The City of Unley ("the Council") is committed to acting in the best interest of the
community and to upholding the principles of honesty, collaboration, integrity and
transparency, which are all key components of good governance.

1.2. The Council recognises that Fraud and Corruption in Public Administration have the
potential to cause significant financial and reputational harm and therefore, the
prevention and control of Fraud and Corruption should feature prominently within the
systems and procedures of a responsible Council.

2. SCOPE
2.1. This Policy is intended to complement, and be implemented in conjunction with,
other Council policies and procedures, including:
e Public Interest Disclosure Procedure
e Risk Management Policy and Framework
o Better Practice Model — Internal Financial Controls
e Code of Conduct for Council Employees
e Code of Conduct for Council Members, and
¢ Elected Members Allowances and Benefits Policy.
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 2 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Proposed - 2019

2.2. This Policy applies to all disclosures that relate to the actual or suspected occurrence
of Fraud and/or Corruption within the Council.

POLICY PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES

3.1. The purpose of this Policy is to protect Council assets, interests and reputation from
the risks associated with fraudulent conduct, misconduct and maladministration.

3.2. This Policy outlines the Council's approach to the prevention or minimisation,
identification and control of fraudulent and/or corrupt activity and, summarises the
associated responsibilities of Council Members and Council Employees.

DEFINITIONS

4.1. For the purposes of this Policy the following definitions apply:

Commissioner means the person holding or acting in the office of the Independent
Commissioner Against Corruption per Section 4 of the ICAC Act, who has the
powers and functions described by Section 7 of the ICAC Act.

Corruption in public administration means:

a)

An offence against Part 7 Division 4 (Offences relating to public officers) of the

Criminal Law Consolidation Act 1935, which includes the following offences:

(i)  bribery or Corruption of public officers

(i)  threats or reprisals against public officers

(i) abuse of public office

(iv) demanding or requiring benefit on basis of public office

(v) offences relating to appointment to public office.

Any other offence (including an offence against Part 5 (Offences of dishonesty)

of the Criminal Law Consolidation Act 1935) committed by a public officer while

acting in his or her capacity as a public officer or by a former public officer and

related to his or her former capacity as a public officer, or by a person before

becoming a public officer and related to his or her capacity as a public officer, or

an attempt to commit such an offence (see Appendix 1 to the Fraud and

corruption reporting procedure for examples of offences under the Local

Government Act 1999, Local Government (Elections) Act 1999 and

Development Act 1993); or

Any of the following in relation to an offence referred to in a preceding

paragraph:

(i) aiding, abetting, counselling or procuring the commission of the offence

(i)  inducing, whether by threats or promises or otherwise, the commission of
the offence

(i)  being in any way, directly or indirectly, knowingly concerned in, or party to,
the commission of the offence

(iv) conspiring with others to affect the commission of the offence.

The AS8001:2008 Fraud and Corruption Control standard defines corruption as:

‘Dishonest activity where an employee or external third party acts contrary to the
interests of the Council by abusing their position of trust in order to achieve
personal gain or advantage for themselves or for another person or entity. The
concept of ‘corruption’ within this definition can also involve corrupt conduct by
the Council, or a person purporting to act on behalf of and in the interest of the
Council, in order to secure some form of improper advantage for the Council
either directly or indirectly’.

Council is the Corporation of the City of Unley
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Directions and Guidelines is a reference to the Directions and Guidelines issued by
the Commissioner and is in force from time to time pursuant to section 20 of the
ICAC Act and/or section 14 of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2018, which are
available on the Commissioner’s website (www.icac.sa.gov.au).

Employee is any person who is employed by the Council, but also includes any
contractors, volunteers and consultants undertaking work for, or on behalf of the
Council.

A False Disclosure is a disclosure of information relating to Fraud or Corruption that
is made by a person who knows the information to be false or, who is reckless as to
whether it is false.

Fraud is an intentional dishonest act or omission done with the purpose of deceiving.
The AS8001:2008 Fraud and Corruption Control standard defines fraud as:

‘Dishonest activity causing actual or potential financial loss to any person or
entity including theft of moneys or other property by employees or persons
external to the entity and where deception is used at the time, immediately
before or immediately following the activity. This also includes deliberate
falsification, concealment, destruction or use of falsified documentation or
intended for use for a normal business purpose or the improper use of
information or position for personal benefit financial or otherwise.’

Note: unlike ‘Corruption’ there is no statutory definition of ‘Fraud’. Fraud is a style of
offending. The offences addressed under Part 5 and Part 6 of the Criminal Law
Consolidation Act 1935 are considered to constitute Fraud offences.

ICAC Act is the Independent Commissioner Against Corruption Act 2012.

Local government body defined at Section 4 of the ICAC Act 2012 means a council
or a subsidiary of a council established under the Local Government Act 1999.
Maladministration in public administration is defined in section 5(4) of the ICAC
Act and means:

i)  Conduct of a public officer, or a practice, policy or procedure of a public
authority, that results in an irregular and unauthorised use of public money or
substantial mismanagement of public resources; or

i) Conduct of a public officer involving substantial mismanagement in or in relation
to the performance of official functions; and

Includes conduct resulting from impropriety, incompetence or negligence; and

Is to be assessed having regard to relevant statutory provisions and administration

instructions and directions.

Manager means any Employee of the Council who is responsible for the direct

supervision of other Employees, and/or, for the management of a Council

Department.

Misconduct in public administration is defined in section 5(3) of the ICAC Act and

means:

i) contravention of a code of conduct by a public officer while acting in his or her
capacity as a public officer that constitutes a ground for disciplinary action
against the officer; or

i) other misconduct of a public officer while acting in his or her capacity as a public
officer.

Office for Public Integrity (OPI) is the office established under the ICAC Act that
has the function to:
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Item 2.1 - Attachment 2 - Fraud and Corruption Prevention Policy - Proposed - 2019

a) receive and assess complaints about public administration from members of
the public

b) receive and assess reports about Corruption, misconduct and
maladministration in public administration from inquiry agencies (including the
Ombudsman), public authorities (including the Council) and public officers

c) refer complaints and reports to inquiry agencies, public authorities and public
officers in circumstances approved by the Commissioner or make
recommendations as to whether and by whom complaints and reports should
be investigated

d) give directions or guidance to public authorities in circumstances approved by
the Commissioner;

e) perform other functions assigned to the Office by the Commissioner.
PID Act  means the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2018.

Public administration defined at section 4 of the ICAC Act 2012 means without
limiting the acts that may comprise public administration, an administrative act within
the meaning of the Ombudsman Act 1972 will be taken to be carried out in the
course of public administration.

Public Officer defined under the ICAC Act 2012 includes:
° a Council Member, and

° an Employee or Officer of the Council, and

o a member of a local government body.

Publish is defined in section 4 of the ICAC Act, and means publish by:

a) Newspaper, radio or television

b) Internet or other electronic means of creating and sharing content with the public
or participating social networking with the public; or

c) Any similar means of communication with the public.

Relevant Authority for the purposes of the PID Act means the person or entity that
receives an appropriate disclosure of public interest information in accordance with
the PID Act.

Responsible Officer is a person who has completed any training courses approved
by the Commissioner for the purposes of the Public Interest Disclosure Regulations
2019 and has been designated by the Council as a responsible officer under section
12 of the PID Act.

For the purposes of the ICAC Act, misconduct or maladministration in public
administration will be taken to be serious or systemic if the misconduct or
maladministration —

- is of such a significant nature that it would undermine public confidence in the
relevant public authority, or in public administration generally; and

- has significant implications for the relevant public authority or for public
administration generally (rather than just for the individual public officer
concerned).

Note: further information about serious or systemic misconduct or maladministration is available at
the ICAC website: https://icac.sa.gov.au/glossary
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5. ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

5.1. Roles and responsibilities under this Policy are set out in the following table:

Responsibility Council Chief Managers = Employees Audit

Members  Executive Committee
Officer

1. Comply with this policy and any related J N4 J N4 J
legislation, policy, protocol or procedure.

2. At all times in the performance of duties or v N4 v N4 4
in association with their role with Council,
act in an ethical manner.

3. Promote a culture and environment in which J N4 v N4
Fraud,  Corruption, Misconduct and
Maladministration is discouraged and not

tolerated

4. Remain scrupulous in the use of Council J V4 J V4 V4
information, assets, funds, property, goods
or services

5. Undertake awareness training or education v 4 J 4 V4
regarding Fraud, Corruption,

Maladministration and Misconduct.

6. Act in an ethical manner at all times in the J V4 v v v
performance of duties, and comply with
ethical obligations in accordance with any
relevant code or policy regarding conduct
and behaviour

7. Demonstrate constructive behaviours and v 4 J 4 V4
approaches to work which promote ethical
behaviours in Council employees

8. Where relevant, comply with the Public v N4 Vv v V4
Interest Disclosure Act 2018

9. Ensure appropriate internal controls are in v 4 J 4 V4
place and operating effectively to minimise
the risks of incidents

10. Ensure effective screening (e.g. criminal J J
history) of  employees, prospective
employees, volunteers (as relevant) and
contractors is undertaken, including by use
of appropriate and effective contractual
arrangements
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Responsibility Council Chief Managers  Employees Audit

Members  Executive Committee
Officer

11. Ensure all powers and authorities are v V4 J
appropriately delegated to minimise the risk
of Fraud, Corruption, Misconduct or
Maladministration

12. Ensure that where appropriate, proper v V4
investigations are conducted into
allegations of Fraud, Corruption,
Misconduct or Maladministration.

13. Facilitate cooperation with any V4
investigations undertaken by an external
authority
14. Undertakes Fraud and Corruption risk N4 N4 v N4 4
assessments on a regular basis
15. Provides mechanisms for  receiving v N4
allegations of Fraud, Corruption,

Misconduct and Maladministration

16. Investigates matters of Fraud, Corruption, J N4
Misconduct and Maladministration

17. Cooperate as required with any N4 N4 v N4
investigations undertaken whether internally
or by an external authority

18. Report all instances of conduct known or v 4 J 4 V4
reasonably suspected to be Fraud,
Corruption, Maladministration or Misconduct
in accordance with Council's policies

19. Develop  mechanisms for  receiving v 4
allegations of Fraud, Corruption,
Misconduct or Maladministration including
appointing a responsible officer

20. Review the effectiveness of the v 4 V4
implemented policies that ensure risks are
identified and that controls implemented by
management are adequate
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POLICY STATEMENT

6.1.

6.2.

The Council will not tolerate fraudulent or corrupt activity and is committed to its
control and prevention by:

complying with the requirements of the Independent Commissioner Against
Corruption Act 2012 (ICAC Act)

establishing and maintaining an effective system of internal controls and enforcing
compliance with those controls

regularly undertaking risk assessments to identify circumstances in which Fraud
and Corruption could potentially occur

implementing Fraud and Corruption prevention and mitigation strategies in its day
to day operations

taking appropriate action in response to allegations of fraudulent and/or corrupt
activity including:
(i)  reporting allegations in accordance with the ICAC Act and the reporting

system established by the Independent Commissioner Against Corruption
(ICAC) under section 20 of the ICAC Act, and

(i)  where allegations are substantiated, in addition to applicable criminal
sanctions, disciplinary action may be taken in accordance with the Codes of
Conduct for Council Members and Council Employees or, if relevant, a
Council Employee’s contract of employment with the Council

ensuring all Council Employees and Council Members are aware of their
responsibilities and obligations in regards to the prevention of Fraud and
Corruption within the Council and the inclusion of relevant education in any
induction process

active participation in education and evaluation of practices relevant to Fraud and
Corruption.

fostering an ethical environment in which dishonest and fraudulent behaviour is
actively discouraged, and

generating community awareness of the Council's commitment to the prevention of
Fraud and Corruption.

Prevention

6.2.1. The Council recognises that:

¢ the occurrence of Fraud and Corruption will prevail in an administrative
environment where opportunities exist for waste, abuse and
maladministration, and

e the most effective way to prevent the occurrence of Fraud and Corruption
is to instil and continually reinforce a culture of acting lawfully, ethically
and in a socially responsible manner, and to support this culture with the
implementation of appropriate internal control mechanisms.

6.2.2. The Council expects that Elected Members and employees will assist with

the achievement of a sound ethical culture and the prevention of Fraud and
Corruption by:

¢ understanding the responsibilities of their positions;

e familiarising themselves with the Council’s policies and procedures and
adhering to them;

e understanding what behaviour constitutes fraudulent and/or corrupt
conduct;
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e maintaining an awareness of the strategies that have been implemented
by the Council to minimise Fraud and Corruption;

e being continuously vigilant to the potential for Fraud and/or Corruption to
occur, and

e reporting suspected or actual occurrences of Fraud or Corruption in
accordance with this policy and the Directions and Guidelines issued by
ICAC.

6.3. Educating for Awareness

6.4.

6.3.1.

6.3.2.

The Council recognises that the success and credibility of this Policy will
largely depend on how effectively it is communicated throughout the
organisation.

The Council will, take proactive steps towards ensuring awareness staff are
aware of Council’'s zero-tolerance stance towards Fraud, Corruption,
Misconduct and Maladministration

Reporting Corruption, or Systemic or Serious Misconduct and
Maladministration

6.4.1.

6.4.2.

6.4.3.

6.4.4.

In accordance with obligations for Public Officers under the ICAC Act, all
reasonable suspicions of Corruption or Systemic or Serious Misconduct or
Maladministration must report this information to the OPI as soon as
practical.

Where reporting actual or suspected Corruption, or Systematic or Serious
Misconduct or Maladministration to the OPI any requirements imposed by
the Council's Fraud, Corruption, Misconduct and Maladministration
framework (including those documents identified in section 3 of this Policy)
should also, to the extent possible, be adhered to.

Public Officers as defined by the ICAC Act, have an obligation to report a
reasonable suspicion of corruption, misconduct or maladministration in
public administration. The ICAC has prepared Directions and Guidelines
which set out the reporting obligations of public officers. The public officer
may also make an appropriate disclosure in accordance with the
requirements of the Public Interest Disclosure Act 2018.

Elected Members and staff should ensure they are aware of reporting
obligations in relation to corruption, misconduct and maladministration in
public administration.

6.5. False Disclosure

6.5.1.

A Council employee who makes a false disclosure may also face
disciplinary action which may include dismissal from employment.

POLICY DELEGATIONS

7.

Nil

LEGISLATION

Local Government Act 1999

Independent Commissioner Against Corruption Act 2012 (ICAC Act)
Criminal Law Consolidation Act 1935

Public Interest Disclosure Act 2018
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9. AVAILABILITY OF POLICY

9.1. The Policy is available for public inspection during normal office hours at:
The Civic Centre,
181 Unley Road, Unley SA 5061.
A copy may be purchased for a fee as determined annually by Council.

It is also available for viewing, download and printing free of charge from the
Council’'s website www.unley.sa.gov.au.

10. DOCUMENT HISTORY

Date Ref/Version No. | Comment

12/11/2013 | A&G 75 New Policy

11/02/2014 | A&G 80

11/03/2014 | Council 1072

26/06/2017 | Council 887
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DECISION REPORT

REPORT TITLE: REVISED RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
ITEM NUMBER: 2.2
DATE OF MEETING: 11 NOVEMBER 2019
AUTHOR: LIDA CATALDI
JOB TITLE: PRINCIPAL RISK MANAGEMENT OFFICER
ATTACHMENTS: 1. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
2. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY - 2017
(C853)
3. RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK
RISK ASSESSMENT MATRIX

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The purpose of this report is to present the revised Risk Management
Policy for endorsement following its review.

Council is required to review all policies within 12 months of an election.
In addition, policies should be routinely reviewed to ensure they remain
current and reflect any changes to legislative or industry
guidelines/requirements.

The International Organisation for Standardization (ISO) released new
Risk Management Guidelines in February 2018 (ISO 31000:2018 Risk
Management — Guidelines) and this document has informed the review of
the Risk Management Policy.

Other changes made to the documents are intended to streamline the text
(simplify readability) and also incorporate editorial changes based on a
new policy template and organisational changes (e.g. position
titles/accountabilities).

Included for the information of Committee members is the revised Risk
Management Framework and Risk Assessment Matrix. These operational
documents provide guidance to staff on the application of the Risk
Management Policy and with risk management systems and processes.
Following endorsement of the Risk Management Policy by Council, the
revised Risk Management Framework will be presented to the Executive
Management Team for endorsement.
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RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

2.  The Risk Management Policy set out in Attachment 1 to this report
(Item 2.2, Audit Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be endorsed.

RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES/POLICIES

4. Civic Leadership
4.1 We have strong leadership and governance
4.3 Our business systems are effective and transparent.

BACKGROUND

The International Organisation for Standardization (ISO) released I1SO
31000:2018 Risk Management — Guidelines in February 2018. This
superceded the ISO 31000:2009 Risk Management — Principles and
guidelines. The new ISO 31000:2018 offered a more concise guide,
designed to help organisations use risk management principles to make
better decisions. The intention of the new Risk Management Standard is
to enable a practical integration of risk management into business
activities and decision-making processes.

DISCUSSION

The Risk Management Policy has been reviewed to ensure alignment to
the new ISO 31000:2018. A new Policy template has been adopted for all
Council Policies, and the proposed changes to the Risk Management
Policy include transfer to the new template. This means that use of track
changes was not conducive to an easy to read document, so to enable a
comparison with the previous version of the Policy, both versions have
been provided as Attachment 1 (proposed Risk Management Policy) and
Attachment 2 (Risk Management Policy 2017) to this Report.

Attachment 1
Aftachment 2

As part of the review of the Risk Management Policy, a workshop was held
at the conclusion of the 2 July 2019 Audit Committee meeting. This
workshop included discussion on the revised Risk Management
Framework and Risk Assessment Matrix to ensure the documents had the
benefit of input from Committee members. Feedback provided during this
workshop was noted and used to inform the proposed changes to the
Policy and Framework.
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A key component of the discussion at the workshop related to the to the
current measures used to assess risk probabilities/occurrences. Guidance
was sought as to whether the assessment matrix presented a too
conservative approach to risk assessment. Based on the feedback
received, slight adjustments have been made to the ‘likelihood ratings’ in
the Risk Assessment Matrix as follows:

- The likelihood rating frequency for ‘possible’ has increased from 31%-
60% to 31%-70%

- The likelihood rating frequency for ‘likely’ has increased from 61%-90%
to 71%-90% with the description changed from “Monthly: likely to occur
once a month” to “Annually: Likely to occur once a year”

The above changes were intended to reflect a less risk averse
assessment. Changes to the Risk Rating outcome were also made — as
shown below:

Rares
P
probabilityd
e
Consequence- | e ]
Ratingso y
e

[Worst-case: | Mediumi

The City of Unley’s risk appetite was also adjusted to include feedback
provided by the Audit Committee members at the workshop. To ensure
consistency between the Risk Management Framework and Risk
Assessment Matrix the same table has been replicated in both documents.

Residual Risk Level  Managing Risk — Priority Rating

Add risk 1 Couneil's Riak Reghoter
Undertake detsilid research and enansgemsar planning

Eicalate the risk base imnsedlately to relevant Geperal Manager and CEQ

Inspilensent stringent new controls in & detailed risk treatment plas in ardef 1o make ritk
tolerable

Clossly moniter the contred effectiveness st the work ared level on &n orgaing basis
Report the risk information to the Audit Committes

Add risk 1o Council’s Rizk Regiater

Raliw the riik lnrue with the relevant General Manager

Escalate the risk ssee for Management’s attention cr action

Closely monitor the controd eflectiveness at the work area level an an angaing bards
Validate sxdieting controls with appropriste svidense

Repart the riak information ta the Audit Commttes

LR T R )

Add rigk to Council’s Risk Register

b ay be tolerated

Manage the risk within the business function by the pesition responsible for process
Existieg controls meast be effective and if required additional mitigathon sction b to be
effectively Implemented

MEDILM

L

#  Add risk to Council's Risk Register

& Bay be tolerated

»  Undermake localised risk mansgement & sctions [If reguired). consequences are dealt
with by rautice operatiana

» Mainzain regime af fentinsous improvemest
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The Risk Management Framework is an operational document, endorsed
by the Executive Management Team. Whilst not a Council endorsed
document, a copy of the proposed revised Framework is provided as
Attachment 3 to this Report for the information of the Committee.

Attachment 3

A further change to the Framework as a result of the review was to extract
the Risk Assessment Matrix and produce this as a stand-alone document.
The intent is to enable ease of reference for staff during the risk
assessment process. A link to the Risk Assessment Matrix is still retained
within the Risk Management Framework. A copy of the Risk Assessment
Matrix is provided as Attachment 4 to this Report.

Attachment 4

The proposed changes to the Policy and Framework reflect an appropriate
approach to Risk Management for the organisation. The documents seek
to support effective risk management (including appropriate risk taking) in
a manner that is balanced and considered.

The documents are now presented for the review of the Audit Committee
and for recommendation of the Risk Management Policy to Council for
endorsement.

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

Option 1 —

1. The Report be received.

2. The Risk Management Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report
(Item 2.2, Audit Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be adopted

The current Policy required revision to align with the ISO 31000:2018 —
Risk Management — Guidelines. The document has been updated to
reflect the Standard and has also been transferred to the new Policy
Template. The Policy provides an appropriate basis for risk management
in the City of Unley and warrants adoption and implementation in a timely
manner to ensure staff have appropriate guidance in relation to Risk
Management.

Option 2 —

1. The Report be received.

2. Subject to the amendments set out below, the Risk Management
Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report (Iltem 2.2, Audit
Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be adopted:

2.1 insert amendments required
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The Committee may wish to request amendments to the Policy and
include these in the recommendation to Council for endorsement. If this is
the case, the amendments should be articulated as part of the resolution.
This Option provides the relevant wording to enable the Committee to
articulate any changes required to the policy, and to recommend these be
incorporated by Council at the time it adopts the revised Risk Management
Policy.

Option 3 —

1. The Report be received.

2. The Risk Management Policy as set out in Attachment 1 to this report
(tem 2.2, Audit Committee Meeting, 11/11/2019) be further amended
and returned to the Audit Committee for review, prior to presentation to
Council for endorsement.

The Committee may consider that further work is required to the Policy
prior to Council endorsement. This Option requests further development
of the document and that they be returned to the Audit Committee for
recommendation to Council.

RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 is the recommended option.

REPORT CONSULTATION

A workshop was held at the July 2019 Audit Committee to discuss the Risk
Management Framework and Matrix. Feedback from this workshop has
been reflected within the attached documents.

REPORT AUTHORISERS
Name Title
Tami Norman Executive Manager, Office of the CEO
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THE CITY of Jj

RISK MANANGEMENT POLICY

Policy Type: Council Policy

Responsible Department: Office of the Chief Executive Officer
Responsible Officer: Principal Risk Management Officer
Related Policies and e Risk Management Framework
Procedures e Business Continuity Plan

e Emergency Management Plan
e Relevant WHS Policies and Procedures

Civic Leadership
Community Plan Link 4.1 we have strong leadership and governance
4.3 our business systems are effective and transparent
Date Adopted 24 May 2010, C664
Last review date 22 May 2017, C853
Next review date November 2021
Reference/Version Number Version 6
ECM Doc set I.D. 2979377

1. PREAMBLE

1.1. Council will maintain a Risk Management Framework consistent with the
International Standard 1SO31000:2018 — Risk Management Guidelines, with the goal
of providing a consistent approach to dealing with uncertainties likely to impact on
the achievement of Council’s vision.

2. POLICY PURPOSE/OBJECTIVES
2.1. This Policy is intended to enable an integrated approach to risk management
through:
e seeking a commitment to core risk management principles;

o defining responsibilities for risk identification, assessment, evaluation and
treatment programs across Council operations;

e application of a Risk Management Framework that provides the tools and
programmes to underpin Councils approach to achieving a balance between the
costs of managing a risk and anticipated benefits;

e ensuring a systematic approach is used to manage risks and that appropriate
treatment and risk mitigation strategies are applied, reviewed and monitored;
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o developing and nurturing an organisational ethos and culture, which integrates
risk management processes into management activities at strategic, project and
operational levels;

e achieving Council’s goals, objectives, targets and community expectations within
an acceptable (tolerable) level of risk.

DEFINITIONS

Consequences: Outcome of an event affecting objectives.
Control: Measure that modifies a risk.
Event: Occurrence of a particular set of circumstances.

Risk: Effect of uncertainty on objectives; an effect is a deviation from the expected. It can
be positive, negative or both and can address, create or result in opportunities and threats.

Risk Assessment: An overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and risk
evaluation.

Risk Management: Coordinated activities to direct and control an organisation with regard
to risk.

Risk Management Framework: Set of components that provide the foundations and
organisational arrangements for designing, implementing, monitoring, reviewing and
continually improving risk management.

Risk Register: Register of all identified risks, their consequences, likelihood, rating and
treatments.

ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

4.1. Council
o Endorse Council’s Risk Management Policy.

o Ensure that risks are adequately considered when setting Council strategies and
objectives.

o Understand the risks facing Council in pursuit of its objectives.
o Apply risk management principles to the decision-making process.
4.2. Audit Committee
¢ Review and recommend the endorsement of the Risk Management Policy.

e Ensure the risk management framework assigns authority, responsibility and
accountability at appropriate levels within the organisation, is implemented and
delivers a consistent approach to risk management.

e Review reports from management and auditors and monitor the implementation of
effective enterprise risk and opportunity management though controls.

e Provide independent assurance regarding risk management processes.
4.3. Chief Executive Officer

e Ensure an effective risk management process is established, implemented and
maintained and deliver a consistent approach to risk management.

e Promote a strong risk management culture by providing firm and visible support
for risk management including ensuring appropriate delegations for the
management of risk.

o Ensure that appropriate resources are allocated to managing risk.
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4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

ltem 2.2 - Attachment 1 - Risk Management Policy

e Ensure Managers have the necessary knowledge and skills to effectively fulfil their
risk management responsibilities and are accountable for risks arising from the
activities of their business areas.

e Regularly review Council’s strategic and operational risks.
Executive Management Team

e Promote and support a proactive risk culture and the application of the Risk
Management Policy and Framework.

e  Monitor Council’s overall risk profile and mitigation strategies ensuring that Risk
Management is embedded into all critical functions and activities.

o Regularly review risks at all levels and ensure risk treatments are actioned.
e Include any risk treatments into business plans.
Business Unit Leaders / Managers

e Implement the Risk Management Policy and Framework within their respective
areas of responsibility.

e Undertake the risk management process as per the requirements of the Policy
and Framework.

e Record all operational risk information within Council’s Risk Register.
¢  Empower staff to actively manage risk.
Principal Risk Management Officer

e Provide guidance and assistance to all staff in relation to the application of this
framework and reporting within the Risk Register.

e Ensure relevant risk information is reported and escalated to the Executive
Management Team or Audit Committee, or cascaded to staff, as relevant.

e Maintain the Risk Management Policy and Framework to ensure its currency and
accuracy.

¢ Manage the Risk Register and timeframes as required.
Project Managers / Coordinators

o Implement risk management processes, including recognising, reporting and
responding to new, changing and anticipated risks.

Employees, Volunteers and Contractors
e Identify, evaluate, report and manage risks in their daily activities and projects.

POLICY STATEMENT

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

Council is committed to developing, applying and maintaining governance and risk
management principles to ensure that any impacts to the achievement of strategic
and business objectives are considered and analysed.

Council will adopt and implement a systematic approach to identifying, assessing,
evaluating and treating (mitigating) risks. The risk management program involves
identifying opportunities to ensure Council achieves its strategic goals whilst
recording and managing its operational risks.

Management will lead, actively participate in and have complete oversight of all
aspects of risk management within their areas of responsibility.

The risk register(s) will be periodically reviewed in accordance with set timeframes
identified within the Risk Management Framework.
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6. POLICY DELEGATIONS
Nil applicable

7. LEGISLATION

o Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 specifies that a Council must ensure that
appropriate policies, practices and procedures of internal control are implemented and
maintained in order to assist the Council to carry out its activities in an efficient manner to
achieve its objectives.

e Section 132A of the Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to ensure that
appropriate policies, practices and procedures are implemented and maintained in order
to ensure compliance with statutory requirements and achieve and maintain standards of
good public administration.

o Section 134(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to adopt risk
management policies, controls and systems.

o Relevant Work Health and Safety Act 2012, Regulations, and approved Codes of
Practice.

8. AVAILABILITY OF POLICY

8.1. The Policy is available for public inspection during normal office hours at:
The Civic Centre,
181 Unley Road, Unley SA 5061.
A copy may be purchased for a fee as determined annually by Council.

It is also available for viewing, download and printing free of charge from the
Council’s website www.unley.sa.gov.au.

9. DOCUMENT HISTORY

Date Ref/Version No. Comment

04/05/2010 | Audit & Governance Comm 45/10

24/05/2010 | Council 644/10

08/02/2011 | Audit Comm 9/11 Was policy no. 025
28/02/2011 | Council 70/11
14/05/2012 | CSP Comm 108/12 Was policy no. COU10

25/05/2012 | Council 420/12

10/05/2017 | Audit & Governance Comm 56/17

22/05/2017 | Council 853/17 Policy number deleted
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THE CITY of

Item 2.2 - Attachment 2 - Risk Management Policy - 2017 (C853)

6)

RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY
Policy Type: Council Policy
Responsible Department: Office of the Chief Executive Officer
Responsible Officer: Group Manager Governance and Risk

 AS/NZS 1S031000:2009 Risk Management
City of Unley Council:
Risk Management Framework
Business Continuity Plan
Emergency Management Plan

Related Policies and Procedures Local Government Act 1999 Sections 125 & 134

Work Health and Safety Act 2012
Civil Liabilities Act 1936

Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011

Relevant WHS Policies and Procedures

Date Adopted: | 24 May 2010, C664
Last Council review: 22 May 2017, C853
Next review date: | May 2020

ECM Doc Set ID: 2979377

1. POLICY STATEMENT

Council is committed to developing, applying and maintaining governance and risk
management principles and practices to protect itself and its employees, members and
local government from situations or events that would prevent it from achieving its
strategic goals and business objectives whilst:

e Applying consistent risk management principles and aligning risk identification
activities with the strategies and objectives of Council and its business groups;

e Ensuring all significant decisions are supported by effective risk management
processes;

e Protecting and enhancing the Council’s reputation;

¢ Recognising and exploiting opportunities; and

e [Establishing resilience and increased efficiency.

Risk management policy Page 10f 5
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2. COMMUNITY GOAL
e Organisational Excellence: 5.3 Good Governance and Legislative Framework
3. POLICY OBJECTIVES
The objectives of the Policy are to enable an integrated approach to risk management
through:
Council’'s commitment to core risk management principles;

e Ensuring a systematic approach is undertaken to manage risks and to apply
appropriate treatment and risk mitigation strategies that are reviewed and
monitored;

e Developing and nurturing an organisational ethos and culture, which will integrate
risk management processes into management activities at strategic, project and
operational levels;

e Achieving Council's goals, objectives, targets and community expectations within
an acceptable (tolerable) level of risk.

4. PRINCIPLES
The performance of the risk management framework will be measured through:

e Compliance with this policy and related documentation;

e |mplementation and adherence to the Principles within I1ISO31000:2009 Risk
Management Standard,

e Value add to the whole Council;

e Maturity of Council's Risk Culture.

5. POLICY
Risk Management involves the implementation and adoption of systematic processes
to identify, assess, evaluate and treat (mitigate) risks. The risk management process
involves identifying opportunities to ensure Council achieves its strategic goals.
The Policy and Framework have been developed and implemented to standardise the
process of identifying and managing risk across Council’s Business Units.
The Policy and Framework have been developed in accordance with the International
Risk Management Standard AS/NZ ISO 31000:2009: “Risk Management Principles
and Guidelines”.

6. DEFINITIONS
Full definitions are outlined within Council's Risk Management Framework
Risk: Anything that could prevent the Council from achieving its objectives. Risk may
arise from an event, an action, or from a lack of action, it could be positive or negative
and is measured in terms of consequences and likelihood.
Consequence: The level of impact of risk exposure to the Council.

Risk management policy Page 2 of 5
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Likelihood: The frequency or level of possibility that the Council could be exposed to a
risk.

7. LEGISLATION / REFERENCES
Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 specifies that a Council must ensure
that appropriate policies, practices and procedures of internal control are implemented
and maintained in order to assist the Council to carry out its activities in an efficient
manner to achieve its objectives.
Section 134(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1999 requires Council to adopt risk
management policies, controls and systems.
Regulation 14(e) of the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
requires internal controls be implemented by Council and to provide assurance that its
financial records are complete, accurate and reliable.
Compliance with the Work Health and Safety Act 2012, Regulations, and approved
Codes of Practice.
The policy is supported by the Risk Management Framework.

8. POLICY DELEGATIONS
Nil applicable

9. ROLES/RESPONSIBILITIES
Council
Council has the overall responsibility for risk management, setting the risk tolerance
and oversight of the systems for managing risk including the review and approval of the
Policy and Framework.
Audit and Governance Committee
The Audit and Governance Committee is responsible for:

e Overseeing Council’'s risk management and audit requirements. Reporting on
risk management will be provided via Committee meetings;
e The provision of independent assurance regarding risk management processes
considering Council's Risk Profile and Mitigation Strategies.

Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
The CEO has overall accountability for ensuring that a risk management process is
established, implemented and maintained in delivering a consistent approach to risk
management.
Promote a strong risk management culture by providing firm and visible support for risk
management including appropriate delegations for the management of risk.

Risk management policy Page 3 of 5
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Ensure the Executive and Managers have the necessary knowledge and skills to
effectively fulfil their risk management responsibilities and are accountable for risks
arising from the activities of their business areas.

Executive Management Team (EMT)

Commitment to and promotion of the Policy and Framework and monitoring Council's
overall risk profile and mitigation strategies ensuring risk management is embedded
into all critical functions and activities.

Promote a proactive risk culture in accordance with business management initiatives
and include any risk treatments into business plans.

Regularly review all risks (Strategic, Operational, Project) on the risk register (at least
annually).

Business Unit Leaders / Managers

The Business Unit Leaders are accountable for implementing the requirements of the
Policy and associated Framework within their respective areas of responsibility.

Business Unit Leaders will be responsible for undertaking the risk management
process as per the requirements of the Policy and Framework. Specific risk based
information must be recorded in Council's Risk Register. Business Unit Leaders are
also responsible for empowering staff to actively be involved in managing risk.

Risk Management Teams (Risk Management & WHS)

The Risk Management Teams are responsible for:

e Assisting EMT and Business Unit Leaders to undertake the risk management
process in a systematic and standardised manner;

¢ Informing EMT and Business Unit Leaders of specific matters under investigation,
including relevant concerns and considerations;

e Developing and maintaining the Risk Management Framework and associated
processes. This includes the review of the Framework;

e Development and maintenance of a Risk Register, including the recording of risk
mitigation strategies;

e Reporting with regards to Council's risk profile and mitigation strategies.

Employees, Volunteers and Contractors:

All Council employees, volunteers and contractors are responsible for:
e |dentifying, evaluating and managing risks in their daily activities and projects;
¢ Understanding the Risk management processes that will be integrated with other
planning processes and management activities;

e Participating in, and attending training / awareness and other programs relating to
risk management.

AVAILABILITY
The policy is available for public inspection during normal office hours from:
Civic Centre

181 Unley Road
Unley SA 5061
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A copy may be purchased for a fee as determined annually by Council.

Itis also available for viewing, download and printing free of charge from the Council's
website, www.unley.sa.gov.au

11. DOCUMENT HISTORY

Date: Council/Committee/internal Comment:

04/05/2010 Audit & Governance Comm 45/10

24/05/2010 Council 664/10

08/02/2011 Audit Comm 9/11 Was policy no. 025
28/02/2011 Council 70/11
14/05/2012 CSP Comm 108/12 Was policy no. COU10

28/05/2012 Council 420/12

10/05/2017 Audit & Governance Comm 56/17

22/05/2017 Council 853/17 Policy number deleted

Risk management policy Page 50f 5

Page 39 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019






Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework

THE CITY of

Risk Management Framework

November 2019 — Version 2.0

Page 41 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework

Page 42 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework

Table of Contents

1. DocUMENt CONIOL........oiiiiiiiiiiieee ettt
1.1. Document Version CONrOl.......cceoiieeiiieiiieeree ettt

2. INErOAUCEION.......oeeiiicee et e
B PUIPOSE ...ttt ann
4. Roles and Responsibilities...............cccccooviiiiiiiii e
5. Principles of Risk Management ...............cccoociiiiiiiiiii e
6. Integration of Risk Management ...............ccccoviiieiiiiiicciee e
6.1. Enterprise Risk Management .......cccccuveeieiiieeeeciiee et

T PROCESS ...ttt e e e e e e e
7.1. Communication and CoNSUITAtioN ......ccocveeriiiiiiiinieeeee e
7.2. Scope, context and Criteria ....cccuieieeciiee e e eaee e
7.3. RiSK ASSESSMENT ...ccevereeererernnennnnnninneieesenesesesesesssesesssesssesesssasasesssasasesasasasass
7.3.2.1dentify RISKS ..eeiieiieeieiiiie ettt
7.3.2.RiSK ANQIYSIS «.eeeieriiee et e
7.3.3.Risk EVAlUQLION ...oouiiiiiiiiiiiieceeeee et
7.3.4.Residual Risk and Risk Treatment ........ccccceerieiniiienieeiieeec e
7.3.5.MONItOr aNd REVIEW ..cc.eveiiiiiiiiiieiieeeee ettt ettt s

8. Risk Management Activities Integrated into Processes.............cccccccveeeecrieeeecnnennn.
9. DEfiNitiONS .....coouiiiiiii e

Page 43 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework
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2. Introduction
The City of Unley’s vision:
Our City is recognised for its enviable lifestyle, environment, business strength and civic leadership.

Aspiring to this vision, the Risk Management Framework demonstrates an integrated approach to risk management and
assists in setting appropriate strategies, achieving objectives and making informed decisions in the best interests of the
community. The Risk Management Framework has been developed in accordance with the International Standard
1SO31000:2018 on risk management and refers to the arrangements within the City of Unley that enable risk to be
managed.

The Community Plan 2033 is of paramount importance within this Framework, given risk is defined as “the effect of
uncertainty on an organisation’s objectives”, whereas, the Risk Management Policy defines Councils commitment and
responsibilities in respect to risk management.

Risk is inherent in the provision of all functions and services across the Council. The understanding and management of
risk provides greater certainty and security for stakeholders, workers and the community. It also ensures decision makers
are better informed, able to be more decisive and move with increased confidence towards the achievement of
objectives.

The risk management process is not an isolated function and should be integrated into every activity, including decision
making, at all levels. Effective identification, assessment, evaluation and treatment of defined risks is critical to Council
achieving its strategic objectives and meeting overall community expectations as set out in the City of Unley’s Community
Plan 2033.

The objective of this framework is not to eliminate all risk but to ensure that risk is integral to the business area and
managed at an acceptable level in an efficient manner.

3. Purpose

The purpose of this Framework is to provide details of the requirements and processes supporting Council’s Risk
Management Policy and to maximise opportunities whilst minimising risks that may impact the achievement of
objectives.

This Framework will:

e Foster an integrated risk management approach within Council’s culture, values and operations;

e Align to the objectives of the Risk Management Policy;

e Establish a standardised, formal and structured process including reporting protocols for assessment and treatment of
identified risks;

e Establish roles and responsibilities for managing risk;

e Encourage innovation by integrating risk management into the strategic and operational processes across all business
areas of Council;

e Ensure that Council maximises its opportunities, whilst minimising any impacts arising from identifying and evaluating
risks;

e Ensure that all risks outside the appropriate risk level are escalated to the relevant manager;

e Assist in the development of a continuous improvement culture into overall Council processes.

Page 45 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework

The diagram below from ISO 31000:2018 visually represents how principles, framework and processes are integrated

Continual
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Best Protection
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COMMUNICATION &
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4, Roles and responsibilities
The following roles and key responsibilities ensure a transparent approach to managing risk within our Council.

Note: roles and responsibilities below refer to Risk Management only and the committee/position requirements in general

‘ 1 Roles 2 Responsibilities
3 Council e Endorse Council’s Risk Management Policy.
e Ensure that risks are adequately considered when setting Council’s strategies and
objectives.

e Understand the risks facing Council in pursuit of its objectives.

e Endorse the systematic approach to managing risk and opportunity across Council
operations (that is implemented, monitored and communicated).

e Review and consider any report or recommendations regarding the Risk Management
Policy.

e Apply risk management principles to the decision-making process.

4 Audit e Oversee Council’s risk management and audit initiatives.
Committee e Monitor and review the performance and adequacy of Council’s risk management
framework for identifying, monitoring and managing significant business risks.
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5 Roles 6 Responsibilities
7 Chief e Ensure an effective risk management process is established, implemented and
Executive Officer maintained and delivers a consistent approach to risk management.

e Promote a strong risk management culture by providing firm and visible support for
risk management including ensuring appropriate delegations for the management of
risk.

e Ensure that appropriate resources are allocated to managing risk.

e Ensure Managers have the necessary knowledge and skills to effectively fulfil their risk
management responsibilities and are accountable for risks arising from the activities of
their business areas.

e Regularly review Council’s strategic and operational risks.

8

9 Executive e Promote and support a proactive risk culture and the application of the Risk
Management Team Management Policy and Framework.

e Monitor Council’s overall risk profile and mitigation strategies ensuring that Risk
Management is embedded into all critical functions and activities.

e Regularly review risks at all levels and ensure risk treatments are actioned.

e Include any risk treatments into business plans.

10

11 BusinessUnit  , |mplement the Risk Management Policy and Framework within their respective areas
Leaders / Managers of responsibility.

e Undertake the risk management process as per the requirements of the Policy and
Framework.

e Record all operational risk information within Council’s Risk Register.

e Empower staff to actively manage risk.

12 Principal R_iSk e Provide guidance and assistance to all staff in relation to the application of this
Management Officer framework and reporting within the Risk Register.

13 . - :

14 Work Health . 'li/r;sure reIevarjrt risk |nfzrr2?t(|:on is r.eported and ejczlated t;)fthe E)I(ecutlve

& Safety Business anagement Team or Audit Committee, or cascaded to staff, as relevant.
Partner e Maintain the Risk Management Policy and Framework to ensure its currency and
15 accuracy.

16 e Manage the Risk Register and timeframes as required.

e Provide support and advice to Managers and staff in the application and use of the Risk
Management Framework.

17 Project o |Implement risk management processes, including recognising, reporting and
Managers / responding to new, changing or anticipated risks.

Coordinators

18 Employees, o Identify, evaluate, report and manage risks in their daily activities and projects.
Volunteers and 19

Contractors
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5. Principles of Risk Management

The ISO 31000:2018 Risk Management — Guideline outlines eight best practice principles (see below) that underpin this
Framework and guide how risk is managed across Council

ISO 31000:2018 - Risk Principles
Integrated — Risk management is an integral part of all organisational activities.

Structured and comprehensive — A structured and comprehensive approach to risk management
contributes to a consistent and comparable results.

Customised — The risk management framework and process are customized and proportionate to the
organisation’s external and internal context related to its objectives.

Inclusive — appropriate and timely involvement of stakeholders enables their knowledge, views and
perceptions to be considered. This results in improved awareness and informed risk management.

Dynamic — risks can emerge, change or disappear as an organisation’s external and internal context
changes. Risk management anticipates, detects, acknowledges and responds to those changes and
events in an appropriate and timely manner.

Best available information — the inputs to risk management are based on historical and current
information, as well as future expectations. Risk management explicitly takes into account any
limitations and uncertainties associated with such information and expectations. Information should be
timely, clear and available to relevant stakeholders.

Human and cultural factors - Human behaviour and culture significantly influence all aspects of risk
management at each level and stage.

6. Integration of Risk Management across Operations

Risk Management is not just about the risk assessment process, nor is it a stand-alone discipline. To maximise risk
management benefits and opportunities, it requires integration through Council’s entire operations as shown by the
diagram below:
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An integrated risk management system includes the methods and processes used to manage risks and seize opportunities
to achieve defined objectives. This allows the various stakeholders to understand the ‘bigger picture’ of risks facing the
Council across its entire operations and ensure shared learnings and continual improvement in the management of risk
exposure.

Integrated activities include:

e Strategic and operational decision making

e Strategic and annual business planning

e Strategic, operational, Council and Governance reporting
e Business continuity planning and disaster recovery
¢ Emergency management

e Insurance

e Work health and safety

¢ Financial management

e Asset management

¢ Project management

¢ Contracting and procurement

e Assurance programs

e Training Programs
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Strategic Risks are identified by reference to both the external environment and Council’s Community Plan 2033
objectives. Strategic risks are monitored by the Executive and Elected Member body, with all risk assessments captured
in the Risk Register and recorded within Council’s records management system (ECM).

7. Process

Having a good risk management practice ensures that Council can undertake activities knowing that measures are in place
to maximise the benefits and minimise the negative effect of uncertainties. Risk management involves both the
management of potentially adverse effects as well as the fulfilment of potential opportunities.

The ISO 31000:2018 states that the risk management process involves the systematic application of policies, procedures
and practices to the activities of communication and consultation, establishing scope, context and criteria, assessing,
treating, monitoring, reviewing, recording and reporting risk. (see diagram)

Risk Management Process

Scope, context, criteria

g
3 Risk assessment =
= —~— 3
& Risk identification o
& —_—_ — ————— o
= | 4 i oo
-] Risk analysis £
3 , , =
Z Risk evaluation =]
g
o
=

Risk treatment
Recording & reporting

City of Unley’s risk management process is consistent with the ISO 31000:2018, as it involves;

e Communication and Consultation: a continuous information sharing process involving internal and external
stakeholders. It determines boundaries, relevant staff and is the basis for decisions.

e Establishing Context: an understanding of the current conditions in which the organisation operates from an internal,
external and risk management context.

e Identifying Risks (forms part of the Risk Assessment Process): the consideration of impact to the organisation’s
achievement of its objectives (strategic and operational) and may include new and emerging risks that are not
currently controlled by the Council. Identifies risks, their sources, causes and potential impacts.

e Analysing / Assessing / Evaluating Risks (forms part of the Risk Assessment Process): Determines the level of risk
exposure (likelihood and consequence) and compares the risk analysis with the risk criteria to determine if the risk is
acceptable or tolerable.

e Treating / Mitigating Risks: the development of further strategies for controlling and treating risks to an acceptable or
tolerable level (avoid, transfer, share, take action and reassess with controls and treatments in place).

e Monitoring and Reviewing: the continual measurement and monitoring of the risk environment and the performance
of risk management strategies. It captures lessons learnt from near misses or success and provides a basis to reassess
risk priorities.
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7.1 Communication & Consultation

Effective communication and consultation ensure relevant stakeholders understand risk, the basis on which decisions are
made and the reasons particular actions are required. Communication is vital in the promotion of risk awareness and
understanding, whereas consultation involves obtaining feedback and information to support decision making.

It is important that the communication approach recognises the need to promote risk and opportunity management
concepts across all management and workers. Council recognises that this is a process and not an outcome, and so to be
effective this stage must be a continuous process of providing and receiving feedback and communication.

7.2 Scope, context and criteria

Risk Management is considered in the context of an organisation’s external and internal environment, its objectives and
stakeholder relationships. This enables efficient identification of risks to achieve overall business objectives.

Whilst there are benefits across all steps, communication when establishing the context will assist with agreement on:
. The problem/ activity that needs assessment
. How we’ll know we’ve been successful
In deciding the above, staff will need to consider surrounding context.
External Context
Consideration of the external context includes the external environment and relationships. For example:
e Government policies, legislation & compliance requirements;
¢ Business, social, regulatory, cultural, financial and political responsibilities;
¢ Industry trends and practices;
e Opportunities and threats; and
e External stakeholders -including community expectations (and their objectives).
Internal Context

An understanding of Council and its objectives is important prior to undertaking the risk management process. Areas
to consider include:

e City of Unley’s risk appetite;

e Vision, mission and values (Community Plan, Four Year Delivery Plan);
e Governance, organisation structure, roles and accountabilities;

e Strategy, objectives and policies;

¢ Organisational culture;

e Standards, guidelines and models adopted by the City of Unley;

¢ Capabilities understood in terms of resources and knowledge (e.g. capital, time, people, intellectual property,
processes, systems and technologies);

¢ Relationships with internal stakeholders, considering their perceptions and values; and
¢ Contractual relationships and commitments.

These factors need to be considered when identifying Council risks.

7.3  Risk Assessment

Risk assessment is the overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and risk evaluation.
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7.3.1 Identify Risks

Risk identification naturally flows on from the context discussion. It is a process of formally documenting the effects of
uncertainty on objectives and is about identifying sources of risk, areas of impact, events, opportunities, failure to
innovate and potential consequences. The aim is to generate a comprehensive list of risks based on those events that
might create, enhance, prevent, degrade, accelerate or delay the achievement of objectives. This includes identifying the
risks associated with not pursuing an opportunity.

Because risk is the effect of uncertainty on objectives, the description of the risk needs to convey both elements, in other
words, firstly make clear which objectives (e.g. those referred in the Community Play 2033) are being referred to, and
secondly identify the source of uncertainty and how it could lead to consequences.

A number of questions should be asked when attempting to identify risks that may prevent, degrade, delay or enhance
the achievement of objectives. These include:

.
e What can happen?

e  When could it happen?

e  Where could it happen?

e  Why could it happen?

e How can it happen?

e  Who or what might be impacted?

The answers will assist you in developing a list of risks and events that may have an impact on the achievement of
objectives. As part of the risk identification process, it is important to consider the cause of each risk as this may result in
different controls being required.

Where there are a number of risks identified within an activity, all identified risks should be documented in the ‘risk
description’ column of the ‘Risk Assessment Template’ (ECM 4612062)

It is beneficial to assess the initial risk prior to considering any controls (inherent risk). This will clarify the baseline of the
risk without any controls in place.

Risks can be identified in numerous ways including but not limited to:

Risk Identification The purpose of workshops is to brainstorm risks and assess the likelihood and
Workshops consequence of these with relevant staff from each department. This will assist in
capturing and understanding risks and ensuring they are documented in the risk register.

LGAMLS Risk Risks are identified through the LGAMLS Risk Management Review process which is an
Management Review annual appraisal of Council’s risk management practices. An Action Plan is developed to
Process respond to and deal with any issues raised by the Scheme and administered in
consultation with the relevant stakeholders across the organisation

Strategic Projects / A risk assessment is to be undertaken as part of any major project and / or change
Change management process. Departments are required to identify and assess any risks
emerging as a result of the proposed change / project. This includes reports to Council.

Strategic and Annual Departments are required to review the risk register as part of their annual business and
CIELEERLEN LGN R SIS strategic planning and budgeting process. This enables the risk profile and risk control
activity to be considered as part of future organisational plans, service improvements,
business requirements and budgeting needs

Incident / Hazard Incidents and Hazards are to be reported in accordance with Councils Hazard
Reporting Management Policy and associated procedures.
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7.3.2 Risk Analysis

The risk analysis process involves the consideration of the controls or mitigating activities ALREADY in place that reduce
the level of the risk. These controls or mitigating activities should be identified and documented in the ‘Controls’ column
of the relevant Risk Assessment Template (ECM 4612062).

Controls may be a single element (e.g. a warning notice) or multiple elements (e.g. inspection regimes, Standard
Operating Procedures (SOP’s), other documentation of work practices, defining responsibilities and accountabilities, and
monitoring and reviewing processes) that work simultaneously to achieve a specific purpose.

Following the identification process, each risk should be assessed in terms of consequence (impact or magnitude of
effect) and the likelihood of that consequence occurring. The consequence and likelihood are rated against established
criteria on the Risk Matrix (ECM 4817450).

7.3.3 Risk Evaluation

The Risk evaluation process is utilised to support decision marking by determining which risks need treatment and priority
for implementation.

A risk deemed as tolerable (acceptable) does not require further controls to be implemented via treatments unless there
is an increase in the efficiency (financial/time) of existing controls.

The following actions should be considered when evaluating the risk:
¢ Do nothing further (risk level within tolerance);

e Consider risk treatment options (risk level not within tolerance);
¢ Undertake further analysis to better understand the risk;

e Maintain existing controls;

e Reconsider objectives.

The effectiveness of existing controls should be assessed. The assessment of the control should consider the design,
effectiveness and appropriateness of the control at mitigating the risk. Control effectiveness can be assessedona 1l -5
scale as set out in the table below:

Definitions of Control Effectiveness Ratings

During the period, the control has not been implemented as described.
1. Ineffective Urgent management action is required to implement the described control
processes.

During the period, the control has been implemented as described, but with
2. Requires significant significant deficiencies in the consistency or effectiveness of implementation.

improvement Significant management action required to implement processes to improve
the effectiveness of the control.

During the period, the control has been implemented as described, but with
3. Partially effective some deficiencies in the consistency and/or effectiveness in which it has been
applied.

During the period, the control has been implemented as described and in the
majority of cases has been consistently and/or effectively applied. There is
potential to enhance the effectiveness of the control, but only with minor
adjustments.

4. Majority effective

During the period, the control as described has been fully implemented and

5. Effective
has in all cases has been consistently and/or effectively applied.

(Better Practice Model — Internal Financial Controls —2017 p11)
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Decisions should take account of the wider context and the actual and perceived consequences to external and internal
stakeholders.

To evaluate risks and apply a consistent approach, the Risk Matrix (ECM 4817450) should be used by staff.

The initial risk rating for each risk is determined by finding the point of intersection between the likelihood and
consequence response scores on the Risk Management Reference Sheet to give a rating of Extreme, High, Moderate or
Low. This rating provides a measure of the level of risk and will identify the risks that require further treatment.

If the assessed risk level is above the tolerable level, then a treatment might be required. If it is equal to, or below, the
tolerable level then that risk may be accepted (after further controls are discussed).

7.3.4 Residual Risk and Risk Treatment

Once the residual risk rating has been established, the following action should occur:

Residual Risk Level Managing Risk — Priory Rating

e  Add risk to Council’s Risk Register

e Undertake detailed research and management planning

e  Escalate the risk issue immediately to relevant General Manager and CEO

e Implement stringent new controls in a detailed risk treatment plan in order to make risk
tolerable

e Closely monitor the control effectiveness at the work area level on an ongoing basis

e Report the risk information to the Audit Committee

e  Add risk to Council’s Risk Register
e Raise the risk issue with the relevant General Manager
e e Escalate the risk issue to Management for attention or action
e Closely monitor the control effectiveness at the work area level on an ongoing basis
e Validate existing controls with appropriate evidence
e Report the risk information to the Audit Committee
e  Add risk to Council’s Risk Register
e May be tolerated
e e Manage the risk within the business function by the position responsible for process
e Existing controls must be effective and if required additional mitigation action is to be
effectively implemented
e  Add risk to Council’s Risk Register
e May be tolerated
o e Undertake localised risk management & actions (if required), consequences are dealt with by
routine operations
e Maintain regime of continuous improvement

The purpose of risk treatment is to select and implement options for addressing risk to a tolerable level, evaluating the
options and implementing those options. This should be documented within the Risk Assessment.

Selecting the most appropriate treatment option involves balancing the costs of implementing each option against the
benefits derived from it. It is important to consider all direct and indirect costs and benefits whether tangible or
intangible. Risk treatment options can include the following:

e Avoiding the risk by deciding not to proceed or continue with the activity likely to create / cause the risk;
e Taking or increasing the risk in order to pursue an opportunity if the benefits exceed the risk;

e Removing the source/cause of the risk;

e Changing the likelihood of the occurrence;

e Changing the consequence of the risk;
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e Sharing the risk with another party (including contracts); and

e Retaining the risk by informed decision and making appropriate provisions for dealing with the consequences should
they arise.

The objective is to ensure the risk is reduced to a tolerable level in an efficient (cost / time) manner.

Risk treatment plans should be integrated into the relevant work area, have a designated owner, proposed timeframe for
completion and need to be monitored during implementation for effectiveness. After the risk treatments have been
documented in a Risk Assessment, a final risk analysis should be undertaken to determine the forecast residual risk
considering the predicted result of implementing the treatments, assuming they operate effectively.

The information provided in the treatment plan should include:

e Rationale for selection of the treatment options, including the expected benefits to be gained;
e Those who are accountable and responsible for approving and implementing the plan;

e The proposed actions;

e The resources required, including contingencies;

e The performance measures;

e The constraints;

e The required reporting and monitoring;

e When actions are expected to be undertaken and completed.

7.3.5 Monitor and Review

It is important to understand that the risk assessment and management process is a continual one. It is essential to
incorporate ongoing monitoring and review procedures into all Council activities in order to improve the quality and
effectiveness of process design, implementation and outcomes.

All risks are allocated to a named individual referred to as the ‘Risk Owner’. Risk Owners will monitor their risks on an
ongoing basis and report escalated risk to the relevant General Manager.

Project risks will be monitored on a day to day basis through the project life cycle by the respective project manager /
coordinator, with issues reported and / or escalated through project structure.

At least annually all risks will be reviewed by Risk Owners through continuous maintenance of the risk register to:
e Ensure that implemented controls are effective and adequate;

e Provide further information to improve risk assessment and treatment plans;

¢ Allow for the identification of emerging risks;

¢ |dentify any (new) activities that may influence established strategies to mitigate risks.

Risk information will be provided to the LG Risk Services as required and information from the risk register will be
reported to Council and the Audit Committee.

8. Risk Management Activities Integrated into Processes

Governance and risk management are highly interdependent and require each to operate effectively to maximise the
chance of achieving objectives. Both functions sit within the Office of the CEO at the City of Unley. However, the Office
of the CEO does not manage all risk or risk treatments; this process is decentralised in line with the City of Unley’s values.
Best practice also recognises that managing risk within operational areas may encourage effective risk management
particularly because of technical specialisation. The City of Unley’s Risk Management Policy endorses this approach due to
the recognition of importance of accountability of staff in their decision making and recognises in many instances risks are
best managed within the business unit as certain expertise is needed to understand the risks.
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At the City of Unley, risk management is integrated into various activities which include, but are not limited to, the
following:

Budget and Strategic Planning

Strategic and Budget Planning considers key risks and opportunities facing the Council at a corporate level. The planning
process must identify and review risks that may impact on Council’s ability to meet key legislative and strategic
objectives.

Strategic & Operational Risk Assessment Process

The Executive Management Team (EMT) will monitor Strategic Risks regularly. Business functions will be required to
review Operational and Project risks ongoing as required and undertake a formal annual risk assessment.

All risks will be captured in a Risk Register and recorded using Council’s Record Management System (ECM). Operational
risks are the responsibility of the individual business function and Project Risks, the Project Manager.

Project Management

Risk assessments should be conducted on all major projects within the City to ensure that high profile / high risk projects
are managed appropriately. These risk registers are reviewed on a periodic basis throughout the lifecycle of the project.

Project Managers and Coordinators implement project risk management in line with Council’s risk management
framework.

Risk Management Training and Awareness

Information and awareness sessions will be provided at induction to all workers and ongoing as required to improve
transparency and increase the Councils Risk Management culture.

In accordance with the Risk Management Policy, risk management is the responsibility of all staff. In order to best
manage risks, staff of the City of Unley may seek advice on how to manage risks by seeking advice to clarify and identify
appropriate treatments. However, risk advice is not centralised to the Office of the CEO and therefore, staff may need to
engage individual business units and/or staff members to assist in complex management of risk. Further, it is for the
specific staff (with Manager and/or General Manager involvement as necessary) to determine appropriate action in
response to identified risk (including investigation of whether advice needs to be sought from external means (e.g.
Australian Standards, legal advice etc.)

Records Management

All staff are responsible for records management. Hence all information relating to risk management, including; risk
assessments should be saved into ECM, council’s records management system

Assurance Programs — Internal / External Audit

Council’s assurance programs such as internal audit, external audit and the self-assessment of the effectiveness of the
Better Practice Model — Internal Financial Controls (BPM) are delivered internally and externally. A risk-based approach is
used to identify priorities for internal audits to check effectiveness of the internal control environment.

Council and Audit Committee Reporting

Risk Management should inform Council’s decision-making process with relevant information incorporated into Council
and Committee reports.

Identified strategic and operational risks are recorded in the Risk Register with summarised risk reporting data to be
reported to the EMT on a quarterly basis.

Tenders and Contracts

A risk assessment should be completed prior to the project, works or services being put to tender. (procurement should
ensure there is a completed risk assessment prior to releasing the tender to the market)
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Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework

Agreements with Third Parties (including Limitation of Liability Requests)

When formalising any agreement with a third party, staff should consider whether risk management advice should be
sought via the Principal Risk Management Officer, from the LGA Mutual Liability Scheme, other staff and/or Council’s
legal panel in order to effectively manage risk.

In most instances, consideration will not be given to limiting liability as this may increase Council’s civil liability exposure.
However, if there are extenuating circumstances where such a request should be considered, the suggested limit of
liability request should be forwarded to the Principal Risk Management Officer for consideration.

If for any reason, liability is limited, serious consideration should be given to implementing additional controls to manage
any increase in risk exposure.

The following can help establish the risks associated with a third-party activity that council has a vested interest in. It will
also reveal what actions will be taken by the third party in relation to managing their risk:

Prevention What they’ll do to mitigate someone getting hurt

Preparedness What they’ll do to prepare for someone getting hurt

What they’ll do in responding to someone being hurt.

What they’ll do after an event of someone being hurt

Even though we may have terms and conditions which define non-negotiables to assist with risk management in relation
to agreements with third parties, for example we may request the third party have their equipment tagged and tested,
requesting they provide response reaffirms they are responsible for managing the risk associated with their activity.

Work Health Safety

The Work Health Safety (WHS) system is implemented to manage the health and safety risks to workers (staff, contractors
and volunteers). Work Health and Safety is a critical component of the risk management system and will address risks
facing workers conducting their specified duties.

Council has in place an overarching WHS and Return to Work System with a suite of Policies and Procedures to assist in
managing safety related risk.

Emergency Management, Business Continuity Planning / Disaster Recovery

Council undertakes emergency management planning and exercises, so it is prepared to respond effectively to requests
from State Government when it is responding to community level emergencies.

Council has an obligation to ensure that business continues as efficiently and promptly as possible after a business
interruption (or emergency). The Business Continuity Plan(s) (BCP) and Disaster Recovery Plan(s) (DR) are designed to
manage risk by limiting or reducing the impact of a disruption, and to enable the resumption of critical business
functions/services of Council. In managing the risks BCPs and DRs allow the resumption and recovery of business either
partially or in full.
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Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework

The relationship between Emergency Management, Business Continuity Management, Disaster Recovery and Risk

Risk Management

Emergency Response

Crisis Managemeny
Event and Risk
identification
E BIA

Recovery Response

Staff and Community

Management is shown below:

Insurance Options - Coverage & Claims Management — Local Government Risk Services (LGRS)

From the perspective of the Local Government Sector, certain insurable risks have been transferred to a number of
Schemes managed by Local Government Risk Services (LGRS) — via payment of an annual contribution.

e Local Government Association Mutual Liability Scheme (LGAMLS) for the purposes of Civil Liability coverage & claims
management;

e Local Government Association Workers Compensation Scheme (LGAWCS) for the purposes of workers compensation
coverage & claims management; and

¢ Local Government Asset Mutual Fund (LGAMF) for the purposes of asset and fleet coverage & claims management.

As a Member of all of the above, Council must ensure that WHS, and Asset and Risk Management protocols are
developed, endorsed and implemented across all Departments.

A requirement of membership of the Schemes is for Council to participate in a risk review and audit programme every
two years. This is one of the mechanisms the insurers use to establish what existing controls and practices are in place.
The review covers most areas of Council operations and specifically areas that have a level of civil liability exposure, or
areas that require a formal risk management approach. The results from this review have an impact on the level of
contributions paid on an annual basis. An action plan is generated after every review that identifies specific areas for
action and provides recommendations for strategies to address the action item. An action plan that incorporates actions
relevant to the City of Unley is presented to the Executive Management Team for endorsement.
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Consequence:
Control:

Establishing the
Context:
Event:

Exposure:

External Context:
Inherent Risk:

Internal Context:

Likelihood:
Residual Risk:
Risk:

Risk Appetite:

Risk Assessment:

Risk Management:

Risk Management
Framework:

Risk Management
Policy

Risk Management
Process

Risk Owner:

Risk Rating:

Risk Register:

Risk Treatment

Risk Tolerance:

Stakeholder:

Iltem 2.2 - Attachment 3 - Risk Management Framework

Common Definitions Associated with Risk Management

Outcome of an event affecting objectives

Measure that modifies a risk

Defining the external and internal parameters to be considered when managing risk

Occurrence of a particular set of circumstances

The risk exposure is a qualitative value of the sum of the consequence of an event multiplied
by the probability of that event occurring

External environment in which the organisation seeks to achieve its objectives

Risk at time of risk assessment without ANY controls in place (the assessment of raw or
untreated risk)

Internal environment in which the organisation seeks to achieve its objectives

Chance of something happening

Risk remaining after risk treatment

Effect of uncertainty on objectives;

Amount and type of risk that Council is willing to pursue or retain

An overall process of risk identification, risk analysis and risk evaluation

Coordinated activities to direct and control an organisation with regard to risk

Set of components that provide the foundations and organisational arrangements for
designing, implementing, monitoring, reviewing and continually improving risk management

Statement of the overall intentions and direction of an organisation related to risk
management

Systematic application of management policies, procedures and practices to the activities of
communicating, consulting, establishing the context and identifying, analysing, evaluating,
treating, monitoring and reviewing risk

Staff member with the accountability and authority to manage a risk

Risk priority based on consequence and likelihood assessments

Register of all identified risks, their consequences, likelihood, rating and treatments

Process to modify risk — treatment can involve:
e Avoiding the risk by deciding not to start or continue with activity that gives rise to the risk
e Taking or increase risk in order to pursue an opportunity
e Removing the risk source
®  Changing the likelihood

Council’s readiness to bear the risk after risk treatment in order to achieve objectives

Person or organisation that can affect, be affected by, or perceive themselves to be affected
by, a decision or activity
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RISK MATRIX

Item 2.2 - Attachment 4 - Risk Assessment Matrix

Note: - This guide illustrates the range of potential consequences and likelihood that may be associated with risk categories

- Judgement is required to assess the consequences and likelihood of a risk event after effective risk mitigation action

RISK LEVEL CONTEXT AND MITIGATION ACTION REQUIRED

Page 61 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019

STEP 1 Risk Categories and Examples of Potential Impacts
Health, Safety & Welfare Business Performance Reputation Infrastructure Environment Financial
Consequence (Communlté, C{:)un;:lllors, Staff or B & Ser\gc:RDgllver%{ (Political and Legislation (Council Assets and Facility
; ONtractons UEIINESS) [PEiENeIns, & Policy Compliance Management
Ratings ICT, Procurement Y P ) ° )
& Contract Management)
e Council Members conduct — Severe Breach of Code
of Conduct Permanent damage, destruction
Major injury, disablement or N I(-|:uge effgtct ontpubllcglmage . tablished L f sianificant of sites or artefacts of cultural ¢ Slgn|f|cant adverse
fatality . ommunity outrage by groups; pages established on . oss of significant or heritage significance |mpact on the budget
social media and high instance of posts on Council’s critical infrastructure / h — financial loss /
) Long term effect on morale and . ' . ) : Irrecoverable environmental
Catastrophic b e Major interruption to delivery of social media pages assets are destroyed ; ) exposure >$4m or
business performance I X P o ised it ianing involvi I Sianificant tical damage threatening survival of 10% of rat
Widespread industrial action all or most services for more . rganised community campaigning involving multi- *  Significant or critica flora or fauna: death of animals: o of rate revenue
(Worst c_:ase Section of the community or than 14 days. Full BCP action day / sustained negative media attention (months) infrastructure assets are widespread in’troduction of ’ e Impact on multiple
scenarios) workforce harmed ¥ required. e lIrreconcilable community loss of confidence in unusable for months weeds’:)' soil erosion financial years
A Council’s intentions and capabilities e Major impact on business wi ) To note: $4m is a threshold
Long term impact on morale or I . T ti Serious” as defined under the . dential
business * Significant prosecution and fines, major litigation operations SA Environment Act 1993 in pru ential management
involving class action, major noncompliance with : relating to procurement
e : Section 5 (3)(b)
legislation / regulation
e Critical internal policy failure
e Major financial loss /
Serious long term injury requiring e Council Members conduct — Major Breach of Code of . Deathl of individual animals, I_arge exposure — impact
hospitalisation / rehabilitation Conduct e Loss of non-critical scale injury, loss of k_ey species between $1m and
Temporary disablement «  Long term effect on public image infrastructure / assets are and widespread habitat $4m or 5% of rate
Industrial acti Maior int tion t ] e Considerable and prolonaed impact and destroyed or significantly destruction revenue
ndustrial action over many * ajor interruption to service Onsi : p ged Imp damaged Extensive serious injuries e Impact goes into next
: months, significant management delivery, Customer impact > 7 dissatisfaction publicly expressed R . " o ) ) :
Major . ; . ; ) ; . ) e Significant or critical Material” as defined under the financial year and
intervention required days. Component of BCP e Regional or state wide negative media attention - :
f assets are unusable for SA Environment Act 1993 possibly beyond
Increased overall workforce action may be needed. (weeks) weeks Section 5 (3)(a)
absenteeism e Major breach of legislation / regulation, major e Maiori :
o } e ’ . e . ajor impact on business Damage to flora and fauna . )
Slgplﬁcant impact on morale or Iltlglathn, noncom_pllanc_:e with legislation / regulation operations requires significant period of e Tonote: $2m is
business e Maijor internal policy failure recovery approx. 5% of rate
revenue
Injuries requiring medical Seyere temporar_y_damage over
attention / hospitalisation e  Sectional community impacts and concerns publicly Ir'g:::g.:tr.g?] requiring extensive High i ial | /
Short term disablement expressed (days) e Arange of assets, Medic;I tlreatment required * e '9 osmraenfl.e:n oasst
Threats of industrial action, any e  Moderate Interruption to e Negative media attention and public interest (days) including some significant “Potential’ as def'nec? nder the bé?we:n $1BOE and
Moderate impact can be absorbed short service delivery. Customer e Loss of confidence by the community in Council assets, are unusable for SAEn I'ronment IAct 1393 $1m or 2.5% of rate
term impact up to 48 hrs. Partial processes / staff / councillors weeks Sectioxls @) revenue o
Increased business area BCP action may be needed e  Moderate breach of legislation / regulation, major e Moderate impact on Impact on flora or fauna is e May impact beyond
workforce absenteeism litigation, noncompliance with legislation / regulation business operations p Y Imp: ey
. . . recoverable over 6 to 12 month current financial year
Short term effect on morale and e Moderate internal policy failure iod and polluti )
business period and pollution requires
physical removal
e Medium financial loss
Injuries requiring first aid I'Lir:lp;rreaary damage affecting {):(xgzlr:r;—owap:gt
E?a;TteQ:aﬁigss2$ﬁhuipn;%§tg:|ys) e Local level of community impacts and concern e Anumber of assets are First aid required $100k
9 ogue . . ) e  Some local media or political attention unusable but can be “Nuisance” as defined underthe | ¢  Minor variation to
group required, impact can be e Minor interruption to a service ional 5 - . ! | ithi | A budget f t
Minor absorbed through normal activity with minimal impact to e Occasiona onge off negative medlan attention :_ep a;ced within acceptable SA E_nwronment Act 1993 flu ge! Ior curren
Increased team workforce customers/business *  Complex I.egal issues need addressing, imeframes Section 5 M inancial year
absenteeism noncompliance and breaches e Minimal disruption to Some minor adverse effects on
. . e Minor internal policy failure business operations few species / ecosystem can be i ,
Negligible shqrt term impact on contained and reversed in the . To not_e. $45k is
morale or business short term financial materiality
threshold for 2016/17
e Isolated local community or resident’s issue based Minor temporary damage that
Incident with or without minor concerns . - porary 9
S . - . ) e Assets receive minimal normal practice can rectify . ) .
injury; first aid only e Insignificant int tion t e  Minimal local complaints or negative commentary on damage or are onl No iniuries e Negligible financial
L Dialogue with industrial group nsignificant interruption to a Council’s website (less than 3 people) ge or ar Y , . ’ loss — impact <$10k
Insignificant mav be required. negligible service — no impact to e No media or political attention temporarily unavailable Can be reversed immediately e Noimpact on current
impyact 4 neg9 customers/business e Legalissues lr)nana ed by routine procedures, minor *  Noreal disruption to “Nuisance” as defined under the financipal year
No impact on morale or business nogcompliance anc?brea)::hes ’ business operations 2A ItEinxirson1ment Act 1993
e Minor encroachment on internal policy ection 5 (1)
STEP 3

STEP 2 Likelihood Ratings and Risk Levels
. . q Almost
Rare Unlikely | Possible Likely Certain
<5% 5% -30% (31% -70%| 71% -90% | 91% - 100%
probability | probability [probability| probability | probability
. |Could occur| Annually: |, . . .
May oceurin = e Likely to bl-;i\nnually. Fre.quently.
exceptional |, " Likely to Likely to
circumstanc S de RS oSt occur twice | occur most
than least once
es a year weeks
annually a year
Medium | Medium High High
Medium | Medium High High
Medium | Medium High High
Medium | Medium High
Medium | Medium




Item 2.2 - Attachment 4 - Risk Assessment Matrix

Residual Risk Level | Managing Risk — Priority Rating

Add risk to Council’s Risk Register

Undertake detailed research and management planning

Escalate the risk issue immediately to relevant General Manager and CEO
Implement stringent new controls in a detailed risk treatment plan in order to make
risk tolerable

e Closely monitor the control effectiveness at the work area level on an ongoing basis
e Report the risk information to the Audit Committee

e Add risk to Council’s Risk Register
HIGH o Raise the risk issue with the relevant General Manager

e Escalate the risk issue for Management’s attention or action

o Closely monitor the control effectiveness at the work area level on an ongoing basis
o Validate existing controls with appropriate evidence
Report the risk information to the Audit Committee

Add risk to Council’s Risk Register

May be tolerated

Manage the risk within the business function by the position responsible for process
Existing controls must be effective and if required additional mitigation action is to be
effectively implemented

MEDIUM

e Add risk to Council’s Risk Register

LOW e May be tolerated

o Undertake localised risk management & actions (if required), consequences are dealt
with by routine operations

¢ Maintain regime of continuous improvement
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DECISION REPORT

REPORT TITLE: 2018-2019 GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS
ITEM NUMBER: 2.3

DATE OF MEETING:

11 NOVEMBER 2019

AUTHOR: MICK WETHERALL

JOB TITLE: ACTING MANAGER FINANCE &
PROCUREMENT

ATTACHMENTS: 1. CITY OF UNLEY'S 2018-19 GENERAL

PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.  FINANCIAL CONTROLS REVIEW:
INTERIM MANAGEMENT LETTER -
GALPINS

3. AUDIT COMPLETION REPORT

4. STATEMENT OF INDEPENDENCE BY
AUDITOR

5. CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR
INDEPENDENCE

6. CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY
AUTHORITY GENERAL PURPOSE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR 2018-19

7. BROWN HILL AND KESWICK CREEK'S
STORMWATER BOARD GENERAL
PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR 2018-19

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The 2018-19 General Purpose Financial Statements have now been
prepared and are attached for Members’ information and review. The
Statements have been prepared in accordance with the Australian
Accounting Standards and the SA Local Government Model Financial
Statements as prescribed in the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011.

The statements are now presented to the Audit Committee for due
consideration and recommendation to Council that they present fairly the
state of affairs of the Council for the 2018-19 reporting period.
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RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

2. Having reviewed the City of Unley’s 2018-19 General Purpose
Financial Statements, contained in Attachment 1 and External
Auditor, Galpins, Audit Completion Report contained in Attachment
2, the Audit Committee considers that the 2018-19 General
Purpose Financial Statements present fairly the state of affairs of
Council and recommends presentation to Council for endorsement
on 25 November 2019.

3. The City of Unley’'s 2018-19 General Purpose Financial
Statements, contained in Attachment 1, be certified by the Chief
Executive Officer and the Mayor.

4. The Certification of Auditor Independence contained in Attachment
5 be noted by Council and be certified by the Chief Executive
Officer and the Presiding Member of the Audit Committee.

5. The Centennial Park Cemetery Authority General Purpose
Financial Statements for 2018-19, signed by Centennial Park’s
External Auditor and contained in Attachment 6, be noted.

6. The Brown Hill and Keswick Creek’s Stormwater Board General
Purpose Financial Statements for 2018-19, signed by the
subsidiaries External Auditor and contained in Attachment 7 be
noted.

RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES/POLICIES

4. Civic Leadership
4.1 We have strong leadership and governance.

BACKGROUND

The 2018-19 General Purpose Financial Statements have now been
prepared are attached for Members’ information and review. They have
been prepared in accordance with the Australian Accounting Standards
and the SA Local Government Model Financial Statements as prescribed
in the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011. A
copy of the Financial Statements are provided as Attachment 1 to this
Report.

Attachment 1
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In accordance with Section 126(4)(a) of the Local Government Act 1999,
the Audit Committee has a responsibility to review the Financial
Statements to be satisfied that they present fairly the state of affairs of
Council.

Galpins conducted an interim audit in May 2019 on the Financial Internal
Controls, their findings were produced in the Interim Management Letter.

Attachment 2

Council’'s external auditor, Galpins have provided their 2018-19 Audit
Completion Report and have indicated that, subject to completion of the
identified procedural matters, their Audit Reports in relation to the
Financial Statements and Internal Controls will be signed without
reference to any qualification.

Attachment 3
DISCUSSION

The 2018-19 General Purpose Financial Statements are attached for the
Committee’s information and review.

Attachment 1

As part of the interim external audit process, the majority of key internal
controls reviewed were in place and operating effectively (78 out of 100
core controls reviewed). Management has provided their response to
Galpins prioritising the high, moderate and low risk findings, summarised
as follows:

e High (I) Item: Management will be implementing formal reviews on a
regular basis

e Moderate (17) ltems: Document usage and processing systems will be
reviewed for a more consistent compliance.

e Low (4) Iltems: Recommendations were noted and improvements are
ongoing.

A copy of the Financial Controls Review: Interim Management Letter is
provided as Attachment 2.

Aftachment 2

It is proposed that the final signed copy will be presented at the Council
meeting on 25 November 2019 for endorsement.

The following summary is provided in relation to the General Purpose
Financial Statements:
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5.1 Statement of Comprehensive Income

The Statement of Comprehensive income shows a net surplus (including
the joint ventures Centennial Park and Brown Hill and Keswick Creek) of
$5.96M for 2018-19 compared with $4.9M in the previous year.

Statement of Comprehensive kR R Al

Income $000s $000s $000s

Council Operating Surplus 4,601 3,890 711
Centennial Park Net gain 102 82 20
Brown Hill Keswick Creek Net gain 43 49 (6)
Net Operating Surplus 4,746 4,021 725
Net Surplus 5,960 4,881 1,079
Other Comprehensive Income 386 (39,172) 39,558
Total Comprehensive Income 6,346 (34,291) 40,637

As shown in the table above, Council's Net Operating Surplus has
increased from the previous year by $725K. This improvement is due to
the items explained below:

For the reporting period Council’'s operating revenue increased by $2.43M
(5.0%) whilst expenditure increased by $1.71M (3.8%). Other than the
change in timing of the Financial Assistance Grant, other key movements
from 2018-19 include:

Income:

e Rate revenue increase of $1.33M, reflecting the general rates
increase of 2.8% and rates growth of 0.5%. (refer Note 2a in the
Financial Statements).

e Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions have increased $1.08M,
this is attributable to the receipt of grants for the King William Road
redevelopment, $700K, and the Daily Moves Program $248K.

e Reimbursements have increased by $112K mainly due to the City of
Walkerville contracting Unley Council for the supply of a regulatory
officer for parking management.

e Other Income has decreased by $226K for 2018-19. This is due to a
reduction of $179K in the value of insurance claim revenue and a
$42K contribution from the EPA received in 2017/18 not replicated
in 2018/19 for the Rain Garden Project.

Expenditure:

e Employee costs have increased by $410K which is comparable
with the provisions in the Enterprise Bargaining Agreements.

e Materials, contracts and other expenses have increased by $334K
or 1.67% over the year which is in line with the CPI. Savings were
achieved in IT, software licensing and in consultancy costs. These
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savings were offset by increased waste disposal costs due to
China’s ban on accepting recyclables, increased temporary staff
and maintenance contracts.

e An increase in the cost of depreciation of $1.03M across all asset
categories and particularly as a result of the capitalisation of
streetscape developments, including Goodwood Road Reserves
and Open Space and several IT projects.

e A decrease in finance costs of $64K has occurred as a result of
lower use of the cash advance facility during the year and no
requirement to access new borrowings.

5.2 Statement of Financial Position

The Statement of Financial Position discloses the total assets, total
liabilities and total Council Equity of Council at the end of the reporting
period. As at 30 June 2019 Council held net assets totalling $513M
compared with $506M for the previous year, representing an increase
in total equity of $7.0M.

This increase in equity is due to the following movements:
Assets:

e Council experienced only minor increases in its year end balances
for cash, trade and other receivables totalling $451K.

e An increase of $1.4M in equity accounted joint venture assets was
achieved due to the Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater
Board increasing its activities since establishment in 2018.

e An increase of $6.65M in Infrastructure, Property, Plant and
Equipment assets which reflects the increase in capital
expenditure, particularly for projects such as King William Road
redevelopment, Unley Oval Grandstand redevelopment and
investment in major plant.

Liabilities:
e An increase of $4.74M in Trade and Other Payables related to an
increase in Goods and Services (outstanding creditors), payments

received in advance, accrued expenses and current employee
entitlements.

e Council borrowings decreased by $2.67M to $2.51M as at 30 June
2019. Higher repayments were achieved and new borrowings were
not required due to some capital work delays.

Statement of Financial Position A= LTI
$000 $000
Total Assets 532,673 524,217 8,456
Total Liabilities 19,704 17,621 2,083
Net Assets 512,969 506,596 6,373
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5.3 Cash Flow Statement

Council generated $17.6M from its Operating Activities during the
financial year compared to $13.7M during 2017-18. Details of how this
reconciles with the net surplus and changes in net assets are shown in
Note 11 of the Financial Statements.

During the year, Council spent $16.1M on the construction and
purchase of assets compared to $11.1M in 2017-18. (refer Note 7a of
the Financial Statements). Council also reduced borrowings by $269K
compared to $2.21M reduction in 2017-18.

As a result, the Cash Flow Statement shows an increase in cash held
of $2.61M.

5.4 Financial Key Performance Indicators

The key financial indicators are summarised and discussed below, and
are also included as ‘Note 15 Financial Indicators of the Financial
Statements.

Financial Indicators 2018-19 2017-18 Adopted Target
$°000 $°000
Operating Surplus 4,746 4,021
Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio* 9% 7% 5%
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio 28% 26% <80%
Asset Renewal Funding Ratio 139% 84% 100% over
10 years

*The Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio removes the distortion of Federal
Government advance payments made in 2018-19.

The Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with
Information Paper 9 — Local Government Financial Indicators prepared
as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for the Local
Government Association of South Australia.

Council’'s Operating Surplus Ratio and Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
continue to perform better than Council adopted targets whilst the
Asset Renewal Funding Ratio on average performs above the Council
adopted target. These results suggest that Council has positioned itself
to continue to remain financially sustainable. Notwithstanding this
Council will continue to review and monitor future financial results and
its financial position in conjunction with its Long Term Financial Plan
(LTFP).
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5.5 Audit Opinion

The role of the external auditor is to provide an audit opinion to council
with respect to the audited financial statements.

In addition, the external auditor is required to provide an opinion on the
compliance of the Council with the requirements of Section 125 of the
Local Government Act 1999 in relation to the Internal Controls
established by the Council. These controls relate to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of
property and incurring of liabilities have been conducted properly and
in accordance with law in all material respects.

The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an
adequate system of internal controls, in accordance with Section 125
of the Local Government Act 1999.

The Auditor procedures included assessing the controls of Council
based on the criteria in the Better Practice Model — Internal Financial
Controls.

The external auditor, Mr. Muhlhausler has completed the audit of the
financial statements and in his report on particular matters arising from
the audit (Audit Completion report) has indicated that subject to
completion of the remaining outstanding matters, Galpins anticipate
issuing unqualified opinions in relation to the financial statements and
internal controls.

Attachment 3

The final audit clearance is subject to the following:

¢ the required letters of representation being signed by the relevant
parties, and

e receipt of the General Purpose Financial Statements certified by
Council’'s Mayor and Chief Executive Officer subsequent to the
Audit Committee meeting on 11 November 2019.

5.6 Certification Statement of Independence of Council Auditor

Regulation 22 (5) of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 requires the auditor of a Council to provide a written
statement attesting to their independence. Council’s Auditor, Galpins
have provided their proposed Statement of Audit Independence in the
Annual Audit Completion report, as prescribed in the Regulations.

Attachment 4

Regulation 21 (2) of the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 requires the Council’'s Chief Executive Officer and
the Presiding Member of the Audit Committee to provide a statement,
on an annual basis, that the Council Auditor is independent of the
Council for the relevant financial year.

Attachment 5
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5.7 Centennial Park Cemetery Authority Financial Statements

A copy of Centennial Park Cemetery Authority’s (CPCA) financial
statements for 2018-19 is attached for information.

Attachment 6

The financial statements reflect a Net Surplus of $204K for the
reporting period compared to $117K for the previous year. Council’s
share of this result is $102K or 50%.

The financial statements reflect Net Assets of $31.3M as at 30 June
2019. This represents an increase of $238K for the reporting period.
The equity accounted value of CPCA reflected in the City of Unley’s
Statement of Financial Position is $15.6M compared to $15.5M for the
previous year.

5.8 Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board Financial
Statements

A copy of the Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
(BHKC) financial statements for 2018-19 is attached for information.

Attachment 7

The BHKC Board was established on 27 February 2018 by Gazettal,
and is under the control of the cities of Adelaide, Burnside, Unley,
Mitcham and West Torrens.

The financial statements reflect a Net Surplus of $215K for the
reporting period compared to $243K for the previous year. Council’s
share of this result is $43K or 20%.

The financial statements reflect Net Assets of $6.1M as at 30 June
2019. This represents an increase of $5.9M for the reporting period
which is reflective of the entity increasing its activities since its recent
inception. Council’s share of equity accounted value of BHKC reflected
in the City of Unley’s Statement of Financial Position is $1.2M
compared to $49K for the previous year.

ANALYSIS OF OPTIONS

Option 1 —

1. The report be received.

2. Having reviewed the City of Unley’s 2018-19 General Purpose
Financial Statements, contained in Attachment 1 and External
Auditor, Galpins, Audit Completion Report contained in Attachment
2, the Audit Committee considers that the 2018-19 General
Purpose Financial Statements present fairly the state of affairs of
Council and recommends presentation to Council for endorsement
on 25 November 2019.

Page 72 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



. The City of Unley's 2018-19 General Purpose Financial
Statements, contained in Attachment 1, be certified by the Chief
Executive Officer and the Mayor.

. The Certification of Auditor Independence contained in Attachment
5 be noted by Council and be certified by the Chief Executive
Officer and the Presiding Member of the Audit Committee.

. The Centennial Park Cemetery Authority General Purpose
Financial Statements for 2018-19, signed by Centennial Park’s
External Auditor and contained in Attachment 6, be noted.

. The Brown Hill and Keswick Creek's Stormwater Board General

Purpose Financial Statements for 2018-19, signed by the
subsidiaries External Auditor and contained in Attachment 7 be
noted.

In accordance with Section 126(4) of the Local Government Act
1999 the Audit Committee needs to review the General Purpose
Financial Statements 2018-19 and be satisfied that they present
fairly the state of affairs of Council in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1999, the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 and Australian Accounting
Standards.

Council will then be presented with the General Purpose Financial
Statements at its November Council meeting for endorsement and,
in accordance with legislation, a copy of the General Purpose
Financial Statements will be sent to the Minister for Local
Government and the SA Local Government Grants Commission.

The 2018-19 financial result is pleasing; Council continues to
demonstrate that it is well positioned to continue to be financially
sustainable into the future. Council will continue to review and
monitor future financial results and its financial position in
conjunction with its Long Term Financial Plan (LTFP).

Option 2 —

The Audit Committee advises that it has reviewed the annual
General Purpose Financial Statements of the Council for the
financial year ended 30 June 2019 and is not satisfied that they
present fairly the state of affairs of Council and require further
review before presentation to Council.

As a result, this may delay the endorsement of the 2018-19 General
Purpose Financial Statements by Council and will impact on
Council’s legislative requirements in providing signed financial
statements to the Minister for Local Government and the SA Local
Government Grants Commission by 30 November 2019.
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7. RECOMMENDED OPTION

Option 1 is the recommended option.

8. POLICY IMPLICATIONS

There are no policy implications associated with this report.

9. REPORT CONSULTATION

Whilst there has been no direct consultation required in the preparation of
the report, considerable consultation with Council’s external auditors,
Galpins, has been undertaken in the preparation of General Purpoase
Financial Statements.

10. REPORT AUTHORISERS

Name Title

Nicola Tinning General Manager, Business Support & Improvement
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The City of Unley

GENERAL PURPOSE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
for the year ended 30 June 2019

PRy !

Our City is recognised for its vibrant community spirit, % {
quality lifestyle choices, diversity, business strength and I( /
innovative leadership.
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The City of Unley

General Purpose Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019
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The City of Unley

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Certification of Financial Statements

We have been authorised by the Councll to certify the financial statements in their final form.

In our opinion:

* the accompanying financial statements comply with the Local Government Act 1999, Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and Australian Accounting Standards,

* the financial stalements present a true and fair view of the Council's financial position at 30 June
2019 and the results of its operations and cash flows for the financial year,

* internal controls implemented by the Council provide a reasonable assurance that the Council's
financial records are complete, accurate and reliable and were effective throughout the financial year,

* the financial statements accurately reflect the Council's accounting and other records.

Peter Tsokas Michael Hewitson
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER MAYOR
Date:
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The City of Unley

Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2019

$'000 Notes 2019 2018
Income

Rates Revenues 2a 41,336 40,010
Statutory Charges 2b 1,593 1,542
User Charges 2c 1,826 1,755
Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 29 4,713 3,631
Investment Income 2d 16 14
Reimbursements 2e 535 423
Other Income 2 714 940
Net Gain - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 19 145 131
Total Income 50,878 48,446
Expenses

Employee Costs 3a 16,506 16,186
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 3b 20,337 20,003
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 3 9,038 8,011
Finance Cosls 3d 161 225
Total Expenses 46,132 44,425
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 4,746 4,021
Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments 4 69 62
Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assels 29 1,145 798
Net Surplus / (Deficit) * 5,960 4,881
Other Comprehensive Income

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to operating resuit

Changes in Revaluation Surplus - |,PP&E 8a - (39,198)
Share of Other Comprehensive Income - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 19 386 26
Total Other Comprehensive Income 386 (39,172)
Total Comprehensive Income 6,346 (34,291)

' Transferred to Statement of Changes in Equity
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The City of Unley

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2019

$ '000 Notes 2019 2018
ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and Cash Equivalents 5a 2,771 3,107
Trade & Other Receivables 5b 2,681 1,884
Other Financial Assets 5¢ 2 12
Total Current Assets 5,454 5,003
Non-Current Assets

Financial Assets 6a 8 g
Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses 6b 16,930 15,571
Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment Ta 510,281 503,634
Total Non-Current Assets 527,219 519,214
TOTAL ASSETS 532,673 524,217
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables Ba 13,104 8,361
Borrowings 8b 242 3,619
Provisions Bc 3,730 3,625
Total Current Liabilities 17,076 15,605
Non-Current Liabllities

Borrowings 8b 2,271 1,668
Provisions 8¢ 357 448
Total Non-Current Liabilities 2,628 2,016
TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,704 17,621
Net Assets 512,969 506,596
EQUITY

Accumulated Surplus 147,002 145,160
Asset Revaluation Reserves 9a 365,711 361,203
Other Reserves ob 256 234
Total Council Equity 512,969 506,596
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The City of Unley
Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 30 June 2019
Asset

Accumulated Revaluation Other Total
$'000 Notes Surplus Reserve  Reserves Equity
2019
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 145,159 361,203 234 506,596
Restated Opening Balance 145,159 361,203 234 506,596
a. Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 5,960 - - 5,960
b. Other Comprehensive Income
- Share of OCI - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 19 386 - - 386
- Other Equity Adjustmants - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 19 5 . - 5
- Other Movements - Carpark and tree funds - - 22 22
Other Comprehensive Income 391 - 22 413
Total Comprehensive Income 6,351 - 22 6,373
f. Transfers between Reserves 9a (4,508) 4,508 - .
Balance at the end of period 147,002 365,711 256 512,969
2018
Balance at the end of previous reporting period 140,252 400,401 219 540,872
a. Net Surplus / (Deficit) for Year 4,881 - 4,881
b. Other Comprehensive Income
- Gain (Loss) on Revaluation of |, PP&E Ta - (39,198) - (39,198)
- Share of OCI - Equity Accounted Council Businesses 19 26 - - 26
- Other Movements - Carpark and tree funds - - 15 15
Other Comprehensive Income 26 (39,198) 15 (39,157)
Total Comprehensive Income 4,907 (39,198) 15 (34,276)
Balance at the end of period 145,159 361,203 234 506,596
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The City of Unley

Statement of Cash Flows

for the year ended 30 June 2019

$ '000 Notes 2019 2018
Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts

Operating Receipts 54,399 54,288

Investment Receipts 16 14

Payments

Operating Payments to Suppliers and Employees (36,616) (40,353)
Finance Payments (177) (278)
Neat Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 11b 17,622 13,671

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Receipts

Amounts Received Specifically for New/Upgraded Assets 1,145 708

Sale of Replaced Assets 509 922

Repayments of Loans by Community Groups 11 9

Payments

Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets (12,567) (7,654)
Expenditure on New/Upgraded Assets (3,558) (3,463)
Capital Contributed to Equity Accounted Council Businesses (823) -

Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities (15,283) (9,388)
Cash Flows from Financing Activities

Receipts

Proceeds from Borrowings 270 -

Payments

Repayments of Borrowings - (2,211)
Repayment of Bonds & Deposits (1) (2)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities 269 (2,213)
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held 2,608 2,070

plus: Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period 1 157 (1,913)
Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period 1 2,765 157

Page 81 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019




Item 2.3 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2018-19 General Purpose Financial Statements

The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Contents of the Notes accompanying the Financial Statements

Note Details
1 Significant Accounting Policies
2 Income
3 Expenses
4 Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments
Current Assets
5a  Cash & Cash Equivalents
5b Trade & Other Receivables
5¢  Other Financial Assets (Investments)
Non-Current Assets
6a  Financial Assets
6b  Equity Accounted Investments in Council's Businesses
Fixed Assets
7a Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
7b  Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment
Liabilities
8a Trade & Other Payables
8b Borrowings
8¢  Provisions
Reserves
9a  Asset Revaluation Reserve
9b  Other Reserves
10  Assets Subject to Restrictions
11 Reconciliation to Statement of Cashflows
12a Functions
12b Components of Functions
13 Financial Instruments
14  Commitments for Expenditure
15  Financial Indicators
16  Uniform Presentation of Finances
17  Operating Leases
18  Superannuation
19  Interests in Other Entities
20  Non Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations
21 Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet
22 Events After the Balance Sheet Date
23 Related Party Transactions

n/a - not applicable
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City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies adopted by Council
in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements are set out below.

These policies have been consistently applied to all
the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

1 Basis of Preparation

1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting
Standards

This general purpose financial report has been
prepared on a going concern basis using the
historical cost convention in accordance with
Australian Accounting Standards as they apply to
not-for-profit entities, other authoritative
pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South
Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by
certificate under regulation 14 of the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations
2011.

1.2 Historical Cost Convention

Except as stated below, these financial statements
have been prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention.

1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with Australian Accounting Standards requires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates and
requires management to exercise its judgement in
applying Council's accounting policies.

Particular areas involving a high degree of
judgement or complexity include the estimation of
future payments and timing in relation to tip
restoration. Further information in relation to the
estimation of these liabilities are given in the relevant
sections of these Notes.

1.4 Rounding

All amounts in the financial statements have been
rounded to the nearest thousand dollars ($'000).

e ——— e ——— S = -

2 The Local Government Reporting Entity

The City of Unley is incorporated under the South
Australian Local Government Act 1999 and has its
principal place of business at 181 Unley Road,
Unley. These financial statements include the
Council's direct operations and all entities through
which Council controls resources to carry on its
functions. In the process of reporting on the Council
as a single unit, all transactions and balances
between activity areas and controlled entities have
been eliminated.

3 Income Recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Income Is
recognised when the Council obtains control over the
assets comprising the income, or when the amount
due constitutes an enforceable debt, whichever first
OCCUrS.

Where grants, contributions and donations
recognised as incomes during the reporting period
were obtained on the condition that they be
expended in a particular manner or used over a
particular period, and those conditions were
undischarged as at the reporting date, the amounts
subject to those undischarged conditions are
disclosed in these notes. Also disclosed is the
amount of grants, contributions and receivables
recognised as incomes in a previous reporting period
which were obtained in respect of the Council's
operations for the current reporting period.

In recent years the payment of untied financial
assistance grants has varied from the annual
allocation as shown in the table below:

Cash 1
Payment ! Annual | Difference !
201617 $1,745941 |
201718 _ $1,427,527 |

| 2018/19 1 808,917 |

$1,152,315 ]  +§593,626 |
$1,186,184 | +$241,343 |
$1.430,000 | +$378,008

The 2019/20 and 2020/21 Supplementary Local
Road Funding of 375,580 was paid in advance in
June 2019.

Because these grants are untied, the Australian

Accounting Standards require that payments be
recognised upon receipt. Accordingly, the operating
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City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

results of these periods have been distorted
compared to those that would have been reported
had the grants been paid in the year to which they
were allocated.

The Operating Surplus Ratio disclosed in Note 15
has also been calculated after adjusting for the
distortions resulting from the differences between the
actual grants received and the grants entitlements
allocated,

4 Cash, Cash Equivalents and other
Financial Instruments

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible
to cash on hand at Council's option with an
insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity
of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

Receivables for rates and annual charges are
secured over the subject land, and bear interest at
rates determined in accordance with the Local
Government Act 1999. Other receivables are
generally unsecured and do not bear interest.

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date
and adequate allowance made for amounts the
receipt of which is considered doubtful.

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value
at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the
accounting policies applied to financial instruments
forms part of Note 13,

5 Infrastructure, Property, Plant &
Equipment

5.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets
acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost
is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition.

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are
capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and
depreciated as soon as the asset is held “ready for
use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the
assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to
the acquisition, including architects' fees and
engineering design fees and all other costs incurred.

The cost of non-current assets constructed by the
Council includes the cost of all materials used in
construction, direct labour on the project and an
appropriate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead.

5.2 Materiality

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year
are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition
exceeds materiality thresholds established by
Council for each type of asset. In determining (and in
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to
the nature of the asset and its estimated service life.
Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied during
the year are given below. No capitalisation threshold
is applied to the acquisition of land or interests in
land.

Buildings $3,000
Drainage $3,000
Roads, Lanes, Kerb & Watertable $3,000
Pathways $3,000
Traffic & Lighting $3,000
Bridges $3,000
Other Assets $3,000
Recycled Water $3,000
Equipment, Fumiture & Fittings - Other $3,000
Equipment, Fumiture & Fittings - Computers $500
5.3 Subsequent Recognition

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular
basis such that the carrying values are not materially
different from fair value. Significant uncertainties
exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of
asset classes including land, buildings and
associated structures and infrastructure. Further
detail of these uncertainties, and of existing
valuations, methods and valuers are provided at
Note 7.

5.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment assets recognised are systematically
depreciated over their useful lives on a straight-line
basis which, in the opinion of Council, best reflects
the consumption of the service potential embodied in
those assets.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual
values of classes of assels are reviewed annually.
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City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Major depreciation periods for each class of asset
are listed below. Depreciation periods for
infrastructure assets have been estimated based on
the best information available to Council, but
appropriate records covering the entire life cycle of
these assets are not available, and extreme care
should be used in interpreting financial information
based on these estimates.

Equipment, Fumiture & Fittings 1 to 10 years
Buildings 50 years
Building Fit Outs 15 years
Infrastructure:

Roads, Lanes, Kerb & Watertable 20 to 100 years
Pathways 20 to 50 years
Drainage 35 to 100 years
Traffic and Lighting 5 to 20 years
Bridges 50 to 75 years
Recycled Water 5to 100 years
Other Assats 5 to 20 years

5.5 Impairment

Assets whose future economic benefits are not
dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and
where the future economic benefits would be
replaced if Council were deprived thereof, are not
subject to impairment testing.

Other assets that are subject o depreciation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes In circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss
is recognised for the amount by which the asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount
{(which is the higher of the present value of future
cash inflows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is
subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset
against such amount as stands to the credit of that
class of assets in Asset Revaluation Reserve, any
excess being recognised as an expense.

5.6 Borrowing Costs

Borrowing costs in relation to qualifying assets (net
of offsetting investment revenue) have been
capitalised in accordance with AASB 123 “Borrowing
Costs". The amounts of borrowing costs recognised
as an expense or as part of the carrying amount of
qualifying assets are disclosed in Note 3, and the

amount (if any) of interest revenue offset against
borrowing costs in Note 2.

6 Payables
6.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the
supply of goods and services and are recognised as
liabilities when the goods and services are received.
Creditors are normally paid 30 days after the month
of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts.

6.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits

Amounts other than grants received from external
parties in advance of service delivery, and security
deposits held against possible damage to Council
assetls, are recognised as liabilities until the service
is delivered or damage reinstated, or the amount Is
refunded as the case may be,

7 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net
of transaction costs incurred and are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption amount is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings are carried at their principal amounts
which represent the present value of future cash
flows associated with servicing the debt. Interest is
accrued over the period to which it relates, and is
recorded as part of “Payables”.

8 Employee Benefits
8.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilites for employees’ entitlements to salaries,
wages and compensated absences expected to be
paid or settled within 12 months of reporting date are
accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based
oncosts) measured in accordance with AASB 119,

Liabilities for employee benefils not expected to be

paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows
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City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2018

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

(including payroll based oncosts) to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the
reporting date. Present values are calculated using
government guaranteed securities rates with similar
maturity terms,

Weighted avg. discount rate 1.10% (2018, 2.24%)
No accrual is made for sick leave as Council
experience indicates that, on average, sick leave
taken in each reporting period is less than the
entittement accruing in that period, and this
experience is expected to recur in future reporting
periods. Council does not make payment for untaken
sick leave.

8.2 Superannuation

The Council makes employer superannuation
contributions in respect of its employees to the
Statewide Superannuation Scheme. The Scheme
has two types of membership, each of which is
funded differently. No changes in accounting policy
have occurred during either the current or previous
reporting periods. Details of the accounting policies
applied and Council's involvement with the schemes
are reported in Note 18.

9 Equity Accounted Council Businesses

Council has a 50% share in the regional subsidiary,
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority. Council’'s share
has been recognised in the Financial Statements by
including its share of the net assets within the
Statement of Financial Position. The Change in the
Equity Share, including any asset revaluation, is
disclosed in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income. Details are reported in Note 19.

As a result of changes made to the Charter of
Centennial Park on August 2011, all disiributions
paid to Council are recorded as revenue in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income. Distributions
paid by Centennial Park to Council are regarded as
payments for guaranteeing the liabilities of
Centennial Park and accordingly are treated as an
expense in the Statement of Comprehensive Income
in the Financial Statements of Centennial Park.

Council is party to an agreement with the cities of
Burnside, Mitcham, West Torrens and the
Corporation of the City of Adelaide in relation to the
Brown Hill Keswick Creek Project which is accounted

for under AASB 11 Joint Agreements as a joint
operation. As such each party is responsible for its
own direct costs, and joint assets, revenue and
expenses are shared on the basis set out in the
agreement and Stormwater Management Plan
documentation. Council's share has been recognised
in the Financial Statements by including its share of
joint revenue and expenditure in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income and Council's share of joint
assets within the Statement of Financial Position.
Further details are provided in Note 19.

10 GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting
for the Goods & Services Tax"

= Receivables and Credilors include GST
receivable and payable.

» Except in relation to input taxed activities,
revenues and operating expenditures exclude
GST receivable and payable.

= Non-current assets and capital expenditures
include GST net of any recoupment.

*  Amounts included in the Statement of Cash
Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

11 New accounting standards and UIG
interpretations

In the current year, Council adopted all of the new
and revised Standards and Interpretations issued by
the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB)
that are relevant to its operations and effective for
the current reporting period. The adoption of the
new and revised Standards and Interpretations has
not resulted in any material changes to Council's
accounting policies.

AASB 7 Financial Instruments - Disclosures and
AASB 9 Financial Instruments commenced from 1
July 2018 and have the effect that non-contractual
receivables (e.g. rates & charges) are now freated as
financial instruments. Although the disclosures
made in Note 13 Financial Instruments have
changed, there are no changes to the amounts
disclosed.
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City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

The City of Unley early adopled AASB 15 Revenue
from Contracts with Customers and AASB 1058
Income of Not-for-Profit Entities from the year ended
30 June 2018.

AASB 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and AASB 1058 Income of Nol-for-Profit Entities
determine that amounts received in relation to
contracts with sufficiently specific performance
obligations are recognised as these obligations are
fulfilled.

The early adoption resulted in capital and other
specific purpose grants with sufficiently specific
performance obligations being recognised as a
liability and subsequently recognised progressively
as revenue as the Council satisfies its performance
obligations under the grant.

Grants that are not enforceable and/or not sufficiently
specific and, therefore, do not qualify for deferral
continue to be recognised as revenue as soon as the
Council has control of the fund. Council receives a
number of grants from the Federal Government and
State Government for which there are no sufficiently
specific performance obligations. These grants are
recognised as revenue upon receipt of the fund.

AASB 16 Leases, which will commence from 1 July
2019, requires that the right of use conveyed by
leasing contracts - except leases with a maximum
term of 12 months and leases for non-malerial
amounts - be recognised as a form of Infrastructure,
Property, Plant and Equipment, and that the lease
liability be disclosed as a liability. At 30 June 2018,
Council has no leases to which this treatment will
need to be applied.

Other than AASB 15 and AASB 1058, The City of
Unley has not applied any Australian Accounting
Standards and Interpretations that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

Some Australian Accounting Standards and
interpretations have been issued but are not yet
effective and have nol been early adopted by
Council. Those standards have not been applied in
these financial statements. Council will implement
them when they are effective.

The following list identifies all the new and
amended Australian Accounting Standards, and
Interpretation, that were issued but not yet
effective and have not been early adopted by

Council at the time of compiling these illustrative
statements.

The standards that are not expected to have a
material impact upon Council’'s future financial
statements are:

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019

» AASB 16 Leases
* AASB 16 Leases (Appendix D)

» AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements:
Grantors

* AASB 1059 Service Concession Arrangements:
Grantors (Appendix D)

*« AASB 2016-8 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Australian
:;nplamamaﬁon Guidance for Not-for-Profit
ntities

« AASB 2017-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Transfers of Investment
Property, Annual Improvements 2014-2016
Cycle and Other Amendments

« AASB 2017-4 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards — Uncertainty over Income
Tax Treatments

« AASBE 20176 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation

« AASB 2017-7 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Long-term Interests in
Associates and Joint Ventures

 AASB 2018-1 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards — Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

« AASB 20182 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement

« AASB 20183 Amendments to Australian

Accounting Standards — Reduced Disclosure
Requirements
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City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

e« AASB 2018-4 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Australian
Implementation Guidance for Not-for-Profit
Public Sector Licensors

« AASB 2018-5 Amendments to Australian
Accounting Standards - Deferral of AASB 1059

Effective for annual reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2021
+ AASB 17 Insurance Contracts

e AASB 17 Insurance Contracts (Appendix D)

17 Comparative Figures

To ensure comparability with the current reporting
period's figures, some comparative period line items
and amounts may have been reclassified or
individually reported for the first time within these
financial statements and/or the notes.

18 Disclaimer

Nothing contained within these statements may be
taken to be an admission of any liability to any
person under any circumstance.

Page 88 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019

page 14



Item 2.3 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2018-19 General Purpose Financial Statements

The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2. Income

$'000 2019 2018
(a). Rates Revenues

General Rates

General Rates 40,491 39,150
Less: Mandatory Rebates (912) (870)
Less: Discretionary Rebates, Remissions & Write Offs (68) (56)
Total General Rates 39,511 38,224
Other Rates (Including Service Charges)

Natural Resource Management Levy 1,338 1,289
Separate & Special Rates 323 315
Total Other Rates 1,661 1,604
Other Charges

Penalties for Late Payment 118 114

Legal & Other Costs Recovered 46 68
Total Other Charges 164 182
Total Rates Revenues 41,336 40,010
(b). Statutory Charges

Other Licences, Fees & Fines 1,593 1,542
Total Statutory Charges 1,593 1,542
(c). User Charges

Fees for Services Provided 1,826 1,755
Total User Charges 1,826 1,755
(d). Investment Income

Interest on Investments - -
- Local Government Finance Authority 16 14
Total Investment Income 16 14
(e). Reimbursements

Other 535 423
Total Reimbursements 535 423
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 2. Income (continued)

$'000 Notes 2019 2018
(f). Other Income

Contributions, Rebates and Sundry 714 940
Total Other Income 714 940
(g). Grants, Subsidies, Contributions

Amounts Received Specifically for New or Upgraded Assels 1,145 798
Other Grants, Subsidies and Contributions 4,713 3,631
Total Grants, Subsidies, Contributions 5,858 4,429
The functions to which these grants relate are shown in Note 12.

(i) Sources of grants

Commonwealth Government 2,429 1,969
State Government 2,983 1,660
Other 446 800
Total 5,858 4,429
(ii) Individually Significant ltems

Grant Commission (FAG) Grant Recognised as Income 630 644
Supplementary Local Road Funding Recognised as Income 376 -

In January and June 2019 Council received payment of the first two instaliments of the 2019-20 Financial

Assistance Grant (FAG). As has been done in the previous years, these amounts are recognised as income
upon recelpt. Similarly in June 2018 first two instaliments of 2018-19 grant was paid and recognised as income

in that year.

in addition, the 2019/20 and 2020/21 Supplementary Local Road funding of $375,580 was paid in advance in June 2019,
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 3. Expenses

$ '000 Notes 2019 2018
(a). Employee Costs

Salaries and Wages 13,763 13,791
Employee Leave Expense 2,274 1,968
Superannuation - Defined Contribution Plan Contributions 18 1,435 1,417
Workers' Compensation Insurance 430 441
Less: Capitalised and Distributed Costs (1,306) (1,431)
Total Operating Employee Costs 16,596 16,186
Total Number of Employees (full time equivalent at end of reporting period) 182 178
(b). Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses

(i) Prescribed Expenses

Auditor's Remuneration

- Current Year Audit Fees 19 33
- Other Services 16 -

- Other Auditors - K
Elected Members' Expenses 271 250
Election Expenses 155 -
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 461 323
(ii) Other Materials, Contracts and Expenses

Contracts 4,960 4,596
Waste Contract 3,554 3,321
Maintenance Contracts 3,061 2,763
Legal Expenses 275 303
Levies Paid to Government - NRM levy 1,338 1,285
Parts, Accessories & Consumables 2,837 3,307
Insurance (Workers Compensation, Public Liability, Assets) 609 659
Brownhill Keswick Creek Contributions 158 135
Levies & Taxes 223 246
Other Contributions & Donations 64 44
Printing 50 59
Sitting Fees 38 34
Trader Associations Confributions Kyal 317
Valuation Fees (Property for Rating Purposes) 184 180
Electricity 893 893
Advertising 163 213
Bank Fees & Charges 107 113
Community Program Expenses 578 601
Economic Development Program Expenses 13 24
Community Grants & Sponsorship 203 275
Sundry Materials, Contract & Expenses 247 312
Subtotal - Other Material, Contracts & Expenses 19,876 19,680
Total Materials, Contracts and Other Expenses 20,337 20,003
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 3. Expenses (continued)

$ '000 Notes 2019 2048
(c). Depreciation and Amortisation

Stormwater Drainage 905 882
Roads, Lanes, Kerb & Watertable 2,000 1,916
Pathways 1,240 1,308
Traffic & Lighting 351 308
Bridges 134 133
Equipment, Furniture & Fittings 1,679 1,323
Buildings 1,369 1,327
Recycled Waler 241 241
Other Assets 1,119 573
Total Depreciation and Amortisation 9,038 8,011
(d). Finance Costs

Interest on Loans _ 161 225
Total Finance Costs 161 225
Note 4. Asset Disposal & Fair Value Adjustments

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

(i) Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced

Proceeds from Disposal 509 922
Less: Carrying Amount of Assets Sold (440) (860)
Gain (Loss) on Disposal 69 62
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets 69 62
Note 5. Current Assets

(a). Cash & Cash Equivalents

Cash on Hand at Bank 4 4
Deposits at Call 2,767 3,103
Total Cash & Cash Equivalents 2,771 3,107
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 5. Current Assets (continued)

$ 000 Notes 2019 2018

(b). Trade & Other Receivables

Rates - General & Other 607 572
Accrued Revenues 3 15
Debtors - General 1,815 1,248
Prepayments 256 31
Sundry N _ - 20
Total Trade & Other Receivables 2,681 1,884

(c). Other Financial Assets (Investments)

Loans to Community Organisations 2 12
Total Other Financial Assets (Investments) 2 12
Amounts included in other financial assets that are not expected o be received within
12 months of reporting date are disclosed in Nots 13
Note 6. Non-Current Assets
(a). Financial Assets
Receivables
Loans to Community Organisations 8 9
Total Receivables 8 9
Total Financial Assets 8 9
(b). Equity Accounted Investments in

Council Businesses
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority 19 15,640 15,522
Brown Hill Keswick Creek Board 19 1,290 49
Total Equity Accounted Investments in Council Businesses 16,930 15,571

Within the terminology of Section 43 of the Local Government Act 1999, the Centennial Park Cemetery Trust
Incorporated is a joint controlling authority of the City of Unley and the City of Mitcham each having a 50% interest
in the assets, liabilities and operations of the Authority. The Authority was established in the cemetery industry
and no financial contributions have been made to the Authority in the financial year.

The Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board (the Board) is a Local Government Regional Subsidiary
established under Section 43 of and Schedule 2 to the Local Government Act 1999. The Regional Subsidiary is
under the control of City of Adelaide, City of Burnside, City of Unley, City of Mitcham and City of West Torrens.

The Board was established by a Gazettal dated 27 February 2018. The Board has been established to implement
the construction and maintenance of infrastructure and other measures for the purposes of a stormwater
management plan prepared by the constituent councils and approved by the Stormwater Management Authority.

The City of Unley's investment in the Authorities has been accounted for under the equity method (Note 19).
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Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7a. Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

The City of Unley

Roads, Lanes, Kerb & Watertable
Pathways

Capital Work in Progress
Stormwater Drainage

Traffic & Lighting

Equipmaent, Furmniture & Fittings

$ ‘000
Bridges
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment &
Investment Property

$ '000

Valuation of Assets

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for either
recognition and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a "level”
in the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities thal the entity can access at the
measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Refer to Note 7a for the disclosure of the Fair Value Levels of Infrastructure, Property, Plant and Equipment Assets.

Information on Valuations
Certain land, and the buildings and structures thereon, are shown above as being based on fair value hierarchy
level 2 valuation inputs. They are based on prices for similar assets in an active market, with directly or indirectly

observable adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset.

Valuations of Crown land, community land and land subject to other restrictions on use or disposal, shown above
as being based on fair value hierarchy level 3 valuation inputs, are based on prices for similar assets in an active

market, but include adjustments for specific advantages or disadvantages attaching to the particular asset that are
not directly or indirectly observable in that market, or the number and / or amount of observable adjustments of which

are so great that the valuation is more fairly described as being based on level 3 valuation inputs.

There is no known market for buildings, infrastructure and other assets. These assets are valued at depreciated
current replacement cost. This method involves:

- The determination of the cost to construct the asset (or its modem engineering equivalent) using current prices for
materials and labour, the quantities of each being estimated based on recent experience of this or similar Councils,
or on industry construction guides where these are more appropriate.

- The calculation of the depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction using current estimates
of residual value and useful life under the prime cost depreciation method adopted by Council.

This method has significant inherent uncertainties, relying on estimates of quantities of materials and labour,
residual values and useful lives, and the possibility of changes in prices for materials and labour, and the potential for
development of more efficient construction techniques.
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment &
Investment Property (continued)

$'000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Other Information

At 1 July 2004 upon the transition to AIFRS, Council elected pursuant to AASB 1.D5 to retain a previously established
deemed cost under GAAP as its deemed cost. With subsequent addition at cost, this remains as the basis of
recognition of non-material asset classes.

Upon revaluation, the current new replacement cost and accumulated depreciation are re-stated such that the
difference represents the fair value of the asset deter-mined in accordance with AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement:
acoumulated depreciation is taken to be the difference between current new replacement cost and fair value. In the
case of land, current replacement cost is taken to be the fair value,

Highest and best use
All of Council's non financial assets are considered as being utilised for their highest and best use.

Transition to AASB 13 - Fair Value Measurement
The requirements of AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement have been applied to all valuations undertaken since 1 July
2013 as shown by the valuation dates by individual asset classes below.

Land & Land Improvements

= Date of valuation: 30 June 2018

- Valuer: Public Private Property

- All acquisitions made after the valuation date are recorded at cost.

The following provides a summary of the City of Unley’s asset classes together with the Public Private Property
opinion of the Fair Value Hierachy relevant to each asset group based on the quantum of observable inputs involved
in the valuation relative to observable inputs.

Land : Excluded / Revoked from classification as community land - Level 2 inputs

Land : Community Land classification - Level 3 inputs

Buildings : Market Approach - Level 2 inputs

Buildings : Cost Approach (excluding highly specialised and/or heritage listed Buildings) - Level 2 inputs
Buildings : Cost Approach (inclusive of highly specialised and/or heritage listed Buildings) - Level 3 inputs

Valuations techniques used to measure fair value within Level 2, inciuding a description of the significant input used.
Land : Excluded / Revoked from classification as community land

The valuation of all Excluded / Revoked Land has been undertaken using the Market Approach, more specifically the
Direct Comparison method of valuation and by reference to comparable market data.

Buildings : Market Approach

A valuation technique that uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions involving
identical or comparable assets, liabilities, or a group of assets and liabilities.
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment &
Investment Property (continued)

$ '000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Land & Land Improvements (continued)

Buildings : Cost Approach (excluding highly specialised and/or heritage listed Buildings)

The calculated value is based on Replacement Costs data sourced from the Public Private Property Replacement
Costs Database and/or Rawlinsons Australia Construction Handbook 2017.

Valuation techniques used to measure fair value within Level 3, including details of the significant unobservable
inputs used and the relationships between unobservable inputs and fair value.

[Asset Type Valuation Technique

Land Market Approach using the Direct Comparison Method of valuation by reference to
comparable market data and subsequently adjusted to reflect the level of risk associated
with alienating the Land to make it available for disposal.

Land - Structures  |Market Approach using the Direct Comparison Method of valuation by reference to
comparable market data and subsequently adjusted to reflect the level of risk associated
with alienating the Land to make it available for disposal.

Buildings Cost Approach using the Replacement Costs data sourced from Public Private Property
Replacement Costs Database, recent constructions by local government and/or
Rawlinson's Australia Construction Handbook 2013. The unique nature of such buildings
and the lack of definitive valuation inputs results in some variance to rates adopted.

Council being of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value that is sufficient and reliable to qualify for

recognition, land under roads has not been recognised in these reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the
year is initially recognised at cost, but transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

Estimated future costs of reinstatement of land, capitalised in accordance with AASB 116.16(c), are reviewed annually
(see Note 1) and depreciated over the estimated remaining life of the relevant asset.

Buildings & Other Structures

- Basis of valuation: Fair Value / Market Value / Written down current replacement cost
- Date of valuation: 30 June 2018.

- Valuer: Public, Private, Property PTY LTD.

Infrastructure

Roads, Kerb and Gutter, Footpaths

- Date of valuation: 01 July 2017

- Valuer: Pavement Management Services & Asselic

- Basis of Valuation : Consumption based approach to the valuation of the pavement and surface assets was developed
in order to more closely reflect the life cycle of the assets.

The decrease in the valuation of the network is a result of updating the calculations used to determine depth of the
road and the unit rates used.

- All acquisitions made after the valuation date are recorded at cost.
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment &
Investment Property (continued)

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Infrastructure (continued)

Pathways (Footpaths, Car Parks, Bike Paths)

- Date of valuation: 1 July 2014

- Valuer: IMG

- Basis of valuation: Level 3, please refer to summary table below

- All acquisitions made after the valuation date are recorded at cost.

Drainage (Stormwater Drains & Creeks)

- Date of valuation: 30 June 2017

- Valuer: Tonkin Consulting

- Basis of valuation: Level 3, please refer o summary table below

- All acquisitions made after the valuation date are recorded at cost.

Traffic and Lighting (Traffic Control, Street Lighting, Bus Stops)

- Date of valuation: 30 June 2015

- Valuer: Internal Council valuation

- Basis of valuation: Written down current replacement cost discounted for age and condition
- All acquisitions made after the valuation date are recorded at cosl.

Bridges

- Date of valuation: 30 June 2017

- Valuer: Tonkin Consulting

- Basis of valuation: Level 3, please refer to summary table below

Recycled Water

- Date of valuation: 30 June 2016
- Valuer: Internal Council valuation
- Basis of valuation: Cost

Other Assets (Open Space and Reserve Equipment)

- Date of valuation: 30 June 2017

- Valuer: Calibre

- Basis of valuation: Level 3, please refer to summary table below

- All acquisitions made after the valuation date are recorded at cost.

Valuation Techniques used to measure fair value within Level 3, including details of the significant unobservable
inputs used and the relationships between unobservable inputs and fair value.
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 7b. Valuation of Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment &

Investment Property (continued)

$'000

Valuation of Assets (continued)

Asset Type |Valuation Technique

Infrastructure Depreciated Replacement Cost (DRC) being the current replacement cost on an asset less,

- Pathways where applicable, accumulated depreciation calculated on the basis of such costs 1o reflect the

- Other Assets already consumed or expired future economic benefits of the assets.

Infrastructure Current Replacement Cost (CRC) of the infrastructure asset minus any accumulated

- Bridges depreciation and impairment losses.
Field inspections provided certainty of the type and condition of the assets. However, due to
lack of information on bridge replacement costs at the time of valuation factored have been
applied to industry rates to provide the replacement cost based on the professional judgement
and experience of the Tonkin Consulting engineers.

Infrastructure Current Replacement Cost (CRC) of the infrastructure asset minus any accumulated

= Drains depreciation and impairment losses.

The valuation of assets were based on rates provided by the 2014 Rawlinson's handbook and
rates obtained from Humes.

Note 8. Liabilities

2018 2019 2018 2018
$ '000 Notes Current Non Current Current  Non Current
(a). Trade and Other Payables
Goods & Services 6,788 - 4618
Payments Received in Advance 3,341 - 3,060
Accrued Expenses - Employee Entitiements 710 - 106
Accrued Expenses - Finance Cosls 42 - 58
Accrued Expenses - Other 2,214 - 509
Deposits, Retentions & Bonds 9 - 10
Total Trade and Other Payables 13,104 - 8,361
(b). Borrowings
Bank Overdraft 6 - 91
Short Term Draw Down Facility - - 2,859
Loans 236 2,271 669 1,568
Total Borrowings 242 2,271 3,619 1,568

All interest bearing liabilities are secured over the future

revenues of the Council
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 8. Liabilities (continued)

2019 2019 2018 2018
$ '000 Noles Current Non Current Current  Non Current
(c). Provisions
Employee Entitlements (including oncosts) 3,730 357 3,625 448
Total Provisions 3,730 357 3,625 448
Note 9. Reserves

Increments

$'000 1mizo1s © ) Transfers Impairments 30/6/2019
(a). Asset Revaluation Reserve

Stormwater Drainage 21,760 - - - 21,760
Roads, Lanes, Kerb & Watertable 76,957 - - - 76,957
Pathways 17,668 - - - 17,668
Traffic & Lighting 2,680 - - - 2,680
Bridges 2,453 - - - 2,453
Land 205475 - - - 205,475
Buildings 25,616 - - - 25,616
Recycled Water 847 - - - 847
Other Assets 583 - - - 583
JV's / Associates - Other Comprehensive Income 7,164 - 4,508 - 11,672
Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 361,203 - 4,508 - 365,711
Comparatives 400,401 (39,198) - - 361,203

The transfer of $4,508k is a reclassification of amounts related to Council's share of ownership interest on the
Centennial Park Asset Revaluation Reserve that was previously recorded in Accumulated Surplus.

Tirs to Tfrs from Other

p— — 11712018 a A Movements  30/6/2019
(b). Other Reserves

Carpark Contribution Fund 157 2 - - 159
Urban Tree Fund 30 2 - - 32
Street Tree Amenity Fund 47 18 - - 65
Total Other Reserves 234 22 - - 256
Comparatives 219 15 - - 234
Note 10. Assets Subject to Restrictions
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The nature of some of the City of Unley's assets, and in particular Centennial Park, is such that they have restricted
use either because of legal restrictions, heritage or community expectation so that these assets would continue to
be held for the benefit of the community.
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 11. Reconciliation to Statement of Cash Flows

$'000 Notes 2019 2018
(a). Reconciliation of Cash
Cash Assets comprise highly liquid investments with short periods to
maturity subject to insignificant risk of changes of value. Cash at the
end of the reporting period as shown in the Statement of Cash Flows
is reconciled to the related items in the Balance Sheet as follows:
Total Cash & Equivalent Assets 5 2,771 3,107
Less: Short-Term Borrowings 8 (6) (2,950)
Balances per Statement of Cash Flows 2,765 157
(b). Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash
from Operating Activities
Net Surplus/(Deficit) 5,960 4,881
Non-Cash Items in Income Statements
Depreciation, Amortisation & Impairment 9,038 8,011
Equity Movements in Equity Accounted Investments (Increase)/Decrease (145) (131)
Grants for Capital Acquisitions (Treated as Investing Activity Receipts) (1,145) (798)
Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals (69) (62)
Other 22 -
13,661 11,901
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
Net (Increase)/Decrease in Receivables (797) 499
Net Increase/{Decrease) in Trade & Other Payables 4,744 1,317
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Unpaid Employee Benefits 14 (61)
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Other Liabilities - 15
Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 17,622 13,671
(c). Financing Arrangements
Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the
following lines of credit:
Bank Overdrafts 500 500
Corporate Credit Cards 232 297
LGFA Cash Advance Debenture Facility 12,000 12,000
The bank overdrafi facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 12b. Components of Functions

The activities relating to Council functions are as follows:

OFFICE OF THE CEO

Business & Economic Development Program, Economic Development, Economic Development & Planning,
Governance & Risk, Marketing & Communications, Office of the CEQ, Strategic Projects

CITY DEVELOPMENT

City Development Management, Environmental Initiatives, Operational Services, Property Services, Recreation & Sport
Planning, Strategic Asset Management, Transporation & Traffic, Urban Design, Urban Policy & Planning, Waste
Management

BUSINESS SUPPORT & IMPROVEMENT

Business Support & Improvement Management, Business Systems & Solutions, Corporate Activies, Culture & Business
Capability, Finance & Procurement, Human Resources

CITY SERVICES

Active Aging Program, Animal Management, Arts & Cultural Development, City Services Management, Community Bus
Program, Community Centres, Community Development & Wellbeing Management, Community Events, Community
Grants, Customer Experience, Development Services, Library Services, Parking Enforcement, Public & Environmental
Health, Unley Museum, Unley Swimming Centre, Volunteer Development, Youth Development

Note 13. Financial Instruments

Recognised Financial Instruments

Bank, Deposits at Call, Short Term Deposits Accounting Policy:
Carried at lower of cost and net realisable value; Interest is

recognised when earned.

Terms & Conditions:
Deposits are returning fixed interest rates of 1.5%
(2018: between 1.5% and 2.15%). Short term deposits have an

average maturity of 30 days and an average interest rate of 1.5%
(2018: 30 days and 1.5%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value due to the short term to maturity.
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The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ '000

Recognised Financial Instruments

Receivables Accounting Policy:
Rates & Associated Charges Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts.
(including legals & penalties for late payment) An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed

annually) when collection in full is no longer probable.

Terms & Conditions:

Secured over the subject land, arrears attract interest of 6.35%
(2018: 6.75%). Council is not materially exposed to any individual
debtor, credil risk exposure is concentrated within the

Council's boundaries in the Stale.

Carrying Amount:

Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).
Receivables Accounting Policy:
Fees & Other Charges Carried at nominal values less any allowance for doubtful debts.

An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-assessed
annually) when collection in full is no longer probable.

Terms & Conditions:

Unsecured, and do not bear interest. Council is not materially
exposed to any individual deblor, credit risk exposure is
concentrated within the Council's boundaries,

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value (after deduction of any allowance).
Receivables Accounting Policy:
Other Levels of Government Carried at nominal value.
Terms & Conditions:

Amounts due have been calculated in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the respective programs following
advice of approvals, and do not bear interest. All amounts
are due by Depariments and Agencies of State and Federal
Govemments.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.
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for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 13. Financial Instruments (continued)

$ 000

Recognised Financial Instruments

Liabilities
Creditors and Accruals

Liabilities
Interest Bearing Borrowings

Liabilities
Finance Leases

Accounting Policy:
Liabilities are recognised for amounts to be paid in the future for
goods and services recelved, whether or not billed to the Council.

Terms & Conditions:
Liabilities are normally settled on 30 day terms.

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Accounting Policy:
Carried at the principal amounts. Interest is charged as an
axpense as it accrues.

Terms & Conditions:

Secured over future revenues, borrowings are repayable
(describe basis); interest is charged at fixed (or variable -
describe) rates between 3.6% and 4.0% (2018: 3.6% and 6.7%).

Carrying Amount:
Approximates fair value.

Accounting Policy:
Accounted for in accordance with AASB 117.

Due Due > 1 year Due Total Contractual Carrying
$ '000 < 1 year & <5 years > 5 years Cash Flows Values
2019
Financial Assets
Cash & Equivalents 2,771 - - 2,771 2,77
Receivables 2,425 - - 2,425 2,425
Other Financial Assets 10 - - 10 10
Total Financial Assets 5,206 - - 5,206 5,206
Financial Liabilities
Payables 9,763 = - 9,763 9,763
Current Borrowings 303 - - 303 242
Non-Current Borrowings - 1,186 1,235 2,421 2,271
Total Financial Liabilities 10,066 1,186 1,235 12,487 12,276
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Note 13. Financial Instruments (centinued)

Due Due > 1 year Due Total Contractual Carrying
$ 000 < 1 year & < 5 years > 5 years Cash Flows Values
2018
Einancial Assets
Cash & Equivalents 3,107 E - 3,107 3,107
Receivables 1,853 9 - 1,862 1,853
Other Financial Assets 12 - - 12 -
Total Financial Assets 4,972 9 - 4,981 4,960
Financial Liabilities
Payables 6,547 - - 6,547 5,301
Current Borrowings 3,714 - - 3,714 3,619
Non-Current Borrowings - 1,186 593 1,779 1,568
Total Financial Liabilities 10,261 1,186 593 12,040 10,488
The following inlerest rates were applicable 30 June 2019 30 June 2018
to Council's Borrowings at balance date: Weighted Avg Carrying Weighted Avg Carrying

Interest Rate Value Interest Rate Value
Overdraft 6 91
Other Variable Rates 3.60% 938 3.60% 2,859
Fixed Interest Rates 4.00% 1,575 4.45% 2,237
2,519 5I18'I'
Net Fair Value

All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market for
the financial assets of the Council.

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted. The maximum
credit risk on financial assets of the Council is the carrying amount, net of any allowance for doubtful debts, All Council
investments are made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority and are guaranteed by the SA Government.
Except as detailed in Notes 5 & 6 in relation to individual classes of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the
Council's boundaries, and there is no material exposure to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices. Al
of Council's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market, and hence

neither market risk nor currency risk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that Council will encounter difficuity in meeting obligations with financial liabilities.
In accordance with the model Treasury Mangement Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range of
maturity dates. Council also has available a range of bank overdraft and standby borrowing facilities that it can access.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.
Council has a balance of both fixed and variable interest rate borrowings and investments. Cash flow fluctuations are
mmagadhdisﬂcalyhs&ekhgtumirimiseinmmmmwwbrmhariskaversemanrnar.
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Note 14. Commitments for Expenditure

$ '000 Notes 2019 2018

(a). Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not
recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Infrastructure 16,656 1,436

Other 267 385
16,923 1,821

These expenditures are payable:

Not later than one year 16,923 1,772

Later than one year and not later than 5 years - 49

Later than 5 years - -
16,923 1,821

(b). Other Expenditure Commitments

Other expenditure committed for (excluding inventories) at the reporting
date but not recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Waste Management Services 8,299 971
Other Maintenance Contracts 867 1,605
IT Maintenance Contracts - 92
9,166 2,758
These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year 2,619 2,758
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 6,547 -
Later than 5 years - .
9,166 2,758

The City of Unley was party to a Memorandum of Agreement with the Cities of Adelaide, Burnside and West
Torrens in which the councils together with the City of Mitcham, established primarily for the planning and
construction of flood mitigation infrastructure of a Stormwater Management Plan (SMP) for the Brown Hill and
Keswick Creek catchment and providing for reuse of stormwater where feasible.

Since 2010, the five catchment councils have responded to direction from the Stormwater Management Authority
(SMA) to produce an agreed SMP catering for the critical one in 100 year storm. In 2012 the Councils produced a

SMP which was approved by the SMA and gazetted in March 2013. However the Plan required further
investigations in relation to a flood mitigation desgin solution for upper Brown Hill Creek.

page 18

Page 111 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.3 - Attachment 1 - City of Unley's 2018-19 General Purpose Financial Statements

The City of Unley

Notes to and forming part of the Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Note 14. Commitments for Expenditure (continued)

$ '000 Notes 2019 2018

(b). Other Expenditure Commitments (continued)

Subsequently, the 2016 SMP, updated from the 2012 version and incorporated a solution for the upper Brown Hill
Creek (increasing the creek's flow capacity together with general rehabilitation of the creek) was submitted to the
SMA in March 2016 and was approved. This was gazetted in February 2017. At the same time the State
Government confirmed that it would contribute 50% of the cost, and this offer was accepted by the five catchment
councils. the SMP proposes that the three spheres of government (federal, state and local) will each subscribe
one third of the cost.

Project works under the 2016 SMP have an estimated cost of $140 million and a planned 10 year construction
period. The Councils and the State Government continue to seek Commonwealth assistance as proposed in the
SMP. Unley's share of the local government component is set at 21%, which equates to approximately $15
million based on a 50% local government apportionment.

The Brownhill Kewsick Creeks Storm Water Board was established as a regional subsidiary pursuant to section
43 of Schedule 2 to, the Local Government Act 1999, on 27 February 2018. The Memorandum of Agreement

(MOA) that catered for the relationships between the Councils contained a self-executing provision that
terminated thie MOA on the establishement of the Subsidiary.

Statements for the subsidiary have been prepared for the period between 27 February 2018 and 30 June 2019 to
reflect the activities of the entity. Unley continues to act in an implied agency capacity for the subsidiary.

(c). Finance Lease Commitments

Council has no Finance Leases.
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Note 15. Financial Indicators

Amounts Indicator Prior Periods
$°000 2019 2019 2018 2017

These Financial Indicators have been calculated in accordance with
Information paper 9 - Local Government Financial Indicators prepared as
part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for the Local Government
Assaciation of South Australia.

1. Operating Surplus Ratio

Operating Surplus 4,746
Total Operating Income 50,878 9% 8% 10%

This ratio axpresses the operating surplus as a percentage of lotal
operafing revenue.

2. Net Financial Liabilities Ratio

Net Financial Liabilities 14,242
Total Operating Income 5878 o ao% %

Net Financial Liabilities are defined as tolal liabiies less financial assels
(axcluding equity accounted investments in Council businesses). These are
expressed as a parcentage of total operating revenue.

Adjustments to Ratios

In racent years the Federal Government has made edvance payments prior
to 30th June from future year alfocations of financial assistance grants, as
oxplained in Note 1. These Adjusted Ratios correct for the resulting distortion
in key ratios for each year and provide & more accurale basis for comparisan.

Adjusted Operating Surplus Ratio 9% % 8%

Adjusted Net Financial Liabilities Ratio 28% 26% 32%

3. Asset Renewal Funding Ratio

Net Assel Renewals 12,567
e
Infrastructure & Asset Management Plan required expenditure 9,038 s 8% 116%

Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on
the renewal and replacement of existing assets, and excludes new
capital expendifure on the acquisition of additional asseis.
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Note 16. Uniform Presentation of Finances

$ '000 2019 2018
The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital
investment activities of the Council prepared on a simplified Uniform
Presentation Framework basis.
All Councils in South Australia have agreed to summarise annual budgets
and long-term financial plans on the same basis.
The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’
of financial information, which enables meaningful comparisons of
each Council's finances.
Income 50,878 48,446
less Expenses (46,132) (44,425)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 4,746 4,021
Net Outlays on Existing Assets
Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing Assets (12,567) (7,654)
add back Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 9,038 8,011
add back Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets 509 922
Subtotal (3,020) 1,279
Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets
Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets (3.558) (3,463)
(including Investment Property & Real Estate Developments)
add back Amounts Received Specifically for New and Upgraded Assels 1,145 798
add back Proceeds from Sale of Surplus Assets ) .
(including Investment Property, Real Estate Developments and Non-Current Assets Held for Resale)
Subtotal (2,413) (2,665)
Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year (687) 2,635
Net Financial Liabilities at Beginning of Year (12,565) (15,200)
Net (gain) / loss Joint Ventures & Associates - -
Decrease / (increase) in Other - -
Net Financial Liabilities at End of Year (13,252) (12,565)
Note 17. Operating Leases
Council does not have any Operating Leases
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Note 18. Superannuation

$ '000

The Council makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide Super (formerly
Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of which is funded differently.
Permanent and contract employees of the South Australian Local Government sector with Salarylink benefits prior to
24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the Accumulation section and/or Salarylink. All other employees
(including casuals) have all contributions allocated to the Accumulation section.

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time eamings in accordance with superannuation guarantee
legislation (9.50% in 2018/18; 9.50% in 2017/18). No further liability accrues to the Council as the superannuation

benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the member's
contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes employer
contributions to Salarylink as determined by the Fund’s Trustee based on advice from the appointed Actuary.

The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2017/18) of *superannuation® salary.

In addition, Council makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary time eamings for Salarylink members to their
Accumulation account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink section of the Fund, As such,
assets accumulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed,

as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section’s assets and liabilities are
pooled and are not allocated by each employer, and employees may transfer to another employer within the local
government sector and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets
and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b), Council does not use defined benefit accounting
for these contributions.

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of Willie
Towers Watson as at 30 June 2017. The Trustee has determined that the current funding arrangements are
adequate for the expected Salarylink liabilities. However, future financial and economic circumstances may require
changes to Council's contribution rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes

Council also makes contributions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the “choice of fund®
legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the
employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further liability attaches to the
Council.
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities

Equity Accounted Council Business - Centennial Park

Within the terminology of Section 43 of the Local Government Act 1999, the Centennial Park Cemetery Trust
Incorporated is a joint controlling authority of the City of Unley and the City of Mitcham each having a 50% interest
in the assets, liabilities and operations of the Authority. The Authority was established in the cemetery industry and
no financial contributions have been made to the Authority in the financial year. The City of Unley's investment in
the Authority has been accounted for under the equity method.

Equity Accounted Council Business - Brownhill Keswick Creek

The Brown Hill Kewsick Creeks Stormwater Board was established on the 27 February 2018 under section 43

of the Local Government Act 1999 and it has been recognised as a jointly controlled subsidiary of the City of Unley,
City of Burnside, City of Mitcham, City of Adelaide and City of West Torrens each having a 20% Interest in the asset
liabilities and operations of the Subsidiary. The City of Unley's investment in the subsidiary has been accounted for
under the Equity method.

Al joint ventures and associates are required to prepare Annual Financial Statements that
comply with the SA Local Government Model Financial Statements.

All joint ventures and associates are required to prepare Annual Financial Statements that
comply with the SA Local Government Model Financial Statements.

Council's Share of Net Income Council's Share of Net Assets
2019 2018 2019 2018
Associates 145 131 16,930 15,671
Total 145 131 16,930 15,571
(i) JOINT VENTURES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT OPERATIONS
(a) Carrying Amounts
Name of Entity Principal Activity 2019 2018
Brown Hill Keswick Creek Board Stormwater Management 1,290 49
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority Cemetery Industry 15,640 15,522
Total Carrying Amounts - Joint Ventures & Associates 16,930 15,571
(b) Relevant Interests Interest in Ownership
Operating Share of Proportion of
Result Equity Voting Power
Name of Entity 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Brown Hill Keswick Creek Board 20% 20% 21% 21% 20% 20%
Centennial Park Cemetery Authority 50% 50% 50% 50% 50% 50%
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

$ '000

(c) Movement in Investment in Joint Venture or Associate

Brown Hill Keswick Creek Centennial Park Cemetery
Board Authority
2019 2018 2019 2018
Opening Balance 49 - 15,522 15,414
Share in Operating Result 43 49 102 82
Share in Other Comprehensive Income 370 - 16 26
New Capital Contributions 823 - -
Adjustments to Equity 5 - - -
Councll's Equity Share in the Joint Venture or Associate 1,290 49 15,640 15,522

(d) Summarised Financial Information of the Equity Accounted Business

Brown Hill Keswick Creek Centennial Park Cemetery

Statement of Financial Position Board Authority

2019 2018 2019 2018
Cash and Cash Equivalents 3,967 - 9,713 9,797
Other Current Assets 2,024 - 1,729 1,747
Non-Current Assets 3,209 249 37,192 36,973
Total Assets 9,200 249 48,634 48,517
Current Trade and Other Payables 3,059 6 2,147 2,308
Current Provisions - - 597 534
Non-Current Provisions - - 14,609 14,632
Total Liabilities 3,059 6 17,353 17,474
Net Assets 6,141 243 31,281 31,043

Brown Hill Keswick Creek Centennial Park Cemetery

Statement of Comprehensive Income Board Authority

2019 2018 2019 2018
Other Income 618 407 10,724 10,239
Interest Income 16 - 249 249
Total Income 634 407 10,973 10,488
Employee Costs 235 - 4,646 4,368
Materials, Contracts & Other Expenses 182 164 4,528 4,513
Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 2 - 1,595 1,490
Total Expenses 419 164 10,769 10,371
Operating Result 215 243 204 117
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Note 19. Interests in Other Entities (continued)

$ '000

(d) Summarised Financial Information of the Equity Accounted Business (continued)
Contingent Liabilities of the Associate

Each Member is Jointly and Severally Liable for the Debts of the Operation
- arising from Council's Share of Associate
- arising from Joint and Several Liability of all Members

The Centennial Park Cemetery Authority has contingent liabilities with respect to the redemption of unused
licences in the event that the Authority ceases 1o take any business. The Burial and Cremation Act 2013
mandates the refund of unexercised licences at current prices less a provision for administration, maintenance
and establishment costs. The calculation is determined in the regulations. The contingent liability as at 30 June
2019 is $11,973,510 (2018: $11,927,978). An actual liability will only arise if a claim is made by existing licence
holders in the future. Based on the Board's understanding of the experience of Cemetery operators interstate
when similar legislation was introduced, it is considered that the likelihood of future claims arising which could
have a significant impact on Centennial Park is remote.

Total unused interment rights account for approximately 6.89% (2018: 7.10%) of 47,439 (2018: 46,658) burial
interment rights currently issued.

Total unused interment reights account for appoximately 7.94% (2018: 7.28%) of 39,369 (2017: 38,960) memorial

interment reights currently issued. Once an interment or placement of a monument has occurred a licence cannot
be redeemed.

Note 20. Non-Current Assets Held for Sale & Discontinued Operations

Council does not have any Non-Current Assets Held for Sale or any Discontinued Operations.

Note 21. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet, but knowledge is considered
relevant to the users of the financial report in making and evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce
resources.

1. LAND UNDER ROADS

As reported in the Financial Statements, Council is of the opinion that it is not possible to attribute a value
sufficiently reliably for these assets to qualify for recognition, and accordingly land under roads has not been
recognised in the reports. Land acquired for road purposes during the year is initially recognised at cost, but
transferred to fair value at reporting date, effectively writing off the expenditure.

At reporting date, Council controlied 167.2 km of road reserves of average width 12 metres.
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Note 21. Contingencies & Assets/Liabilities Not Recognised in the Balance Sheet

2. POTENTIAL INSURANCE LOSSES

Council is a multi-purpose organisation providing a large range of building, parks infrastructure, playgrounds and
other facilities accessible to the public. At any time, it is likely that claims will have been made against Council
that remain unsettled.

Council insures against all known insurable risks using a range of insurance policies, each of which is subject to
deductable "insurance excesses", the amount of which varies according fo the class of insurance.

Council has recognised the potential losses arising from claims known at reporting date based on average historical
net cost (including insurance excess) of similar types of claims. Other potential claims not reported to Council may
have existed at reporting date.

3. BANK GUARANTEES
Council does not expect to incur any loss arising from these guarantees.

4. LEGAL MATTERS
Council is the planning consent authority for its area under the Development Act 1993 (as amended). Pursuant to

that Act, certain persons aggrieved by a planning decision of the Council may appeal. It is normal practice that
parties bear their own legal costs. At the date of these reports, Council had notice of 8 appeals against planning
decisions made prior to reporting date. All known costs have been recognised, but the amount of further costs
cannolt be known until the appeals are determined.

Note 22. Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events that occur after the reporting date of 30 June 2019, up to and including the date when the financial
statements are "authorised for issue” have been taken into account in preparing these statements.

Councll has adopted the date of receipt of the Certification of Financial Statements as the appropriate
"authorised for issue” date relating to these General Purpose Financial Statements.

Accordingly, the "authorised for issue” date is 25/11/19.
Council Is aware of the following "non adjusting events" that merit disclosure;
Council is unaware of any material or significant "non adjusting events” that should be disclosed.
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Note 23. Related Party Transactions

$ '000 2019

2018

Key Management Personnel

Transactions with Key Management Personel

The Key Management Personnel of the Council include the Mayor, Councillors,
CEO and certain prescribed officers under section 112 of the Local Government
Act 1999, In all, 24 persons were paid the following lotal compensation:

The compensation paid to Key Management Personnel comprises:
Short-Term Employee Benefits 842
Long-Term Benefits 196
Total

890
165

Amounts paid as direct reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of Council
have not been included above.
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Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of The City of Unley
for the year ended 30 June 2019, the Council's Auditor, Galpins has maintained its independence in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

Peter Tsokas David Powell
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDING MEMBER, AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date:
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Statement by Auditor

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of The City of Unley for the year ended 30 June

2019, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement Is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 .

M
Galpins

Dated this day of 2019.
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Financial Controls Review
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2018/19 Interim Management Letter

Untey

Mount Gambier
233 Com

PO Box 246, Mount Gambier

E: norwood@galpins

www.galpins.com.au
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1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
1.1 Background

During our interim audit we perform procedures to gain an understanding of the internal controls in
place relevant to the financial statements and perform tests of design and effectiveness for these
controls. Based on the results of the control testing, we then assess the audit risks to define the
extent and nature of our substantive procedures (e.g. inspection of documents, recalculation,
reconciliation, etc) for our final visit.

In addition to an opinion on the financial statements, section 129 of the Local Government Act 1999
requires auditors to provide an opinion regarding internal controls of councils. This opinion focuses
on council’s obligations under s125 of the Local Government Act 1999:

“A council must ensure that appropriate policies, practices and procedures of internal control
are implemented and maintained in order to assist the council to carry out its activities in an
efficient and orderly manner to achieve its objectives, to ensure adherence to management
policies, to safeguard the council’s assets, and to secure (as far as possible) the accuracy and
reliability of council records.”

The audit opinion is restricted per s129 of the Act to the application of 5125 as it relates to financial
internal controls, specifically the controls exercised by the council during the relevant financial year
in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition and disposal of
property and the incurring of liabilities.

To assist the Council in addressing the requirements of s129, we have reviewed a prioritised list of
controls from the better practice model based on our initial audit risk assessment. Further details
about our scope can be found in item 1.2 of this report.

1.2 Objectives and scope

The objectives of our interim audit were to:

= understand Council’s business, business cycles and processes relevant to the financial
statements

= understand the internal controls in place for the areas we consider critical for the audit
of the financial statements

= design internal controls tests for the internal controls identified

= perform the internal controls tests to determine the final risks of material
misstatements in the financial statements to be addressed in our final audit

= review a prioritised list of internal financial controls we consider critical for the purpose
of issuing a controls opinion.

The scope of our audit included a review of internal controls we consider key controls to be in place
for the purpose of addressing the requirements of s129.
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These key internal controls consist of a prioritised list of controls from the better practice model.
This list was defined based on our risk assessment to determine the key business cycles, and key
risks within these business cycles, that we understand should be the focus of the Council’s control
self-assessment.

The identification of key core controls and key business risks included the following risk assessment
procedures:

Risk review — A review of Council’s inherent risk assessment for internal financial controls.

Financial statement review — A high level financial statement review performed to identify key
accounts and transaction streams.

Internal / external audit results review — The findings and recommendations of internal / external
financial audits are reviewed to identify known areas of weakness, and areas known to be attracting
audit attention.

The key core controls for the following key business cycles have been identified as critical for the
purpose of issuing a controls opinion this financial year:

= Purchasing and Procurement/Contracting
*  Fixed Assets

= General Ledger

= Accounts Payable

= Rates/ Rates Rebates

= Payroll

®*  Receipting

*  (Credit Cards

=  Banking

= Debtors

We have included a list of key controls identified by the audit for these business cycles as an
appendix to this report (see Appendix 1). This list does not represent a complete population of
internal controls that the Council should have in place. There is an expectation that controls not in
this list will still exist and be operating effectively within Council.

The list of controls is only intended to be a guide for Council to prioritise its resourcing in readiness
for the audit opinion, and for the ongoing monitoring of internal controls i.e. it is a risk based listing
of controls which may be desirable for Council to include in its ongoing monitoring program for
internal financial controls.

The list should not be considered a minimum standard — rather, it is a starting reference point for
Council to consider. It is expected that Council will have performed a risk assessment of financial
risks, and given consideration to the need to monitor controls that address High / Extreme risks that
may not be included in this listing.
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1.3 Category of findings

In order to assist the Council in establishing the overall level of control effectiveness and prioritising
areas for attention, we have provided an overall assessment of the business cycles for which we
have identified performance improvements opportunities (this report is prepared on an exception
basis).

We assessed each business cycle using our risk assessment which was focused on the risk of finding
material weaknesses which could lead to a modified controls opinion in the 2018/19 financial year.
An overall assessment of the risk of a potential modified audit opinion per business cycle is provided
initem 1.5 of this report.

Detailed findings including the controls tested as per the Better Practice Model, findings and
recommendations are provided in section 2 of this report. The individual findings are also rated to

assist the Council in prioritising corrective actions.

The overall assessment of the risk of non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act 1999
and the related findings and recommendations were rated as follows:

Category Description

High Risk The issue described could lead to a material weakness in the council’s internal
(WEETGEET Tl controls and non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act.

The issue described does not represent a material weakness due to the existence of
compensating controls. However, the failure of the compensating controls or the
existence of any other moderate weakness within the same business cycle may lead
to a material weakness in the council’s internal controls and non-compliance with
5125 of the Local Government Act.

The issue described is a low risk weakness due to the existence of compensating
controls and/or the failure or absence of the internal controls does not impact

Low Risk significantly on the council’s financial risk. However, multiple low-level risk
UWEELGEECEE weakness within the same business cycle may lead to a material weakness in the
council’s internal controls and non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government
Act.

Better
Practice
Weaknesses

The issue described has been included in this report as an opportunity for better
practice.

The Council should also perform its own assessment of priority based not only on audit risks, but
also other risks management considers relevant such as non-compliance with pertinent legislations
and regulations, and reputational risks.
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1.4 Overall review of the council’s internal controls

Overall the Council demonstrated a high level of compliance with the implementation of an internal
control framework consistent with the principles within the Better Practice Model.

During our interim visit we found that the majority of key internal controls reviewed were in place
and were operating effectively (78 out of 100 core controls reviewed). Our audit of the payroll
internal controls is still in progress.

The principles underpinning the model were used by the Council in the identification of its business
cycles, the establishment of its internal controls and the implementation of its financial risk

management processes.

A summary of the results of our review is provided in the table below:

Operating S
Business cycles Controle Effectively 2019 Findings
Reviewed 2019 L

Purchasing & Procurement/Contracting 10 3 -
Fixed Assets 16 13

General Ledger 11 9

Accounts Payable 13 | 10

Rates / Rates Rebates 10 | 8
_Payroll_ 19 |15

Receipting 5 4

Credit Cards 5 5

Banking

Debtors

We recommend that Council prioritises the high and moderate risk findings, as failure in
compensating controls addressing the same risk or existence of multiple moderate weakness within
the same business cycle may lead to a material weakness and non-compliance with s125 of the Local
Government Act.

Audit have concluded that there is a high likelihood of issuing an unmodified controls opinion at the
end of the financial year. This will depend on the Council ensuring that the core controls in place
continue to operate effectively and that the annual internal control activities are performed at year
end.

Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
Interim management letter 2019 7

Page 133 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Galpins

Iltem 2.3 - Attachment 2 - Financial Controls Review: Interim Management Letter - Galpins

The City of Unley

1.5. Summary of findings

Business Cycle
Purchase, Procurement and
Contracting

Findings
2.1.1 Evidence of procurement procedures undertaken were not retained on file for a sample of suppliers

Risk

2.1.2 Absence of formal contracts and agreements for a sample of suppliers

2.1.3 Instances where dispensations from procurement policy were not reported to the Audit and Governance Committee

2.1.4 No declaration of conflict of interest documentation on file for the procurement of a sample of suppliers

2.1.5 TechnologyOne electronic contract register is incomplete

2.1.6 Incomplete purchase orders not followed up and actioned

2.1.7 Instances of invoices paid without purchase orders

Fixed Assets

2.2.1 Asset management plans overdue for review

2.2.2 Instances of assets which were not included in the financial asset register

2.2.3 Assets included in TechnologyOne not linked and/or reconciled to the GIS system.

General Ledger

2.3.1 Absence of formal review of IT users’ access

2.3.2 Absence of formal review of balance sheet reconciliations

2.3.3 Amendments to the structure of the General Ledger framework are not formally reviewed and approved

Accounts Payable

2.4.1 Improvements are necessary in the process of uploading suppliers EFT files into the online banking system

2.4.2 The audit trail of changes to the suppliers’ master files are not formally reviewed by management.

2.4 .3 Suppliers with invalid or cancelled ABNs registrations included in the creditors’ master file

Rates 2.5.1 A report containing rates adjustments performed during the financial year is not independently reviewed
2.5.2 A list of rate rebates and non-rateable properties are not formally reviewed
Payroll 2.6.1 Absence of evidence that payroll reports are independently reviewed
2.6.2 Employee records and information are recorded in a number of different locations L
2.6.3 Absence of appropriate segregation of duties in the processes of adding new employees to CHRIS -
2.6.4 Improvement opportunities in the process of reviewing changes to the payroll master file L
Receipting 2.7.1 Absence of approval of reversal of receipts L
Credit Cards Audit did not find any issue that would represent a risk of non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act N/A
Banking Audit did not find any issue that would represent a risk of non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act N/A
Debtors Audit did not find any issue that would represent a risk of non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act N/A
Control Self-Assessment 2.8.1 Improvements to the internal controls self-assessment process N/A
Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
Interim management letter 2019 8

Page 134 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.3 - Attachment 2 - Financial Controls Review: Interim Management Letter - Galpins

Galpins

The City of Unley

2. DETAILED AUDIT FINDINGS

2.1 PURCHASING AND PROCUREMENT

Control value for money within a consistent framework.

2.1.1 Evidence of procurement procedures undertaken were not retained on file for a sample of suppliers

Council has a Procurement Policy that provides direction on acceptable methods and the process for procurement activities to ensure transparency and

Risk

Council does not obtain value for money in its purchasing and procurement.

Finding

The Procurement Framework requires a tender process and a formal
evaluation for purchases greater than $100,000.

Audit noted that the following evidence of the procurement
procedures undertaken was not retained on file for the suppliers listed
below:

Supplier Cumulative | Evaluation Request Tender
spend in forms* for Tender responses
18/19 from other
suppliers
Supplier 2 $233,620 no yes no
Supplier 3 $126,517 no no no

* Evaluation forms detalling criteria and reason for selecting the suppliers listed above.

Recommendations

All  documents evidencing procurement
procedures undertaken (e.g. request for tender,
tender responses and evaluation forms
detailing the decision made) are retained on
file.

Management Response

Supplier 2 - This tender was undertaken by a
temporary member of staff who had expertise in
ICT tendering. He left the organisation before the
evaluation process had been completed. It was
commenced in November 2017 but awarding of
the contract was put on hold until later in 2018. A
signed copy of the Recommendation Report did
not get returned to the Procurement Officer, so
no contract was prepared. Only unsigned copies
of the evaluation forms are on record and have
been supplied. RFT forms have been supplied.

Supplier 3 - This supplier was engaged without
the knowledge of the Procurement Section, no
documentation is available.

Documentation usage and processing systems
will be reviewed for a more consistent
compliance

Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
Interim management letter 2019

Page 135 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019




Iltem 2.3 - Attachment 2 - Financial Controls Review: Interim Management Letter - Galpins

Galpins

The City of Unley

Control and other relevant policies.

2.1.2 Absence of formal contracts and agreements for a sample of suppliers

Employees must ensure all purchases are in accordance with Council’s Procurement Policy and approved in accordance with the Delegations of Authority

Risk

Council does not obtain value for money in its purchasing and procurement.

Finding

Audit selected suppliers for review based on cumulative spend. Council
could not locate in its records a signed contract for the following
suppliers:

*  Supplier 2 = in 2018/19 the total cumulative spend was

$233,620

* Supplier 3 = in 2018/19 the total cumulative spend was
$126,517

*  Supplier 7 = in 2018/19 the total cumulative spend was

$229,098 - original contract expired on 31 October 2017.

Recommendations

Council ensures that there are formal
agreements in place with suppliers with
significant cumulative spend, and that works
are not commenced prior to signing contracts.

Management Response

Supplier 2 = a contract was not issued, only
purchase orders (see Supplier 2 explanation
above in item 2.1.1)

Supplier 3 = No contract was prepared for this

supplier. (see Supplier 3 explanation above in
item 2.1.1).

Supplier 7 - Although this contract had finished in
2017, contract manager/s advised that there had
been a delay in the work being actioned and
there were a number of variations to be
completed. Also there was a change in contract
managers and the staff in that section had not
picked up that the contract expiry date had
passed. An external prudential report for the
project also failed to identify this problem.

Documentation usage and processing systems
will be reviewed for a more consistent
compliance.
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2.1.3 Instances where dispensations from procurement policy were not reported to the Audit and Governance

Committee

Control value for money within a consistent framework.

Council has a Procurement Policy that provides direction on acceptable methods and the process for procurement activities to ensure transparency and

Risk

Council does not obtain value for money in its purchasing and procurement.

Finding

The procurement policy provides that when there is a dispensation
from the policy for amounts over $100,000, the purchase must be
reported to the next available Audit and Governance Committee
meeting.

Audit performed a review of the Council's register for dispensation
from procurement policy and noted that the following dispensations
were not reported to the next available Audit and Governance
Committee:

*  Supplier 8 - value of purchase - $580,000
*  Supplier 9 — value of purchase - $270,000

Audit acknowledges that the above dispensations were approved by
the CEO.

Recommendations

Ensure that dispensations from the
procurement policy for purchases over
$100,000 are reported to the Audit and

Governance Committee in accordance with

policy requirements.

Management Response

The recommendation is noted.

As there were no savings to report for the period
the Dispensation Report was subsequently
omitted. It has since been included in the 1st
quarter report for 2019/2020. Scheduled to be
held 11 November 2020.
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decision is made when selecting contractors.

2.1.4 No declaration of conflict of interest documentation on file for the procurement of a sample of suppliers

The selection panel is made up of appropriate personnel who have declared any relevant conflict of interest to ensure that informed and objective

Finding

found that there were no conflict of interest declarations signed by the
members of the selection panel for the procurement of the following
suppliers:

*  Supplier 1 - in 2018/19 the total cumulative spend was
$1,085,356.

*  Supplier 5 = in 2018/19 the total cumulative spend was
$374,207.

* Supplier 4 — in 2018/19 the total cumulative spend was
$121,701.

Audit selected a sample of suppliers based on cumulative spend and |

Recommendations

Panel members are required to provide conflict
of interest declarations when assessing a
procurement / tendering process, and records
of these declarations are retained.

Council is not able to demonstrate that all probity issues have been addressed in the Contracting process.

Management Response

Supplier 1 - a search of the ECM Records system
has not located these documents.

Supplier 5 = An outdated Acquisition Plan
template was used for this purchase which did
not include the Declaration of Interest form.
Supplier 4 - there was no tender process
undertaken for this contract, therefore, no
declaration of interest forms were completed.

Documentation usage and processing systems
will be reviewed for a more consistent
compliance.
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Control Council maintains a current contract register.

2.1.5 TechnologyOne electronic contract register is incomplete

Risk

Council is not able to demonstrate that all probity issues have been addressed in the Contracting process.

Finding

Historically, Council has maintained a manual spreadsheet containing
information regarding contracts in place between Council and its
suppliers. During the 2018/19 financial year, Council made a decision to
replace this spreadsheet with an electronic contract register in
TechnologyOne. Council is currently in the process of updating this

new contract register and, as a result, not all current contract
information has been entered in TechnologyOne yet.

Control

Risk

Finding

2.1.6 Incomplete purchase orders not followed up and actioned

There is a process in place to follow up and action incomplete purchase orders.

Recommendations

Audit supports the use of electronic contract
registers and recommends that Council
continues to update the register to ensure that
all current contracts are recorded.

Purchase orders are either recorded inaccurately or not recorded at all.

Recommendations

Management Response

Currently contracts are recorded in Technology

One but there have been issues with the system
50 a backup spreadsheet is maintained until the
problems with Technology One are resolved.

Management Response

TechnologyOne generates reports containing a list of purchase orders
not receipted (i.e. incomplete purchase orders).

As at 29 May 2019, this report indicated a total of $6,921,487 of
purchase orders not receipted. Among these, more than $4 million was
aged over 12 months.

Ensure that incomplete purchase orders are
followed up and actioned.

A system will be established whereby purchasing
officers are notified on a 4 monthly basis of any
incomplete purchase orders for their
attention/action.
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Control and other relevant policies

2.1.7 Instances of invoices paid without purchase orders

Employees must ensure all purchases are in accordance with Council’s Procurement Policy and approved in accordance with the Delegations of Authority

Risk

Council does not obtain value for money in its purchasing and procurement / Purchase of goods and services are made from non-preferred suppliers

Finding

The Procurement framework provides that purchase orders are
required for all purchases over $2,000, unless the purchase is related to
an item described in the list of purchases exempted from purchase
order,

Audit selected a sample of purchases and noted three purchases that
did not have a related purchase order or contract, and that did not fall
into the list of purchases exempted from having a purchase order.

Recommendations

Management investigates non-compliance with
purchase order usage. This could include
reviewing system reports detailing purchase
order usage (e.g. “AP Invoices Entered Without
Purchase Orders”), analysing the nature of non-
compliances and speaking to any repeat
offenders to understand the reasons for non-
compliance.

Depending on the outcome of this review,

Council may determine that:

e additional education and training in the
Policy is warranted to improve compliance;
and/or

e there is an opportunity to amend the policy
on purchase order use to better reflect the
desired use of purchase orders. This could,
for example, include:

o reviewing the low-value item threshold,
below which a purchase order is not
required
updating the list of exemptions for
purchase order use detailed within the
policy.

[&]

Management Response

The recommendation is noted.

Management will investigate the compliance
performance under the Procurement Policy and
Procedures to determine appropriate actions.
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2.2 FIXED ASSETS

2.2.1 Asset management plans overdue for review

Control

Asset Management Plans for all major asset classes are adopted and reviewed by Council as required by the Local Government Act 1999

Risk

Fixed Asset maintenance and/or renewals are inadequately planned

Finding

Recommendations

Management Response

Audit noted the following asset management plans overdue forreview: | Asset management plans are updated and

e Bridges - last adopted in 2012

e Footpath - last adopted in 2011

e Open Space - last adopted in 2008

e Drainage - last adopted in 2008
Kerb & Water - last adopted in 2008
Roads — last adopted in 2008

At minimum, the Local Government Act 1999 requires that council
undertakes a comprehensive review of its asset management plans
within 2 years after each general election of the council.

adopted by Council.

Council has completed a review of the pre-
existing Asset Management Plans during 2018/19
FY and have identified gaps in data quality & data
integrity within the asset register and GIS system.
These identified improvements are currently
being addressed in order to improve confidence
in the data to inform the asset management
plans.

We have employed an additional resource (1.0
FTE commenced in Feb 2019 as an Asset
Management Officer) to ensure the delivery of
the new asset management plans by Nov. 2020 (2
years after election). Our Asset condition data is
current and we have purchased ‘Assetic’ software
to undertake predictive modelling of our asset
deterioration to assist with the development of
the LTFP. These works have commenced.
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2.2.2 Instances of assets which were not included in the financial asset register

Fixed assets are recorded on acquisition, creation or when provided free of charge to facilitate accurate identification of assets and recording of details

Control with regards to the Asset Accounting Policy.

Fixed asset acquisitions, disposals and write-offs are fictitious, inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all. Fixed Asset Register (FAR) does not remain
pertinent.

Risk

Finding Recommendations Management Response

When an asset is physically created the asset description, attributes | A list of unallocated assets is reviewed on a | The Unley Oval and Scammel Reserve assets have

and work details are included in TechnologyOne. After the asset is | regular basis. been allocated into the ‘Land & Buildings’
created the accounting team is responsible to allocate a financial Financial category.
reporting category (e.g. land, buildings, roads, etc) to the asset to
enable the asset to be included in the financial asset register. The recommendation is noted.

The Asset register’s report will be reviewed on a
Audit noted that a list of unallocated assets are not being generated 6-monthly basis to ensure information captured
and reviewed on a regular basis. Such a review would ensure that all under Financial categories is complete.

relevant assets have been allocated a financial reporting category.

Audit requested a list of unallocated assets and noted the following
assets were not allocated to any financial reporting category at the
time of our audit:

e Unley Oval - current asset cost - $17,004,600

¢ Scammell Reserve — current asset cost - $4,363,650

As a result, these assets were not appearing in the land financial asset
register.
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Control

Risk

pertinent.

2.2.3 Assets included in TechnologyOne are not linked and/or reconciled to the GIS system.

There is a process in place for the verification of fixed assets which is reconciled to the FAR

Fixed asset acquisitions, disposals and write-offs are fictitious, inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all. Fixed Asset Register (FAR) does not remain

Finding

Assets included in TechnologyOne are not linked and/or reconciled to
the GIS system.

Councils are highly asset intensive in delivering services to rate payers.
Councils’ infrastructure assets are widespread and require a strong
geographical inventory to manage and monitor effectively.

A Geographic Information System (GIS software) is designed to store,
retrieve, manage, display and analyse geographic and spatial data,
including geographical features and their characteristics.

To ensure accuracy and completeness of asset databases, it is
important for Councils to perform a reconciliation between GIS systems
and the asset register. The reconciliation ensures that all assets,
components of assets and modifications to assets captured by the GIS
system are reflected in the asset register.

The standard TechnologyOne GIS reconciliation functionality can be
used to update the physical features of assets in the asset register.

Recommendations

A process is introduced to ensure that all assets
included in TechnologyOne are linked and/or
reconciled to the GIS system.

Management Response

As part of our recent review with regard to data
management, the discrepancies between GIS and
Asset Register data has been identified and
currently being addressed.

Comprehensive system training will be
undertaken by staff in October 2019 this includes
staff from Finance, Assets and the Depot to
ensure that assets are created & disposed of
appropriately and all asset attribute data is
accurate and maintained.

A part of this process is to amend the
segmentation of assets and uniquely identify
individual assets to enable the ability to manage
the assets appropriately.

The appointment of a dedicated Asset
Management Officer has enabled the ability to
ensure that GIS and TechOne data are
linked/reconciled.
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2.3 GENERAL LEDGER

2.3.1 Absence of formal review of IT users’ access

Control

Access to General Ledger maintenance is restricted to appropriately authorised personnel.

Risk

General Ledger does not contain accurate financial information / Data contained within the General Ledger is permanently lost.

Recommendations

Finding
There are no current mechanisms to ensure a complete lists of users |

with access to finance functions in TechnologyOne, Pathway and CHRIS
21 are formally reviewed on a regular basis.

Management performs a formal review of a
complete list of users’ access rights to ensure
adequate segregation of duties within the
finance function in TechnologyOne, Pathway
and CHRIS 21.

Management Response

The recommendation is noted.

Technology One Access : Management will
implement a formal review process of user’s
access to be performed on a regular basis.

CHRIS 21 Access : Management will implement a
formal review process of review of user’s access
to be performed on a regular basis.

Pathway Access : permissions are regularly
reviewed as a role function of the Business
Systems Support Officer. A full audit of active
accounts and group memberships was completed
in August 2019 and a detailed group access
review is scheduled to take place in January 2020,
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2.3.2 Absence of formal review of balance sheet reconciliations

Control

Risk

All balance sheet reconciliations are reviewed by a person other than the preparer at least annually

General Ledger does not contain accurate financial information

Finding

The finance department has begun adopting a paperless approach
to record keeping since December 2018. The balance sheet
reconciliations are electronically filed in the network. Since this
paperless approach was introduced, no evidence of review of these
files is maintained.

2.3.3 Amendments to the structure of the General Ledger framework are not formally reviewed and approved

Recommendations

Audit encourages Council to continue with its
paperless approach.

Provide evidence of the review of the
reconciliations. Examples of this evidence could be
password protected electronic signatures or an
email from the reviewer advising that the

reconciliations were reviewed.

Management Response

The recommendation | noted.

An electronic solution to record evidence of
review of the reconciliations will be researched
and implemented as a matter of priority.

Better Practice

Control

Risk

Finding

General Ledger does not contain accurate financial information

Recommendations

Amendments to the structure of the General Ledger framework and accounts are reviewed and approved by appropriately authorised personnel

Management Response

The recommendation is noted.

The process for amending the structure of the general ledger
framework such as creating/modifying general ledger accounts,
chart of accounts, costs centres, etc can be improved.

Currently, there are no formal forms or procedures for requesting
changes in the general ledger framework. Usually, changes are
initiated via emails sent to the management accountant. It is better

Change request forms are developed for use by
staff when requesting amendments to the general
ledger.

These forms are approved by appropriately
authorised personnel.

An electronic solution to request, authorise and
undertake amendments to the general ledger
framework will be researched and implemented
as a matter of priority.
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practice to implement forms to request changes to the general |
ledger framework and to ensure that these forms are approved by
appropriately authorised personnel.
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2.4 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Control

2.4.1 Improvements are necessary in the process of uploading suppliers EFT files into the online banking system

Payments (Cheques and EFTs) are endorsed by authorised officers separate to the preparer who ensure that they are paid to the specified payee.

Risk

Accounts payable amounts and disbursements are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all.

Finding

Audit reviewed the process of processing the accounts payable batch of
payments and noted the following:

Council’s financial system generates an EFT file which is stored on
council’s internal drive prior to being manually uploaded into the
online banking system. The EFT file can be opened as TXT (text format)
file and potentially be manually manipulated prior to being uploaded.
Currently, staff members from the finance department and system
administrators have access to the folders where the EFT file is stored.

Recommendations

Council to investigate whether it is possible to
implement a way to enable a direct interface
between the finance system and the online
banking system.

Alternatively, Council can investigate ways to
ensure that the file is generated as “read-only”.

If the direct interface cannot be implemented,
Management should consider comparing the
bank account details provided by the online
banking system to a register of supplier's bank
accounts provided by the finance system
(supplier master file) before authorising each
payment batch. This matching does not need to
be a manual process as it can be automated, for
example using an Excel spreadsheet.

In addition, it is recommended that Finance
Management review the appropriateness of the
users with access to the folder where the EFT
file is stored.

Management Response

The EFT file is exported to a secure location
within the TechnologyOne application folder
structure. This is not a published share and is only
made accessible to Finance staff,

Council audits file shares and logs all file access
and changes.

Within the next 30 days the folder will be
changed to “read-only” to prevent modifications
to the file and a review of access permissions
undertaken.

Discussions are underway with our banking
provider to implement a Direct Link module with
our banking provider. Implementation
timeframes is within the next 3 months.
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2.4.2 The audit trail of changes to the suppliers’ master files are not formally reviewed by management.

Control Requested changes or additions to supplier master file are verified independently of source documentation.

Risk Supplier master file data does not remain pertinent and/or unauthorised changes are made to the supplier master file.

Finding Recommendations Management Response

There is no process in place to ensure a formal review of an audit trail | Ensure that a review of the audit trail of | A process of review is in place to review changes
of changes to the suppliers’ master file. changes to the suppliers’ master file is | to the master files however improvements will be
independently reviewed on a regular basis. implemented to formalise the process.

2.4.3 Suppliers with invalid or cancelled ABNs registrations included in the creditors’ master file

Control There is a process in place to ensure the supplier master file is periodically reviewed for ongoing pertinence

Risk Supplier master file data does not remain pertinent and/or unauthorised changes are made to the supplier master file.

Finding Recommendations Management Response

There is no process to ensure the supplier master file is periodically | Finance Management performs a regular (e.g. | The recommendation is noted.

reviewed for ongoing pertinence. on an annual basis) review of the supplier | A process will be implemented to ensure the
master file to ensure that only current and valid | supplier master files are reviewed periodically for
Audit performed a review of the Council’s creditors master file and | suppliers are active in the system. ongoing pertinence.

noted the following:
* there were 205 suppliers with cancelled ABN registrations; and
. th_e_r_e were 69 supp_li_ers with in\_.ra_lid ABN _registrations.
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2.5 RATES

2.5.1 A report containing rates adjustments performed during the financial year is not independently reviewed

Recorded changes to property master file data and any rate adjustments are compared to authorised source document to ensure the they were input
accurately. An audit trail is maintained for all changes.

The property master file data does not remain pertinent.

Recommendations

ding

property master file. Consequently, and audit trail report containing all
changes in the property master file is not formally reviewed by an
officer independent from the rates function.

TechnologyOne does not generate an audit trail of changes to the | Audit acknowledges the system limitation. An

alternative solution is to review the rates
debtors controls general ledger transaction
listing. This report provides all the adjustment
in rates performed during the financial year.

The debtors control general ledger transaction
listing does not need to include all transactions
resulting from the normal daily operations (e.g.
receipting, fines, etc). Once the report is
generated, it can be filtered by Management to
only show adjustments in rates.

Management Response

The recommendation is noted.

A process will be developed to ensure that
adjustments to rates are reviewed by an officer
independent from the rates function.
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2.5.2 A list of rate rebates and non rateable properties are not formally reviewed

Control All rate rebates and adjustments including write offs are appropriately authorised with reference to Delegation of Authority and source documents.

Risk Rates and rebates are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all..

Finding Recommendations Management Response

A list of rate rebates and non rateable properties were not formally | A list of rate rebates and non rateable | The recommendation is noted.

reviewed by Finance Management for the 2018/19 financial year. properties is formally independently reviewed
prior to rates generation occurring. Rate rebates and non rateable properties will be

reviewed at least annually by Finance
Management in future.
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2.6 PAYROLL

2.6.1 Absence of evidence that payroll reports are independently reviewed

Managers periodically review listings of current employees and variances are investigated.

Finding

Payments made to employees are inaccurate or fraudulent

Recommendations

Management Response

Currently as part of the payroll process the Payroll Officer uses the PLD
report generated from CHRIS for reviewing the accuracy of wages for
individuals. This report lists all employees, hours worked by type, leave

taken and payment details (Gross net deductions,

superannuation etc).

pay, pay,

Audits review of a sample of PLD reports indicated that there was
satisfactory review by the Payroll Officer of these reports. The review
was evidenced by numerous comments that the Payroll Officer has
recorded in the reports. There was no evidence that these reports have
been reviewed by a person independent of the Payroll officer.

There was evidence of peer-level review of other source documents
filed for each pay run including manual timesheets, extra hours
timesheets, overtime timesheets, TOIL banking timesheets, termination
pays and employee update forms. These documents were generally
marked as ‘entered’ by the Payroll Officer and ‘checked’ by a peer.

A variance report comparing the current pay vs the prior period pay
was being run as part of the payroll process. Until recently, this report
was prepared and reviewed by the Payroll Officer and peer reviewed.
Whilst the report is still being prepared and filed, it no longer appears
to be reviewed.

Managerial review of payroll reports is
performed and evidenced as part of the payroll
process.

Audit recommends the following reports be
reviewed by Management prior to authorisation
of payroll batch payment:

¢ PLD - Review reasonableness of rates
and hours at employee level

¢ PRD — Agree total net pay to the NAB
EFT Payment Report

e \Variance Report - review the
reasonableness of material variances in
pay

e« NAB EFT Payment Report — Agree to
PRD report and authorization of
payment (note: this report is currently
being reviewed and signed off)

e Overtime report — review of
reasonableness of overtime claimed
(currently being supplied to depot, but
no evidence of review)

The recommendation is noted.

An electronic solution to recording evidence of
managerial review of the listed reports prior to
payroll authorisation will be researched and
implemented as a matter of priority.
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There is a lack of evidence that management has reviewed payroll
reports as part of the pay process each fortnight prior to authorisation
of payment.

As part of a paperless philosophy, these reports

are being saved electronically and not printed.

There are a number of options for evidencing

review in a digital environment, including:

e Use of a secure digital signature on the
individual reports (not simply an image of a
signature)

e Use of a check list detailing the reviewed
reports, with either an electronic signature
or email confirmation of review (with a
copy of the email filed with the reports).

Alternatively, a copy of the checklist could be
filed physically printed and filed with the
printed NAB EFT reports.
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2.6.2 Employee records and information are recorded in a number of different locations

Control Employee records to include employment details and/or contract terms and conditions, authorisations for payroll deductions and leave entitlements.

Risk Inappropriate access to employee records

Finding

Recommendations

Management Response

Employee information is stored in multiple locations, including the |
finance drive, HR office, Payroll office, within CHRIS, email archive or
the HR Portal. Whilst the finance drive is restricted to employees
working within the finance department, not all finance staff require
| access to payroll information to perform their jobs.

Storage of employee records is reviewed to
ensure that information is being stored in
appropriate locations accessible only by staff
requiring payroll information to perform their

| jobs.

All employee records will be transitioned from
Finance and HR drives to ECM to ensure access is
only available to appropriate staff,

Explore options to limit finance staff access to

| payroll drives to only for purposes of checking.

2.6.3 Absence of appropriate segregation of duties in the processes of adding new employees to CHRIS

requests etc).

There is a segregation of duties from those preparing the payroll to those responsible for preparation of source documents (e.g. timesheets, leave

Payments made to employees are inaccurate or fraudulent

Finding

Recommendations

Management Response

The payroll officer is responsible for adding new employees to CHRIS
upon commencement of employment. For segregation of duties
reasons, it is preferable for this role to be performed by a person
independent of payroll processing.

New employees are added to CHRIS by the HR
department. The payroll officer's access to this
functionality in CHRIS is restricted.

New employees are now added by an HR officer,
not the payroll officer.
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2.6.4 Improvement opportunities in the process of reviewing changes to the payroll master file

Payroll system generates audit reports detailing all payroll changes and there is a process in place to ensure all changes are reviewed and verified against

Control
source documents.

Risk Errors in payments made to employees

Finding Recommendations Management Response

The process of checking masterfile changes in CHRIS is performed by | A masterfile changes report is run from CHRIS | Currently individual changes to the Masterfile are
filing all relevant source documentation (change of detail forms etc) by | and used as the basis to ensure that Masterfile | checked by payroll team.

pay period in a ‘to be checked’ folder on the finance drive. These | changes are supported with approved source | Implementation of a Masterfile changes report to
documents are checked against CHRIS by a peer to confirm that the | documents and have been accurately reflected | be automatically generated after every payrun, to

change details have been entered correctly. in CHRIS. be cross checked and signed off by HR manager
or delegate will be undertaken. This work is to be
This process can be improved by also running a masterfile change completed by Dec ember 2019.

report and ensuring that all changes made are supported by
appropriate documentation. Using such a report may also streamline
the review process, by referring to this one report to confirm both the
accuracy of data and completeness of supporting documentation.
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2.7 RECEIPTING

2.7.1 Absence of approval of reversal of receipts

Control

There is a review process for the authorisation of the reversal of transactions.

Risk

Finding

Receipts are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all.

Recommendations

Management Response

There is no process for the authorisation of the reversal of receipts.

Establish mechanisms to ensure that reversal of
receipts are independently approved.

Ensure that a daily list of receipt reversals is
independently approved. This can be achieved
by reviewing the “Bank Deposit Receipt
Dissection Report” which contains a list of
reversals.

The recommendation is noted.
A review of the daily process to independently
approve reversals will be conducted,
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2.8 INTERNAL CONTROLS SELF ASSESSMENT

2.8.1 Improvements to the internal controls self-assessment process

Control Self-Assessment of the adequacy of internal controls

Risk Inherent risks not appropriately assessed and mitigated / Controls not operating effectively

Finding Recommendations Management Response

The Better Practice Model requires a Council's internal controls | Audit supports Council adopting a risk-based | The recommendation is noted and will be
framework includes a meoenitoring function to ensure the ongoing | approach to perform its internal controls self- | considered as a part of the next risk assessment
operating effectiveness of controls, and as mechanism for continuous | assessment. process.
improvement.

Audit encourages ongoing refinement of the
Council conducted a risk assessment of the internal controls around | scope of controls to be reviewed, with a view to
Sept/Oct 2018. Shortly after this risk assessment was completed there | ensuring a good coverage of controls being
were significant staff vacancies within the finance team, including the | reviewed to provide comfort that all significant
finance manager. The internal control self-assessment was put on hold | financial risks are managed to an acceptable
during this time. level.

Once the CFO position had been officially completed, the CFO and the
Principal Risk Management Officer had a discussion on the controls to
be included as part of the 2018/19 internal controls self-assessment.

The following factors were considered:
= Staffing levels within Finance
= Process improvements projects/consultation that were either
under way or about to commence within certain areas in
finance
= Current risk and control environment within finance
» Controls selected by the external audit
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The Council selected a total of 35 controls to be reviewed for the
2018/19 financial year.

Audit understands that the current self-assessment will enable Council
to establish a base level to build upon for future assessments.
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APPENDIX 1 - CRITICAL INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
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Purchasing and Procurement

Risks
R1 Council does not obtain value for money in its purchasing and procurement.
R2 Purchases of goods and senices are made from non-preferred suppliers.
R3 Purchase orders are either recorded inaccurately or not recorded at all.
R4 Purchase orders are made for unapproved goods and Senices.
RISKS Control Control Type
Council has a Procurement Palicy that provides direction on acceptable methods and the process for procurement
R1 activities to ensure transparency and value for money within a consistent ramework, with consideration of any Core
potential conflicts of interest.
R1R2 Employees must ensure all purchases are in accordance with Council’'s Procurement Policy and approved in Core
g accordance with the Delegations of Authority and other relevant policies.
R1 The organisation has a process in place 1o ensure use of preferred suppliers where relevant to maximise the best Coa
value for money to Council
R2,R3  There Is a process In place 1o revew purchasing patterns and ensure maximum use of preferred suppliers Additional
R3 Purchase order numbers are either system generated and/or sequentially numbered. Core
R3 There Is a process In place lo ensure all iInvoices for payment are matched to relevant source documents such as Core
purchase orders where applicable and are in line with Procurement Policy guidelines
R3 There Is a process in place to follow up and action incomplete purchase orders. Additional

CONTRACTING

Risks
R1 Council is not able to demonstrate that all probity issues hawe been addressed in the Contracting process.
R2 Council does not obtain value for money in relation to its Contracting.
RISKS Control Control Type
R1R2 There are robust and transparent evaluation and selection processes in place to engage contractors where Core
! relevant in accordance with the Code of Conduct, Conflict of Interest and Procurement Policy.
R1 The selection panel is made up of appropriate personnel who hawe declared any relevant conflict of interest to Con
ensure that informed and objective decision is made when selecting contractors.
R1 Council maintains a cument contract register. Core
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FIXED ASSETS
Risks

Fixed asset acquisitions, disposals and write-offs are fictitious, inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all. Fixed Asset Register

R1 ;
(FAR) does not remain pertinent.

R2 I fixed assets are not securely stored, they may be subject to damage or theft.

R3 If fixed assets are not valued correctly, the management reports and financial statements will be misstated. For example,
incorrect camying values may result from the use of inappropriate depreciation rates.

R4 Depreciation charges are either invalid, not recorded at all or are inaccurately recorded which includes inappropriate useful |ives
and residuals.

RS Fixed Asset maintenance and/or renewals are inadeguately planned.

RISKS Control Control Type

R1 There |s a process In place for the verification of fixed assets which is reconciled to the FAR. Core
Recorded changes to the FAR and/or masterfile are approved by appropriate staff compared to authorised source

R1 Core
documents and General Ledger 1o ensure accurate input

R1 All fixed asset acquisitions and disposals are approved in accordance with Delegation of Authority and relevant Cors
Procurement and Fixed Asset Policies.

R1 Maintenance of the fixed assel register is limited to appropriate stafl with consideration to segregation of duties. Core

R1 Council has an assel accounting policy which details thresholds for recognition of fixed assets which is monitored Core
to ensure adherence.

R Reconciliation of fixed assets to the General Ledger is performed in accordance with schedule of review or e
procedure

R1 Asset register calculations are reviewed for accuracy. Core

Ri Fixed assets are recorded on acquisition, creation or when provded free of charge to facilitate accurate Core
identification of assets and recording of details with regards to the Asset Accounting Policy

R1 Asset maintenance is planned and monitored with relevant stafl in accordance with the Asset Management Plans Additional

R2 Where appropriate, fixed assets are secured and access is restricted to appropriate staff and authorised users. Core
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RISKS Control Control Type

Where appropriate, identification details are recorded for portable and attractive assets such as IT and fleet

Additional
assets, on acquisition to facilitate accurate identification. i

Relevant staff review useful lives, residuals, valuations, depreciation methodology and test for impairment as
R3 required by Accounting Standards and legisiation to ensure that methods used are still appropriate and significant Core
changes are incorporated into Asset Management Plans

R3 Profit or loss on disposal calculations can be substantiated and verified with supporting documentation. Core

Depreciation charges are calculated in accordance with the asset accounting policy and compliant with relevant

R4 c
accounting standards, including the usetful life, depreciation method and residual values i

RS Assel Management Plans are prepared and renewal expenditure and programmed maintenance required Is Core
revMewed periodically to reflect changing priorities, additional asset data and other relevant factors.

RS Asset Management Plans for all major assel classes are adopted and revewed by Council as required by the Core

Local Govemment Act 1999
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GENERAL LEDGER

Risks
R1 General Ledger does not contain accurate financial information
R2 Data contained within the General Ledger is permanently lost.
RISKS Control Control Type
All major updates and changes to General Ledger finance system are authorised, tested and
R1,R2 Core
documented.
R1,R2  Access lo General Ledger maintenance is restncted to appropnately authonsed personnel. Core
Reconciliation of all balance sheet accounts are completed in accordance with a schedule of review
R1 Core
and/or procedure.
R1 All balance sheet reconciliations are revewed by a person other than the preparer at least annually. Core
R1 Journal entry access is restricted to appropnately authorised personnel. Core
R1,R2 Financial data is backed up and stored offsite. Core
R1 Finance system does not allow posting of unbalanced journals or if it does regular revews are Core
conducted on the suspense account and discrepancies investigated and actioned.
R1 Amendments to the structure of the General Ledger framework and accounts are revewed and Gia
approved by appropriately authornised personnel
General Ledger policies and procedures are appropnately created, updated and communicated to
R1,R2 Core
relevant staff.
R2 Formal disaster recovery plan is in place and communicated fo relevant staff. Core
R1 There is a process in place to revew actual vs budget and significant vanances invesiigated. Core
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ACCOUNTS PAYABLE

Risks

R1 Accounts payable amounts and disbursements are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all.

R2 Credit notes and other adjustments to accounts payable are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all.

R3 Disbursements are not authorised properiy.

R4 Accounts are not paid on a timely basis.

R5 Supplier master file data does not remain pertinent and/or unauthonsed changes are made to the supplier master file.

RISKS Control Control Type
R1,R2,R4 Statements received from suppliers aa_raoon_aled to the supplier accounts in the accounts payable Additional

subledger regularly and difierences are investigated.

R3 Records must be maintained of all payments with supporting documentation. Caore

R1 Payments are endorsed by relevant staff separate to the preparer, who ensures that they are paid to Core
the correct payee.

R5 Access to the supplier masterfile is restncted to authonsed staff Core

R2,R5 Separation of Accounts Payable and Procurement duties. Core

All invoices and payment requests are approved in accordance with relevant policies and/or

R3 - Core
Delegations of Authority.

R Predetermined variances between Purchase Orders and Invoices are assessed and payment released Additional
only after verification by the officer with delegation to do so.
Payments are venfied to appropnate supporting documentation and are in line with Delegations of

R1 . Core
Authonty.

R4 Relevant staff to rewew aged payables listing on a predetermined basis and investigate where Core
appropriate.
Recorded changes to the supplier master file are compared to authonsed source documents to

R5 ; Core
ensure that they were input accurately.
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RISKS Control Control Type
Requested changes or additions to supplier masterfile are venfied independently of source o
R5 - Additional
documentation.
R4 There is a system generated report detailing supplier invoices due for payment at any one time. Core
There is a process in place to ensure the supplier master file is penodically rewewed for ongoing )
R5 pertinence Additonal
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RATES /| RATES REBATES

Risks
R1 Council does not raise the correct level of rate income.
R2 Rates and rate rebates are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all.
R3 The Property master file data does not remain pertinent.
R4 Rates are not collected on a timely basis.
RISKS Control Control Type
R1R2 Rates are automatically generated by the rate system, inciuding the calculation of rate rebates and other Co
4 parameters as applicable. 8
R2 Rates are generated and tested for accuracy of caiculation methodology prior to the rates billing run Core
R1 All software changes to rate modelling functionality fully tested and revewed by relevant staff. Core
There Is a rating policy in place that is revewed annually that prowdes clear guidance on rating methodology and
R1 Core
relevant rebates and remissions in line with legisiation
R2 Annual valuation update is balanced prior to the generation of rates; all mismatches resolved prior to finalising rate Conk
generation.
All rate rebates and adjustments including write offs are appropriately authorised, with reference to Delegations of
R2 Core
Authority and source documents
R4 There is a process in place to ensure that rates are collected in a timely manner and overdue rates are followed Cos
up.
R3 Recorded changes to property master file data and any rate adjustments are compared to authorised source c
documents to ensure that they were input accurately. An audit trail is maintained for all changes e
R3 Access to the Property master file is restricted to appropriately designated personnel, with a process in place to c
ensure changes are in line with policies and procedures. i
Employees responsible for processing rate payments and rebates cannot process their own payments or rebates o
unless the transaction is approved by someone independent of the process

Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
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PAYROLL
Risks

R1 Payroll expense is inaccurately calculated.

R2 Payroll disbursements are made fo incomect or fictiious employees.

R3 Time and/or attendance data is either imvalid, inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all.

R4 Payroll master file does not remain pertinent and/or unauthonsed changes are made to the payroll master file.

R5 Voluntary and statutory paymoll deductions are inaccurately processed or without authorisation.

R6 Employees termination payments are not in accordance with statutory and enterpnse agreements.

RISKS Control Control Type

R1 Where possible standard programmed formulae perform payroll calculations . Core

R1, R3 There is a process to ensure all overtime is venfied and approved by relevant appropnate staff. Core
R1 All calculations for generating payroll payments are verified for accuracy. Core
R4.RS Managers penodically rewew listings of current employees within their departments and vanances are Additional

investigated

R1 Payroll is pencdically reconciled to the General Ledger accounts. Additional

R The payment for the payroll must be reconciled to a system generated report detailing amount and Core
employee prior to payment.

R2 There is a process to ensure an independent revew of proposed payroll payments by authorised staff. ~ Additional
The payment of the payroll is authonsed by appropnate staff not involved in the preparation of the Coitii
payroll.

RO Employee records to include employment details and/or contract terms and conditions, authorisations Core
for payroll deductions and leawe entitlements.

R2 There is a process to ensure employees are made inaciive in payroll records upon temination Core

Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
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RISKS Control Control Type

RS All payroll deductions must be approved by the relevant employee. Core

R3 Relevant staff are required to complete timesheets and/or leave forms, authorise them and have Core
approved by the relevant supemsor.

R2 There is a segregation of duties from those preparing the payroll to those responsible for preparation of Core
source documents (e.g. timesheets, leave requests etc).

R2 Payroll system generates audit reports detailing all payroll changes and there is a process in place to Core
ensure all changes are rewewed and \erified against source documents
There is a process in place to ensure employees are not added to the payroll masterfile, nor details

R2 amended or amounts paid without receipt of the appropriate forms which have been authorised by Core
relevant staff.

R5 Access to the payroll deduction listing is restricted to authonsed staff Core

R6 There is a process in place to ensure termination payments comply with relevant policies, procedures Core
and legislation.

R3 Time recording and attendance exceptions such as TOIL or flexiime are based on relevant Cors
policies/agreement are identified, monitored and comected

R4 The ability to access, modify or transfer information contained in the payroll master files is restricted Oiee
to authorised staff,

Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
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CREDIT CARDS
Risks
R1 Credit Cards are issued to unauthonsed employees
R2 Credit Cards are used for purchases of a personal nature.
R3 Credit Card limits are set at inappropnate lewels .
RISKS Control Control Type
There is a process in place to ensure there are appropnate approvals prior to the issuing of Credit
R1,R3 s
Carnds and limits.
R1R2 Credit card holders sign a declaration confirning compliance with Council policy and procedures prior
' to the Credit Card being released
R2 There is a process in place to approve all credit card transactions to ensure compliance with the
policies and procedures covenng credit card usage.
R2 Cardholders must check their statement to ensure all transactions are correct and identify any
transactions of a personal nature which must be reimbursed to Council
R3 There is a process in place to ensure credit card limits and usage is revewed for operational
efficiency.

Risks
R1 Banking transactions are either inaccurately recorded of nol recorded at all
R2 Fraud {l.e. misappropriation of funds)
RISKS Control Control Type
There Is a process in place to ensure all cash, blank chegques and/or cheque signing machine are adequately
R1,R2 Core
safeguarded.
R1 Access 1o EFT Banking system is restricted to appropriately designated personnel Core
Ri1 Rz Bank reconciliations are performed on a predetermined basis and are reviewed by an appropriate person. Any Cird
' identified discrepancies are investigated.
R2 Cash transfers between bank accounts and investment bodies are undertaken by appropriate stafl. Core
R2 There is a process in place 1o ensure all cash collected is adequately recorded and banked regularty . Core

Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
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DEBTORS
Risks
R1 Deblors are either inaccuralely recorded or not recorded at ail
R2Z  Rebates and credit notes lo debtors are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all

R3 An appropriate provision for doubtful debts is not recorded
R4 Debtors are either not collected on a timely basis or not collected at all
RS The Deblors master file data does not remain pertinent.

RISKS Control Control Type CSA Importance Weighting
R1 R4 Debtor's reconciliation performed on a regular basis to the General c 4
i Ledger and reviewed by an independent person
R1 Council maintains a Debt Collection Policy Core 5
Management and/or Council review and approve all rebates, credit
R2. R3. R4 notes, bad debt write-offs and movements in the provision for doubtful 5
- debts, In accordance with delegations of authority and Local
Government Act
R3. R4 Managemenl reviews debtors ageing profile on a regular basis and Core 4

Investigates any outstanding items

Access lo the deblor's master file is restricted 1o appropriately
RS designated personnel and s reviewed by management for accuracy Core 5
and on-golng pertinence

Recorded changes to deblor's master file data are compared lo
RS authorised source documents or confirmed with customers/ralepayers Core 4
lo ensure that they were input accurately

RECEIPTING
Risks
R1 Receipts are either inaccuralely recorded or nol recorded al all

R2 Receipts are nol deposited at the bank on a timely basis.

RISKS Control Control Type

R2 Pnor to and during the banking process, cash is stored securely at all times. Core

Customers are prowded with a system generated or pre-numbered (manual) sequential tax compliant

R receipt detailing payment made. Coare

R1 There is a revew process or the authonsation of the mewersal of transactions. Additional

1 Receipt transactions are reconciled to the daily takings and out-of-balance banking is commected Core
prompthy.

R Receipts are deposited regularly at the bank by a person independent from the initial recording of the Additional

cash receipts.

Financial Controls Review — The City of Unley
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EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

To the members of the audit committee of The City of Unley

We are pleased to present our Audit Completion Report for the financial year ended 30 June
2019. The purpose of this document is to summarise the key accounting and audit matters
that have arisen during the engagement and our audit conclusions.

We intend to issue the following opinions (subject to the satisfactory completion of the
items described in section 1 — Status of our Audit Work of this document):

Intended opinions Type of opinion  Proposed Auditor’s Report
Opinion on the Financial Statements | Unmedified Refer to the Appendix 1 of this report.
Controls Opinion Unmodified | Refer to the Appendix 2 of this report.

We have included in this report the following information to ensure that councillors,
management and audit committee members are aware of all significant matters relating to
the audit.

Matters Sections

| Status of our audit work Section 1
Summary of Audit Risks and Overall Responses Section 2
Key Audit Matters Section 3
Internal Controls Opinion and Recommendations Section 4
Final Management Letter Section 5
Corrected Adjustments Section 6

| Immaterial Uncorrected Misstatements N 3 | Section?
Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on the Financial Report Appendix 1
Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on the Internal Controls Appendix 2

| Draft Statement by Auditor Appendix3_
Better Practice Model (BPM) Risks Appendix 4
Risk Ratings Appendix 5

We also confirm our intention to sign the statement by auditor regarding our independence,
and confirm that for the audit of the year ended 30 June 2019 we have maintained our
independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants, section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

Yours faithfully

—
-

Tim Muhlhausler ca registered Company Auditor
Date: 6 November 2019
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1. Status of Our Audit Work

Below a summary of the status of audit activities and key documents related to the
completion of our final audit.

Activities/Documents Responsibility Status
Final draft of the financial report Management Completed
Final audit visit Audit Completed
Final substantive procedures Audit Completed
Audit verification of the final draft of the financial Audit Completed
report
Final draft of the financial report after audit verification | Management Completed

| Audit Completion Report Audit Completed
Final financial report after considerations from the Management | To be completed
audit committee
Signed certification of financial statements Management | To be completed
Signed certification of auditor independence Management | To be completed
Signed management representation letter Management | To be completed :
Signed statement by auditor Audit To be completed
Review of the subsequent events up to the date of the | Audit To be completed
auditor’s report.
Final Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Internal Audit To be completed
Controls i . . .
Final Independent Auditor’'s Report on the Financial Audit To be completed
Report

Our final independent auditor’s reports on the internal controls and on the financial report
will be issued upon receipt of the final financial report (containing the signed certification of
financial statements and the signed certification of auditor independence) and the signed
management representation letter.
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2. Summary of Audit Risks and Overall Responses

Below, a summary of our initial audit risks identified in our audit plan presented to the audit committee, the audit approach and responses to address these risks and the final
audit risks (residual risks) after the execution of our audit procedures.

Statement of Comprehensive Income - Income
Accounts Initial Audit Risk Risks as per BPM - REF* Audit Response Residual Risk Results

Rates and charges High 41,336 RA1/RA2/RA3/RA4/RE1/RE2 Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented
1,593 US1/US2/US3/RE1/RE2 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented
1,826 US1/US2/US3/RE1/RE2 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Statutory charges

User charges

Grants 4,713 GR1/GR2/GR3/RE1/RE2 Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented
Investment Income 16 m Substantive tests Low Fairly presented
Reimbursements 535 OR1 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

714 OR1 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented
145 OR1/0E1 Substantive tests Fairly presented

Other Income

Equity Accounted Businesses

Statement of Comprehensive Income - Expenses
Accounts Initial Audit Risk Risks as per BPM - REF*
Employee costs High PA1/PA2/PA3/PAA/PAS/PAG Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Audit Response Residual Risk Results

Materials / Contracts / Oth PP1/PP2/PP3/PP4 [PPS/PPE Low Fairly presented
aterials / Contracts / e High 20,337 co1/co2/co3 Controls and substantive tests

Expenses ca/ea2 /o3

Depreciation and amortisation High 9,038 M4 Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented

BO1 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Finance Costs
Equity Accounted Businesses Low - OR1/OE1 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Statement of Comprehensive Income — Other Comprehensive Income
Accounts Initial Audit Risk Risks as per BPM — REF* Audit Response Residual Risk Results
Asset Disposals & FV Adjust High FIL/FI3 Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Amounts Received Specifically Substantive tests Fairly presented

GR1/GR2/GR3/RE1/RE2
for New or Upgraded Assets e e MW

Physical Resources Received i Substantive tests B Fairly presented
Free of Charge
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Statement of Financial Position — Assets

Accounts Initial Audit Risk Risks as per BPM - REF* Audit Response Residual Risk Results
Cash and cash equivalents High BA1/BA2/IN1/IN2/IN3 Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Trade and other receivables 2,681 DE1/DE2/DE3/DEA/DES/PR1 Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented
Other Financial Assets 2 10 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented
Financial Assets — NC g8 L0 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Equity Accounted Businesses 16,930 OR1/0E1 Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

IPPE High 510,281 F1/F2/A3/RA/FIS Controls and substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Statement of Financial Position - Liabilities

Accounts Initial Audit Risk Risks as per BPM - REF*

Audit Response Residual Risk Results

Trade and other payables High 13,104 AP1/AP2/AP3I/APA/APS/TA1/AE1  Controls and substantive tests Fairly presented
Borrowings Low 242 BO1/BO2/BO3/BO4 Substantive tests Fairly presented
Provisions 3,730 EP1 Substantive tests Fairly presented
Borrowings - NC “ 2,271 BO1/B02/BO3/BO4 Substantive tests Fairly presented
Other Non-current liabilities - AE1 Substantive tests Fairly presented
Provisions - NC 357 EP1 Substantive tests Fairly presented

Statement of Financial Position - Equity

Accounts Initial Audit Risk Risks as per BPM - REF*
Accumulated Surplus Low 147,002

Audit Response Residual Risk Results

Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Asset Revaluation Reserves High 365711 B Controls and substantive Fairly presented

Low
tests

Other Reserves Low 256

Substantive tests Low Fairly presented

Intended Audit Opinion

In our opinion, subject to the satisfactory completion of the items described in section 1 of this report, the financial report prepared by the Council presents fairly, in all
material respects, the Council’s financial position as at the end of current financial year and its financial performance for the year ended on that date.

* A list of the main nsks as per the Better Practice Model (BPM) addressed during our audit and related risk references is provided in Appendix 4.
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3. Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in the auditor’s professional judgement, were of
most significance in the audit of the financial report. We address these matters in the context
of our audit of the financial report as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do
not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

3.1 Valuation of Infrastructure assets

Why the matter is significant
Infrastructure assets are valued at fair value. The
fair values of these assets were based on
depreciated current replacement costs whichis
comprised by the gross replacement cost less
accumulated depreciation.

Council values the gross replacement cost using the
estimated average cost (unit cost) at which it could
construct a substitute asset of comparable quality in
the normal course of business. There was inherent
subjectivity involved in making judgments in relation
to assumptions used to estimate unit rates which
also involved determining the:
* components of assets that are replaced at
different times in the asset lifecycle
= costs required to replace these components
using current prices for materials, labour, and
plant costs
* indices for measuring subsequent changes in
unit rates,

The useful lives of assets and the measurement of
accumulated depreciation are determined by
external valuers, Significant judgement is usedto
determine the different useful lives for different
components of assets and to calculate the
depreciation that would have accumulated since
original construction using these estimated useful
lives.

The significant professional judgments usedto
estimate the gross replacement cost and the
accumulated depreciation are also relevant to the
calculation of the annual depreciation expense of
these assets,

How the matter was addressed
Our audit induded but was not limited to the following
activities:
= reconciled closing balances to the asset registers
* reconciled the movements in note 7 to the asset
register
= reviewed the basis for valuation used by external
valuers
= assessed the competence of external valuers (experts)
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
® reviewed the fair value hierarchy provided in note 7
for each category of asset
» reconciled the useful lives used to calculate the
accumulated depreciation and the depreciation for
the period to the revaluation reports
* reviewed the useful lives mentioned above for
different components and compared them to other
local government entities
= performed a recalculation of depreciation
* reviewed the methodology used by Councdil to
perform componentisation of infrastructure assets
and compared the methodology used to Council’s
actual asset management practices and to other local
government entities
*» reconciled the unit rates used for different
components of infrastructure assets to the unit rates
provided in the revaluation report
= reviewed the unit rates mentioned above and
compared them to different local government entities
® assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
report.
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3.2 Valuation of Land and Buildings

Why the matter is significant

Land and buildings are valued at fair value. The basis
of valuation to be used for these assets depends on
a number of factors such as the nature of the asset,
purpose of their use, the highest and best use of the
asset, potential restrictions to the disposal of these
assets among other factors.

Valuation of land depends on whether the land is
classified as Crown land or community land.
Community land and Crown land are valued using
unobservable (level 3) inputs as the allowance for
the restriction on sale (requiring Ministerial consent)
is usually an unobservable input, and is likely to
have a significant effect on valuation.

Land, where Council has an unfettered right to sell
them, is usually valued at current market value
based on their highest and best use. Level 2 inputs
are primarily used for land during the valuation
process.

Valuation of buildings depends on the nature of
these assets. Some Council buildings have no active
market due to the specialised nature of the assets
and the services they provide. For such buildings fair
value Is usually determined on the basis of
replacement with a new building having similar
service potential. Valuation techniques used to
measure fair value of these buildings include
significant unobservable inputs (level 3).

For buildings that have an active market, buildings
are assessed on market value prindples which is
deemed to be their fair value based on level 2
inputs, The most significant input into this valuation
approach is sales transactions of comparable
properties within the City, adjusted for any
pertinent differences.

The significant professional judgments used to
estimate the value of land and buildings are also
relevant to the calculation of the annual
depreciation expense of these assets.

How the matter was addressed
Our audit induded but was not limited to the following
activities:
= reconciled closing balances to the asset registers
* reconciled the movements in note 7 to the asset
registers
= reviewed the basis for valuation used by external
valuers
® assessed the competence of external valuers (experts)
in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
= analysed the nature of the land building assets and
concluded whether the fair value hierarchy provided
in note 7 for each category of asset was reasonable
= reconciled the useful lives used to calculate the
accumulated depreciation and the depreciation for
the period to the revaluation reports
* reviewed the useful lives mentioned above for
different components and compared them to other
local government entities
» performed a recalculation of depreciation; and
» assessed the adequacy of disclosures in the financial
report.
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3.3 Accounting treatment of capitalisation of assets

Why the matter is significant

Councils are asset intensive and highly dependent
on multiple assets to deliver services to customers.
Hence, there is a high volume of transactions and
significant amounts involved in relation to
capitalisation of assets.

Due to the unique characteristics of Council's assets
a number of considerations are taken into account
when an expenditure is capitalised which include:

= whether Council is incurring capital
expenditure to physical resources that are
controlled by Council. Control is the most
difficult of the characteristics of an asset
to be defined as this usually goes beyond
the legal ownership;

®*  Inclusions and exclusions of costs at initial
recognition of an assets in accordance
with AASB 116;

®  (Cost involved in dismantling and removing
the asset and/or restoring the site under
AASB 137;

*  Borrowing costs to be capitalised into the
cost of IPPE where the asset is a
“qualifying asset” as per AASB 123; and

= accounting for subsequent costs and
defining the nature of these costs as being
capital or maintenance expenditure.

How the matter was addressed
Our audit induded but was not limited to the following

activities:

performed analytical procedures to define
whether the amounts capitalised for the FY was
in accordance with our expectation and our
understanding of the entity;

reviewed internal controls in place for
capitalisation of assets;

selected a sample of additions and performed an
assessment of the nature of the addition and
concluded whether the addition was recognised
in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards;

reviewed the WIP schedule and selected a
sample of transfers out to ensure that the asset
was appropriately valued and capitalised in the
right account; and

reviewed the WIP schedule in order to identify
projects that should have been capitalised but
were not.

3.4 Revenue Recognition

Why the matter is significant
AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
and AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

commence from 1 January 2019 — effectively 1 July
2019 for SA Councils.

How the matter was addressed
Our audit induded but was not limited to the following

activities:

= evaluated Council's work to implement AASB 15 and
AASB 1058 and assessed whether Council's accounting

practices comply with Australian Accounting
Standards

= performed analytical procedures to identify any
variance that would represent a risk or incorrect
application of AASB 15 and AASB 1058

= reviewed a sample of grant agreements and assessed
whether agreements contain sufficiently specific
performance obligations

= evaluated the accounting treatment used by Council
to account for the existing grant agreements in place
selected for our tests

= tested a sample of finandial transactions for
compliance with Australian Accounting Standards.

The main change for Council is that income from
capital and other specific purpose grants previously
recognised on receipt may be recognised over time
as performance obligations are met (where these
obligations are sufficiently specific and rise from
enforceable contracts) and a liability recognised for
unspent monies.
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3.5 Management Override of Controls

How the matter was addressed

Why the matter is significant

Management is in a unique position to perpetrate
fraud because of management’s ability to
manipulate accounting records and prepare a
fraudulent report by overriding controls that
otherwise appear to be operating effectively. Due to
the unpredictable way in which such override could
occur, the risk of material misstatement due to
fraud is considered, by default, a significant risk.

Our audit induded but was not limited to the following
activities:
= tested the appropriateness of journal entries recorded
in the general ledger
= reviewed accounting estimates for biases
= performed final analytical procedures to conclude as
to whether the financial report is consistent with our
understanding of the entity
= requested written representation from Management
= reviewed IT access controls rights processes in place
» reviewed processes in place to ensure independent
reviews of exception reports generated by Council
= reviewed processes in place to ensure independent
reviews of audit trails of changes to master files.

2018/19 Audit Completion Report
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3.6 Other High Risk Areas

The other high risk areas described in this section are account balances and/or audit areas that
are not subject to a high degree of professional judgement, however we assessed their
inherent risks as being high due to the materiality of the account balances, the high volume of
transactions involved and other reasons outlined below:

Account balance Why the risk is High Overall audit response

Rates and charges

- largest revenue item

- rates are often used as a
reference point for analysing
expenditure decisions

- politically sensitive —
reputational risk involved if rates
are raised incorrectly.

-walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
controls from the Better Practice Model

- analytical procedures

-comparison of total capital values from the
VG report to the total capital value
recorded in the rates system

-reconciliation of the rates modelling to the
rates system and to the general ledger

-recalculation of rates for a sample of rate

payers

Employee costs

- one of the largest expense items

- high volume of transactions /
data - subject to error.

- errors impact individuals
financially.

-walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
controls from the Better Practice Model

- analytical procedures

-inspection of employee files (contracts,
awards, EBs)

-inspection of timesheets

-recalculation of a sample of individual

payments.

“Material s, Contracts &

- one of the largest expense items

-walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of

- material balance

- opportunity for understatements

- poor use of accrual basis of
accounting can be indicative of
poor controls culture

- payments represent an
opportunity for fraud

Other expenses - high volume of transactions / controls from the Better Practice Model
date - subject to error -analytical procedures
- fraud risk area (procurement, -inspection of supporting documents
payments and credit cards) (contracts, invoices, purchase orders,
- procurement and contracting are subsequent payments, etc) for a sample of
key focus areas for ICAC and the expenses
Auditor-General's Department.
Cash and cash - material balance -walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of
equivalents - fraud risk controls from the Better Practice Model
-if there is any instance of errors -analytical procedures
and/or fraud it will be indicative -bank confirmation
of broader errors -inspection of bank statements
- poor attitude to cash controls -verification of outstanding reconciling
may be indicative of overall items
culture related to the entity’s -reperformance of bank reconciliations.
controls environment
I - public money
Trade and other payables | - one of the largest liabilities -walkthroughs and tests of effectiveness of

controls from the Better Practice Model

-analytical procedures

-recondiliation between subsidiary ledgers
and the general ledger

-inspection of subsequent payments for a
sample of creditors

-inspection of a sample of subsequent
payments for completeness test.
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4. Internal Controls Opinion and Recommendations

We have performed an extensive review of the Council’s financial controls for the purpose of
forming our control opinion as required by section 129 of the Local Government Act 1999
based on council’s obligations under s125 of that Act.

Our controls opinion is restricted per s129 of the Act to the application of 5125 as it relates to
financial internal controls, specifically the controls exercised by the Council during the relevant
financial year in relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, the acquisition
and disposal of property and the incurring of liabilities.

A summary of the results of our review is provided in the table below:

Operating
Effectively
2019

2019 Findings
BP

Controls

l les
Business cycles Reviewsd

g

Purchasing & Procuremant/Coniracting
Fixed Assots 16
Genearal Ledger 11
Accounts Payable 13
Rates | Hatos Rebatos 10
Payroll

Receipting 5
Credit Cards 9
Banking 3
Debtors ]

e Ly Pyl et R

L

o |unjun|

Overall the Council demonstrated a satisfactory level of compliance with the implementation
of an internal control framework consistent with the principles within the Better Practice
Maodel.

During our interim audit visit we found that the majority of key internal controls reviewed
were in place and were operating effectively (78 out 100 core controls reviewed). Risks were
rated based on an assessment of the risk of non-compliance with s125 of the Local
Government Act 1999 as described in the Appendix 5 — Risk Ratings.

A draft interim audit management letter was issued and provided to Management in June
2019 containing our overall assessment of the council’s internal controls and all the controls
weaknesses identified during our review of the Council’s financial controls. The draft is
currently in discussion between Management and audit.

We recommended that Council prioritises the high and moderate risk findings, as failure in
compensating controls addressing the same risk or existence of multiple moderate weakness
within the same business cycle may lead to a material weakness and non-compliance with
5125 of the Local Government Act.

In our opinion, subject to the satisfactory completion of the items described in the section 1 of
this report, the Council has complied, in all material aspects, with Section 125 of the Local
Government Act 1999 in relation to Internal Controls established by the Council in relation to
the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and
incurring of liabilities.
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5. Final Management Letter

We have identified the following additional performance improvement observations when
performing our substantive procedures during our final audit:

Risk
1. Capitalisation of road assets

Finding Capitalisation of road works usually involves the allocation of costs to
different road components and segments as well as the valuation of the
disposal of the surface and pavement being replaced during the
reconstruction of a road.

Audit noted that capitalisations of roads since the previous revaluation
have been recorded as a lump sum in the asset register without the
appropriate allocation to difference components and segments of
roads. This has implications for the accuracy of depreciation expense,
as different components have different useful lives.

Additionally, as capitalisations are not allocated at a component level,
nor allocated to the specific road segment in the asset register, Council
has not valued the cost of surface and pavement being replaced during
the reconstruction of roads and, consequently, has not accounted for
the disposal of roads replaced during the 2018/19 financial year.

Risk Risk of the financial statements being misstated.

EIMIMERGENGOE 1. Perform an allocation of capitalisation costs to different components
and sections of road, at the time of capitalisation.

2. Calculate the amount related to the component of road being
disposed to reconstruct the new component.

3. Account for the disposal of roads based on the amount calculated as
described in item 2.

Risk
2. Revaluation of Assets
Finding Council uses the revaluation model of accounting under AASB 116 -
Property, Plant and Equipment for various classes of infrastructure,
property, plant and equipment (IPPE).

Where the revaluation model is used, AASB 116 requires that
revaluations be made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the
carrying amount of each asset in the class does not differ materially from
its fair value at the reporting date. Itis common practice in local
government to revalue assets every three to five years, with five years
being the maximum acceptable gap between valuations.

Audit noted that the following asset classes require a new revaluation:
- Pathways (last revalued in July 2014)
- Traffic and Lighting (last revalued in June 2015)

Risk Risk of the financial statements being misstated.

MGG ENGOE Perform a new revaluation of pathways and traffic and lighting assets.
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Risk
3. Reconciliation between the asset register and the GL
Finding Audit identified the following differences between the asset registers
and the general ledger (in $’000):

Asset class | Register | GL difference
Other assets* [ 8,905 | 8,247 | 658
Land and buildings | 245,364 | 245,459 -95
Equipment, furniture & fittings | 7,540 7,580 -40

* Reserves and open space

Risk Risk of the financial statements being misstated
MEININELGENRGLE Ensure that the asset registers reconcile to the general ledger accounts.

4. Payroll clearing account

Finding Audit noted an account called “22001 - Payroll = Clearing” showing a
balance of $613,111. This amounts relates to unreconciled payroll
transactions recorded as a liability.

Risk Risk of the financial statements being misstated

HEGINIMEGGERGLE Perform a reconciliation of the payroll clearing account to ensure that
_the final balance of the account is zero.

5. Employees with excessive annual leave balances

Finding Audit identified 10 employees with annual leave balances in excess of
300 hours (being approximately 2 years entitlement).

Risk Leave balances exceeding the allowable balances under the relevant EB.
Staff not taking leave has financial implications as leave is paid at higher
rates than it was accrued, and may lead to health safety and welfare
issues.

HEGININEGGERGLE Implement strategies to systematically reduce excessive leave balances,
and review monitoring procedures to ensure that employees do not
accumulate excessive annual leave balances.

Risks were rated based on an assessment of the risk of non-compliance with s125 of the Local
Government Act 1999 as described in Appendix 5 — Risk Ratings.
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6. Corrected Adjustments

Adjustment 1 — System error in the calculation of the depreciation expense

D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive
Income
(Increase)/ (Increase),
de« = decrease )
: $'000
D Depreciation expense - 1,706 -
C Infrastructure, | - [ (1,706) [ - - -
Property, Plant &
Equipment

Description: An amount of $1,705,703.53 was deducted from the depreciation expense
recorded in the asset register due to an error in the system. This resulted in the
depreciation expense being understated. Audit recommended the adjustment detailed
above to correct the error.

Adjustment 2 - Accrual not recorded in the financial report
D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other

Comprehensive

Income

Increase/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease decrease decrease)
S'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
D Infrastructure, 1,949 - - .
Property, Plant &
Equipment
C Trade and Other - | (1,949) - -
Payables

Description: Council did not accrue an invoice related to the completion of works
performed on King William Road. The invoice was issued on 8 July 2019 and the work was
completed in June 2019.
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Adjustment 3 — Annual and LSL calculations

D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive
Income
(Increase)/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/
decrease € e)
$'000 00

D Employee costs - ' - 575 .

C Provisions - ! {5-55} - I -

Desc.ription:

Recalculations of provision for annual and long service leave revealed that provisions were
understated.

Adjustment 4 — Annual leave recorded in Trade & Other Payables
D/ Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive

Income

Increase/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease decrease decrease)
S'000 $'00 S'000 S'000
D Trade & Other E 1,015 - -
Payables
C Provisions ' - | (1,015) | - _ -
_Description:

Reclassification of 51,015 related to annual leave provisions from Trade & Other Payables to
Provisions.
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Adjustment 5 — Recalculation of accrued salaries and wages

D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive
Income
Increase/  (Increase)/ (In e)/ (Increase)/
S decrease decrease decrease)
5’00 $'000 S'000
D Employee costs - : - 107 -
C Trade and other 1 - T (107) [ . i -
payables
Description: R

Council had not recorded a salaries and wages accrual until. Audit requested that
Management calculate and record this accrual.

Adjustment 6 — Current and non-current borrowings
D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive

Income

Increase/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease decrease decrease)
5'C S'000 S'000 S'000
D Borrowings - current - I 938 - B
C Borrowings — non- - [ (938) - -
current
Description:

The amount owed by Council to the Local Government Authority (LFGA) related to a CAD
(Cash in Advance Debenture) was recorded as current borrowings. The CAD facility expires
on 15/06/2026. Council has an unconditional right to defer payment until the expiry date.
Audit recommended the reclassification of this amount to non-current borrowings.
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Adjustment 7 — Reclassification of revenue to Grants, subsidies and contributions
D/C  Account at FS level Assets Liabilities  Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive

Inc
e)/ (Increase

D Amounts received - - 613 -
specifically for new or
upgraded assets

C Grants, subsidies and - - (613) -
contributions

Description:

Council included a total of $613,370 in the revenue item called “Amounts received
specifically for new or upgraded assets” in the Statement of Comprehensive Income (SCl).
This amount relates to the Supplementary Roads grant as part of the Financial Assistance
Grant program from federal government to local government.

The 2019 SA Local Government Model Financial Statements provides that only amounts
that have been paid to Council for a specific, nominated project should be recorded as
“Amounts received specifically for new or upgraded assets”. In the case of the
Supplementary Roads grant, Council is itself entitled to determine the purpose or the
project on which the amount is spent. Hence, audit recommended Council to record this
amount as Grants, subsidies and contributions in the SCI.

Adjustment 8 — Urban Tree / Car Park Funding
D/ Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Equity

Increase/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/

ase decrea

D Other non-current - 256 - -

liabilities
C Other reserves | - [ - | - . (256)
Description:

Council recognised developer contributions, such as parking, open space or urban tree as a

non-current liability. The 2019 Local Government Model Financial Statements provides that

these contributions cannot give rise to a liability because no amount is owed to any external

party to Council arising from the receipt of the contribution. Certainly Council has an

obligation to expend the monies for the purpose for which they were contributed, but a

liability can only arise after Council determines on a specific project and enters contracts for
_its execution. Council can establish a reserve to reflect amounts unexpended.
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Adjustment 9 — Revenue recognition - Grant funding — King William Road

D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive
Income
(Inc (Increase)/
decrease decrease)
D Trade and other - ' 700 - -
payables
c Grants, subsidies and . ' . (700) - .
contributions

Descﬂption:

Council received $700 from the South Australian Local Government Grants Commission for
the reconstruction of the King William Road and recognised this amount as payment
received in advance under trade and other payables.

Audit noted that Council incurred a total of $3.4m during the 2018/19 financial year for this
project. Audit recommended Council to recognise this amount as revenue given that AASB
15 and AASB 1058 requires entities to recognise revenue for capital grants as they construct
the assets the grants were provided for.

Adjustment 10 - Revenue recognition - Grant funding — Daily Moves Program
D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other

L {_:m{ul-'hl-'ilt.i"..'n

Income

Increase/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease eCrease decrease)
S'000 S'000 S ’ S'000
D Trade and other - 249 - -
payables | | | -
C Grants, subsidies and - i - ' (249)
contributions i
Description:

Council recognised as payment received in advance the amount of $248,558 related to the
Daily Moves Program deferring the revenue recognition of this grant as an application of
AASB 15 and AASB 1058.

AASB 15 applies for grant agreements that have sufficiently specific performance criteria. In
audit’s opinion, the grant agreement does not provide sufficiently specific performance
criteria.

In the absence of sufficiently specific performance criteria the grant should be recorded as
revenue when Council obtains control of the contribution (i.e. on receipt).
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Adjustment 11 — Equity Accounted Investment
D/C

Other
Comprehensive
Income / Equity

(Increase

Account at FS level Liabilities Surpl

D Equity Accounted 61 - - -
Investments | |

D Revaluation Reserve | - - ' - 1,180

C Material Contracts - - (823) -
and Other Expenses

C Net gain — Equity - - (43) -
Accounted Businesses |

C Other Compréhenéive - B [ E (375)
Income

Description:

The journals described above were processed to correct the following errors:

- Council recorded its capital contribution to the Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks
Stormwater Board (BHKC) as a contract expense. The correct treatment is to record the
contribution as an increase in Equity Accounted Investments (non-current assets)
Council did not create any account in the chart of accounts to record the net gain on
Equity Accounted Businesses and it is share of Other Comprehensive Income on its
subsidiaries. The increase in Equity Accounted Investments was being recorded in an
equity account called “30017 - Revaluation Reserve — Joint Ventures — BHKC".

- Council was considering its ownership share of equity to be 20%. This percentage
relates to Council’s interest in the operating result. Council’s ownership share of equity
is 21% as per the Charter.

Below, a summary of the balances before and after the audit affected by the adjustment
proposed above:

Accounts Before audit | Journals D/ (C) | After audit
Equity Accounted Investments — BHKC! 1,228 61 1,290
Revaluation Reserve — BHKC? -1,228 1,180 -48
Material, Contracts and Other 18,631 -823 17,808
Expenses®

Net gain — Equity Accounted Business® - -43 -43
Share of Other Comprehensive Income® - -375 -375

1.  Adjustment to ensure that Equity Accounted Investment is 21% of the Equity provided in the BHKC financial report

(56,141* 21% = $1,290). Council was using 20% which is the share of operating result in BHKC.

2. Reversal of amounts related to increase in Equity Accounted Investment that was being recorded as Revaluation

Reserve,

3.  Reclassification of capital contributions to BHKC initially recorded as expense in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income to Equity Accounted Investments — BHKC.
Joumal to reflect Council’s share of operating result of 20% in BHKC (Surplus for the year - 5215 * 20% = 543)

5. Joumal to reflect Council’s share of other increase in BHKC equity other than operating result.
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Adjustment 12 — Share of ownership interest on the Centennial Park Asset Revaluation
Reserve
D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Equity

(Inc
(decrease) decrease w(-F
S'000 S$'000 5000 S’'000

D Accumulated Surplus - - - $10,671

C Asset Revaluation - - - $10,671
Reserve

Description:

Council has recorded its share of interest on the Centennial Park asset revaluations as an
increase in accumulated surplus in the Statement of Changes in Equity in past years. Audit
requested to reclassify these amounts to Asset Revaluation Reserve.

The Centennial Park has a total of $23,227,000 recorded as Asset Revaluation Reserve.
Considering that Council has 50% ownership share of Equity on the Centennial Park, the
total revaluation reserve to be recorded in The City of Unley financial report is $11,613,000.

Council has taken this opportunity to also record its share on other reserves recorded in the
Centennial Park financial report (i.e. $116,000 recorded as other reserves in the Centennial
park financial park divided by 2 = $58,000). This resulted in a total reserve recorded in the
Asset Revaluation Reserve disclosed in note 9 of 11,671,000 (511,613,000 + 58,000).

Audit recommend that Council’s share of interest on the Centennial’s park other reserves to
be recorded under other reserves in note 9(b). Please see the immaterial misstatement 3
provided in item 7 of this report.
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7. Immaterial Uncorrected Misstatements

Immaterial misstatement 1 — Provision for Long Service Leave
D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive

Income
(Increase)/

D Provisions - | 195 . - | -

C Employee costs - | - | (195) . -
Description:

Council has accrued long service leave for part-time and casual staff members accruing
0.249 hours per hour worked using the total hours worked since they started. The Long
Service Leave Act 1987 requires the long service leave entitlements to be calculated based
on the average hours worked per week in the past three years.

Audit estimated that the provision for long service leave is overstated by approximately
$195,000.

Immaterial misstatement 2 — Accrued Salaries and Wages
D/C  Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Other
Comprehensive

Income

Increase/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease decrease decrease)
$'000 S'000 S'000 S'000
D Trade and Other - 64 - -
Payables | | |
C | Employee costs - _ - _ (64)
Description:

Council used the total amount provided by the first payroll report generated during the
2019/20 to record the balance of accrued salaries and wages. Audit performed a
recalculation only considering the days related to the 2018/19 financial year included in this
payroll report and noted that the accrual is overstated by $64,000.
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Immaterial misstatement 3 — Share of ownership interest on Other Reserves from the
Centennial Park
D/C Account at FS level Assets Liabilities Surplus/Deficit Equity

(Increase)

decrease

D Asset Revaluation - - - 558

Reserve | | |
¢ |OtherReseves | - |- |- s
Description:

Council has recorded its share of interest on the Centennial Park asset revaluations as an
increase in accumulated surplus in the Statement of Changes in Equity in past years. Audit
requested to reclassify these amounts to Asset Revaluation Reserve.

The Centennial Park has a total of $23,227,000 recorded as Asset Revaluation Reserve.
Considering that Council has 50% ownership share of Equity on the Centennial Park, the
total revaluation reserve to be recorded in The City of Unley financial report is $11,613,000.

Council has taken this opportunity to also record its share on other reserves recorded in the
Centennial Park financial report (i.e. $116,000 recorded as other reserves in the Centennial
park financial park divided by 2 = $58,000). This resulted in a total reserve recorded in the
Asset Revaluation Reserve disclosed in note 9 of $11,671,000 (511,613,000 + 58,000).

Audit recommend that Council’s share of interest on the Centennial’s park other reserves to
be recorded under other reserves in note 9(b).

Immaterial misstatement 4 — Absence of allocation of buildings amounts to different fair

value level hierarchies.

Description:

Our review of note 7a — Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment revealed that Council
has not performed an allocation of the movements and the closing balance of buildings into
different fair value level hierarchies (i.e. Level 2 and Level 3).

Immaterial misstatement 5 — Incorrect calculation of the Asset Renewal Funding Ratio.

Description:

Council calculated the asset renewal funding ratio using the depreciation expense as the
denominator for the calculation of this financial indicator. The SA Model Financial
Statements 2019 requires South Australian Councils to use the Infrastructure & Asset
Management Plan required expenditure.

2018/19 Audit Completion Report 23

Page 193 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.3 - Attachment 3 - Audit Completion Report

The City of Unley

Galpins

8. Contact Details

mpany Auditor, MILA (Aust), Registered SMSF Auditor

Tim Muhlhausler ca. & comm, Grad bip. (Icaa)

Regrd ered

Partner
Galpins

Juliano Freitas ca sacc registered Company Auditor

Audit Manager

\ (0883323433 )
(08) 8332 3466 Galplns

® www.galpins.com.au

3 l‘.r-!’\ﬁ:':t—;' nn Road Narwood SA 50467

PO Box 4067 Norwood South SA 5067

2018/19 Audit Completion Report

Page 194 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.3 - Attachment 3 - Audit Completion Report

Galpins The City of Unley

Appendix 1 — Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on
the Financial Report

To the members of The City of Unley

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial report of The City of Unley (the Council), which
comprises the statements of financial position as at 30 June 2019, the statement of
comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and cash flow statement for the year
then ended, notes comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and the Council Certificate of The City of Unley.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial report presents fairly, in all material aspects, the
financial position of the Council as at 30 June 2019, and its financial performance and its cash
flow for the year then ended in accordance with the Australia Accounting Standards, Local
Government Act 1999 and Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Report section of our report. We are independent of the Council in accordance
with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board’s
APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit
of the financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Council’s Responsibility for the Financial Report

Council is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial report in
accordance with Australian Accounting Standards (including the Australian Accounting
Interpretations), the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 and for such internal control as Council determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial report that is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, Council is responsible for assessing the Council’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless Council either intends to liquidate the
Council or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those charged with
governance are responsible for overseeing the Council’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Report

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a
whole is free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue and
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
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be expected to influence the economic decision of users taken on the basis of this financial

report.

As part of an audit of the financial report in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

Identify and assess the risk of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentation, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit of the financial
report in order to design procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Council’s internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Council’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Council's
ability to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Tim Muhlhausler ca registered Company Auditor

Partner

Date:
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Appendix 2 — Proposed Independent Auditor’s Report on
the Internal Controls

To the members of The City of Unley
Independent Assurance Report on the Internal Controls of The City of Unley

Opinion

We have audited the compliance of The City of Unley (the Council) with the requirements of
Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal controls
established by the Council to ensure that financial transactions relating to the receipt,
expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of
liabilities for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 have been conducted properly and in
accordance with the law.

In our opinion, The City of Unley has complied, in all material respects, with Section 125 of the
Local Government Act 1999 in relation to internal controls established by the Council in
relation to the receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of
property and incurring of liabilities so as to provide reasonable assurance that the financial
transactions of the Council have been conducted properly and in accordance with law for the
period 1 July 2018 to 30 June 2019.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our engagement in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on
Assurance Engagement ASAE 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information and ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagement on Controls, issued by
the Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all
material respects, the Council has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act
1999 in relation only to the internal controls specified above for the period 1 July 2018 to 30
June 2019. ASAE 3000 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements of the
Australian professional accounting bodies.

We believe that the evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion.

The Council’s Responsibility for Internal Controls

The Council is responsible for implementing and maintaining an adequate system of internal
controls, in accordance with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 to ensure that the
receipt, expenditure and investment of money, acquisition and disposal of property and
incurring of liabilities have been conducted properly and in accordance with law.

Our Independence and Quality Control

We have complied with the independence and other relevant ethical requirements relating to
assurance engagements, and applied Auditing Standard ASQC 1 Quality Control for Firms that
Performs Audits and Reviews of Financial Reports and Other Financial Information, and Other
Assurance Engagements in undertaking this assurance engagement.
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Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Council’s compliance with Section 125 of the
Local Government Act 1999 in relation only to the internal controls established by the Council
to ensure that financial transactions relating to receipt, expenditure and investment of money,
acquisition and disposal of property and incurring of liabilities, based on our procedures. Qur
engagement has been conducted in accordance with applicable Australian Standards on
Assurance Engagements ASAE 3000 Assurance Engagements Other than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Information and ASAE 3150 Assurance Engagements on Controls, issued by the
Australian Auditing and Assurance Standards Board, in order to state whether, in all material
respects, the Council has complied with Section 125 of the Local Government Act 1999 in
relation only to the internal controls specified above for the period 1 July 2018 to 30 June
2019. ASAE 3000 also requires us to comply with the relevant ethical requirements for the
Australian professional accounting bodies.

Limitations of Controls

Because of the inherent limitations of any internal control structure it is possible that, even if
the controls are suitably designed and operating effectively, the control objectives may not be
achieved so that fraud, error, or non-compliance with laws and regulations may occur and not
be detected.

An assurance engagement on controls is not designed to detect all instances of controls
operating ineffectively as it is not performed continuously throughout the period and the tests
performed are on a sample basis. Any projection of the outcome of the evaluation of controls
to future periods is subject to the risk that the controls may become inadequate because of
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with them may deteriorate.

Limitation of Use

This report has been prepared for the members of the Council in accordance with section 129
of the Local Government Act 1999 in relation to the internal controls specified above. We
disclaim any assumption of responsibility for any reliance on this report to any persons or
users other than the members of the Council, or for any purpose other than that for which it
was prepared.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Tim Muhlhausler ca registered Company Auditor
Partner

Date:
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Appendix 3 — Statement by Auditor

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of The City of Unley for the year ended
30 June 2019, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of
APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Llocal
Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011
made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

GALPINS ACCOUNTANTS, AUDITORS & BUSINESS CONSULTANTS

Tim Muhlhausler ca registered Company Auditor
Partner

Date:
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Appendix 4 — Better Practice Model (BPM) Risks

The risks outlined below are the main BPM risks addressed when determining our audit
approach / response as described in section 2 of this report.

Business Cycles Risk REF Risks
Rates RA1 Council does not raise the correct level of rate income
RA2 Rates and rate rebates are either inaccurately recorded or
not recorded at all
RA3 The property master file data does not remain pertinent
_ RA4 Rates are not collected on a timely basis
User Pay Income / us1 The fee charged does not reasonably reflect the value of the
Fee for services services provided
us2 Council does not apply User Pay principles consistently
us3 User pay income is either inaccurately recorded or not
. B recorded at all
Investment / 151 Investment income is either inaccurately recorded or not
Interest Income recorded at all
Other Revenue OR1 Other revenue is either inaccurately recorded or not
recorded at all
Grants GR1 Council loses recurrent grant funding to provide existing
Services
GR2 Grant funding is not claimed by Council on a timely basis or
! _not claimed at all
GR3 Grants are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all
Receipting RE1 Receipts are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at
all
RE2 Receipts are not deposited at the bank on a timely basis
Purchasing & PP1 Council does not obtain value for money in its purchasing and
Procurement procurement
PP2 Purchase of goods and services are made from non-preferred
suppliers
PP3 Purchase orders are either recorded inaccurately or not
recorded at all
PP4 Purchase orders are made for unapproved goods and services
PP5 Supplier master file data does not remain pertinent and/or
unauthorised changes are made to the supplier master file
Payroll PA1 Payroll expense is inaccurately calculated
PA2 Payroll disbursements are made to incorrect or fictitious
employees
PA3 Time and/or attendance data is either invalid, inaccurately
recorded or not recorded at all
PA4 Payroll master file does not remain pertinent and/or
unauthorised changes are made to the payroll master file.
PAS Voluntary and statutory payroll deductions are inaccurately
processed or without authorisation
PAG Employees termination payments are not in accordance with
statutory and enterprise agreements
Credit cards CC1 Credit cards are issued to unauthorised employees
cc2 Credit cards are used for purchases of a personal nature
CC3 Credit card limits are set at inappropriate levels
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Business Cycles Risk REF

Risks

Other Expenses 0OE1 Other expenses are invalid, inaccurately recorded or not
recorded at all
Contracting co1 Council is not able to demonstrate that all probity issues have
been addressed in the Contracting process
co2 Council does not obtain value for money in relation to its
Contracting
co3 Commitments are made for unapproved goods and services
Banking BA1 Banking transactions are either inaccurately recorded or not
recorded at all
BA2 Fraud (i.e. misappropriation of funds)
Investments IN1 Council makes poor investment decisions
IN2 Investment transactions are either not recorded or are
recorded inaccurately
IN3 Investment income is inaccurately calculated or not recorded
in the appropriate period
Debtors DE1 Debtors are either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at
all
DE2 Rebates and credit notes to debtors are either inaccurately
— | recorded or notrecorded atall
DE3 An appropriate provision for doubtful debts is not recorded |
DE4 Debtors are either not collected on a timely basis or not
collected at all
DES The Debtors master file data does not remain pertinent.
Fixed Assets F11 Fixed asset acquisitions, disposals and write-offs are
fictitious, inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all. Fixed
Asset Register (FAR) does not remain pertinent
| F12 1 Fixed assets are inadequately safeguarded
FI3 Fixed assets are not valued correctly |nit|a||\|I or on
subsequent revaluation
Fl4 Depreciation charges are either invalid, not recorded at all or
are inaccurately recorded which includes inappropriate useful
lives and residuals
FI5 Fixed asset maintenance and/or renewals are inadequately
planned
Prepayments PR1 Prepayments are either inaccurately recorded or not
recorded atall
Loans to LO1 Loans to community groups are inaccurately recorded or not
Community groups recorded at all
Accounts Payable AP1 Accounts payable amounts and disbursements are either
inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all
AP2 Credit notes and other adjustments to accounts payable are
either inaccurately recorded or not recorded at all
AP3 Disbursements are not authorised properly
AP4 Accounts are not paid on a timely basis
AP5 Supplier master file data does not remain pertinent and/or
unauthorised changes are made to the supplier master file
Accrued Expenses AE1 Accrued Expenses are either inaccurately recorded or not
recorded atall
Borrowings BO1 Borrowings are either not recorded or are recorded
inaccurately
BO2 Loans are taken out without appropriate approval
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Business Cycles Risk REF Risks

BO3 Loans are not repaid in accordance with agreed terms

BO4 Loan repayments are not recorded at all or are recorded

| | inaccurately
Employee EP1 Employee provisions are either inaccurately recorded or not
Provisions recorded at all
Taxation TA1l Tax liabilities are either inaccurately recorded or not
recorded atall
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Appendix 5 — Risk Ratings

The audit findings identified during our interim audit documented in our interim management
letter and in section 4 of this report were rated as follows:

Category Description

Potential
Material
Weaknesses

The issue described could lead to a material weakness in the council’s internal
controls and non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act.

The issue described does not represent a material weakness due to the
existence of compensating controls. However, the failure of the compensating
controls or the existence of any other moderate weakness within the same
business cycle may lead to a material weakness in the council’s internal
controls and non-compliance with s125 of the Local Government Act.

The issue described is a low risk weakness due to the existence of
compensating controls and/or the failure or absence of the internal controls

Low Risk does not impact significantly on the council’s financial risk. However, multiple
WVEETLCETT |ow-level risk weakness within the same business cycle may lead to a material
weakness in the council’s internal controls and non-compliance with s125 of
the Local Government Act.

Better
Practice
Weaknesses

The issue described has been included in this report as an opportunity for
better practice.
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General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Statement by Auditor

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of The City of Unley for the year ended 30 June

2019, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards
Board, in accordance with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 .

T ra

P ;S
Y At

Tim Muhlhausler
Galpins

Dated this 6th day of November 2019.
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The City of Unley

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2019

Certification of Auditor Independence

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of The City of Unley
for the year ended 30 June 2019, the Council's Auditor, Galpins has maintained its independence in
accordance with the requirements of the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial
Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

Peter Tsokas David Powell
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER PRESIDING MEMBER, AUDIT COMMITTEE
Date:
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From the Chair

to Chair the Centennial Park Board. Centennial Park is so much more than

Itis a pleasure and a privilege

a cemetery for mourning, It i stry of beautiful gardens

services, events and stories

2018/19 has seen many great achievements including:

Park to enhance the experience of visitors including upgraded climate

« Several improvements to the P

control in the Jubilee Compiex, enhancer 5 to the Children’s areas, improved traffic management,
landscaping in memaorial gardens and improvs bility through the purchase of electric buggles

. A successful collaboration with owner councils to achieve cost efficiencies for many of our essential
services suchn as waste management, ¢ } and auait service

« The ongoing commitment to rec npact through the acement of old
technology and equipment, and gy

. Achieved an agreement between the Board er ir INg augiorson mpiement changes

to Austratian Accounting Sta

. Enhanced our community engagement through tive ty Engagement program
including hosting community and well-being event

ngs ubmitted to

+ Reaching an important milestc
Mitcham Council for approval

able us to continue to

meet the changing needs of our famiti
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This year we saw several changes to the Board
composition due to council elections. | take this
opportunity to extend a warm welcome to our

new members — Jane Russo and Michael Rabbitt
representing the City of Unley, and Karen Hockley and
David Munro representing the City of Mitcham. | would
also like to thank our outgoing Board members Peter
Hughes, Luke Smolucha, Glenn Spear and Adriana
Christopoulos as well as our Interim Board members

Peter Tsokas, Heather Holmes-Ross and Matthew Pears.

Their collaborative and constructive approach to their
duties as Board members is to be commended

Thank you to CEQ Janet Miller for her continued
dedication and outstanding leadership throughout
the year. Janet leads a dedicated team who continue
to deliver on our Strategic Plan (2017 - 2022),
developed to ensure Centennial Park will continue to
operate commercially and meet the changing needs
of the community. They do so with a demonstrable
commitment to our values of compassion, inclusion,
excellence and innovation. We are proud to share our
progress towards our strategic priorities in this report

It is particularly pleasing to report that Centennial Park
generated an operating surplus of $204k, after payment
of a liability guarantee fee to each of the owner councils.
This result is S40k better than the prior year and
demonstrates excellent financial management by the
Centennial Park team. Importantly the surplus provides
financial security for the long term future of the Park and
assurance that the cost of maintaining the memorials
and grounds at a high standard in accordance with our
memorial and burial rights contractual commitments
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From the CEO

| would like to thank the team at Centennial Park, and
the Board, for their support and continued hard work

and dedication this year. There has been a strong

commitment to the delivery of our Strategic Plan
2017-2022, which is helping us prepare to serve the

communities of the future better

Qurs is a growing responsibility as thousands of families
continue to choose Centennial Park as the final resting
place for their loved ones. To ensure the Park continues

to meet expectations, a balance of comp

diligent financial and commercial management

IS required

-4

As a self-funding commercial enterprise, we are subject
to competition and market pressures like any other
business. With a clear focus on operational excellence
innovation and establishing meaningful community
connections, we are progressing towards our goal

of being South Australia's pre-eminent end of life
resting place

We welcomed a new member of our
Management team this year, Nadia Andjelkovic as
Manager of Corporate Services. Nadia has overseen
the day to day operations of Finance, ICT and Records
Management as well as overseeing special projects
such as the Server and Technology Infrastructure
Upgrade and the procurement of a new Cemetery
Management System. She has done so with
professionalism and great diligence

When it comes to funerals and memorialisation, families
have many choices. Our facilities and processes are

the best, and we ensure those that come into our care
are treated with dignity and respect every step of the
vay. We are fully transparent about all our operations,
ncluding our crematorium and invite people to come

behind the scenes and learn more by joining our regular

We continue to advocate for the importance of
memorialisation. This can mean different things to
different people, but research has shown that rituals
such as funeral services and memorials are important in

)] us move through grief. A memorial provides an

point for those
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&

—_— :‘i

ol Janet Miller
= CED
This year we have undertaken several projects to Our café project continued to progress this year with
improve the experience of visitors, including: the appointment of an architect. Conceptual plans

were drafted and submitted to Mitcham Council for
A state-of-the-art cremator in our crematorium "
& tate-of-the-art cremat bl i planning approval. We aim to appoint a builder and

Tig aant Sra oSk s 1 ias s A akiik Sl sl
The new cremator uses the latest technol have construction underway this coming year. All things

: T ~f Its kind in the country. | ; :
and is the first of its kind in the country. | Joing well, we anticipate the café to be completed and

energy-effic if}n[ and proviaes improved operating by December 2020
ergonomics for operators ;i

We have continued to improve our t_J:\t';ﬂt]i-"!‘r‘lr'i‘l‘ll with

+ Upgraded the climate control system in the the community thro

gh media, social media, Park Life

Jubilee Chapels Complex to provide a comfortable
ubilee Chapels Complex to p Hé a comiorniab and by hosting community events

Qur events are always respectful of those memorialised
25 and friends who visit. We warmly

environment year-round for people attending

services and functions within the chapels

here and the fam

« We have made many enhancements to our invite the community to come and enjoy the stunning

children's memarial areas culmir

1 other facilities that we offer

argens a

rating in beaut

s this year included a children’s book launch for
ent Box, a celebration to acknowledge Wally

and whimsical areas where families can reflect upon

lives lost too soon. Improvements include additional
seating, gazebos, new plants and garden art Shiers and his contribution to the Epic Flight, Mother's
Day and Father's Day events, Christmas Carols and
+« We have undertaken a server and tech qy an outdoor sculptural exhibition in our gardens, in
infrastructure upgrade to ensure the stability and partnership with SALA

efficiency of our business systems

+« The tender to replace our Cemetery Management
System was compileted in November 2018 the homeless, At Centennial Park, we believe all lives
A detailed evaluation process followed, whi have worth and we recognise the need to remember
res of those who are homeless and who may have

(g ]
- §

A

upgrading the current system. A supplier is expected lost touch with those who will mourn their loss and
to be appointed in 2019 with the system planned to remember them. As a result of the research, we will be
go live in 2020 considering how Centennial Park can acknowledge the

The teamn and | are looking forward to the year ahead
as we continue to work towards delivering our strategic
objectives and continue to provide the best possible
service to our families and visitors.
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OUR KEY STAKEHOLDERS

Centennial Park works with a diverse range of internal and external stakeholders. We value
their contribution in helping us to continue to provide quality services and a beautiful space
for the community to use.

Families Funeral

directors
Celebrants Suppliers
Employees Local

residents
Monumental Cultural, religious and
masons special interest groups
Local Community
government groups
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AT A GLANCE
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HECTARES
400F GARDENS #'*.‘

MAINTAINED
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£
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ATTENDEES SCENES TOUR
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Operating environment

The provision of burial and cremation services, memorialisation of loved ones, memorial
service spaces and after service gatherings are our core business activities. We undertake
these activities with compassion, sensitivity and dignity.

State deaths

There was a slight decrease in deaths in South Australia during 2018/19. Centennial Park
continues to provide a burial or cremation service for 31% of all recorded deaths in the state
State Deaths Total Sevices
14,000

13,300
13,200
13,100
13000

B otrer

. Centennial Park

2015
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Burials
all
with the trend towards choosing cremat
State Burials State Burials
. Metro Burials
i 2015 2014 2017 18 - 2019 . Centennial Park
Cremations
A total of 3,502 cremations occurred at Centennial Park during 18/19 representing
25.6% of all cremations in South Al a
Cremations continue to be the over puriats acr tr
Centennial Park c« t market share of ( r
South Australia. This st 5 Irp im service a
State Cremations State Cremations

. Metro Cremations

. Centennial Park
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Progress on Strategic Priorities

PRIORITY 1: MAXIMISE OUR EXISTING ASSETS

Cremator replacement upgrade Jubilee Complex - upgraded climate control
Centennial Park strives to be an industry leader and To improve the comfort of guests attending funeral
ensuring we continue to enhance and upgrade our services and events in our award-winning Jubilee
infrastructure is a critical component of our strategy Complex, a significant upgrade to the air-conditioning
In 2018/19, we replaced one of the three existing ind ducting system has been completed. The old
TABO Cremators with a state of the art Facultatieve evaporative-boiler system has been replaced with a fully
Technologies FTIIl Dual End Cremator ducted reverse-cycle system allowing us to effectively

the climate within all areas of the buildint
lnl'- new cremator is the first of its kind in "‘.n'-fr-:l. 4 and :

utilises the latest technology to improve efficiency and

reduce maintenance, We anticipate energ
be achieved in the crematorium of a result of replacing

the older high revolution furnace and ejector fans witl

new highly efficient variable sp

“Two wonderful
hours spent walking
around your beautiful
wonderful peaceful park. It

is a credit to you all. Please
pass on my congratulations
to your Gardeners”

— Susan
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Landscaping & beautifying our park « Ensuring our staff have the tools required to keep
We are continually working to keep our Park locking Centennial Park looking as good as it does is very
beautiful. We have completed several projects during important to us. We carefully manage our fleet
the year including of vehicles and heavy machinery and this year
introduced a rubber tracked excavator, beavertail
» Improvements to Children’s areas including new truck and transfer van
landscaping, colourful plants, installation of garden
art and covered seating areas. Granite beams for « Innovative storage options were introduced to the
plagues to be mounted on have replaced the Operations Complex to help improve operational
concrete beams and each grave has a pebble efficiency and protect our equipment

3 n tr 2] (8] B place ™ . .
section for tributes to be placed Traffic Monitoring

« Levelling pathways within our cemetery grounds to Maonitoring the number of visitors to our beautiful Park

offer improved access in all weather conditions helps us n{anage our assets better. This year we have
purchased and installed road traffic counters at each of
our entrances. These have also allowed us to complete a
traffic management plan, install new signage & improve
line marking throughout the Park

+ |nstalled 21 new beams, upon which headstones
are placed, in Orthodox C, Catholic H and Acacia
E areas to ensure we can continue to meet the
demand for burial positions

« Brick edges have been installed around several
garden beds to help reduce the number of
bare earth edges. This has improved the garden
aesthetics and helped reduce the grounds
maintenance work
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Progress on Strategic Priorities

PRIORITY 2: IMPROVE COMMUNICATION & ENGAGEMENT WITH OUR COMMUNITY

We continue to engage with the broader community by staging events and celebrations that embrace life, art, culture,
horticulture, music and much more. These events and activities enc irage a sense of connection to Centennial Park

among the community and contribute to our goal of demystifying cemeteries. Below are just some of the highlights

from the year

Creating Community Conversations Sculptures in the Park

We have developed a dedicated program of events and n December the sculpture at the main entrance,

seminars to engage with a diverse range of community nnection, was unveiled. It is a stunning sculpture - a

groups. Under this program, we have also conducted beautifully emotive representation of all that Centennial
research to gain a better understanding of the Park stands for. The piece received considerable publit
expectations and customs of different cultural groug attention, including coverage in The Advertiser
With the support of DBH and MT Lawyers, we conduct During August, our stunning grounds were once

free planning ahead seminars to provide information igain transtormed into a sculptural walk as part

about wills and estate planning, advanced care as the SALA festival We were pleased to have 18
directives, powers of attorney and pre-planned funera sculptures throughout the gardens to attract visitors to
arrangements ntemplate life and art in the gardens

We provide personalised bus and walking tours of the
gardens and facilities at Centennial Park for a wide

range of community groups as w

public. These increasingly po

excellent opportunity for us tc

gardens and facilities but to ed.

about the inner workings of a cen

crematorium
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o
Share the Dignity Embracing Life Program
Centennial Park partnerad witt = r [ f 1ed
.I‘f'I;_\'.ir-'Hl!f!".:".i"." Nt for their t n the Bag i ir I year, (O Netp us spread tne 1 1ige that

Christmas campaign. 1
and distribute handbags flled wit

Broduc s and everyvaay luxurig

women at risk and women experiencing d

“Thank you to
Tammy, and Evelyn
of Yogita Yoga, for the
pleasant experience on the

lush green lawns, under those
huge shady trees, as we
stretched and breathed in

the rose perfumed air”
— Lynn
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Progress on Strategic Priorities

PRIORITY 3: GROW THROUGH INNOVATION

Environmental Performance

We are continually looking at n novative This year our estimated net total carbon emissions

ways to reduce our overall environmental footprint at fecreased by 13 9% from the previous period. In

Centennial Park. Since 200 tigate npar to the base year of 20( 18, overall

annual audits of our greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions emissions have reduced by 42 5% (6778 tonnes), Utilities

and purchased certified carbon credits to offset those remain the most significant contributor to our GHG

Bemissions we cannt liminate emissions at 64 2% of gross emiss s, primarily due to
natural gas cor mplior our crematorium operations

Our most recent independent audit was commissioned

. ; e _ Ceremonial Viewings and Rosaries
Dy f angolin Associates to conduct a comprehen

assessment of the greenhouse gas (GHG) em We now offer viewings in the Mawson Chapel the day

accountable to the operations of Centennial Park Hore a ! an Chapel is larger than our
Cemetery Authority for the financial year FY 201 18 e ererms view:ings ana
1ather th their loved one 1.;“]}_.-15-”',;

New Pricing Structure for Services
This year we Introduced a new pricing structure for our

chapel services. Mid-week services are now offered a

a discounted rate to try to smooth demand across the

week and also provide an option for the more budget-

conscious families
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Electric Buggies for Visitors Urrbrae TAFE

i

We have invested in two electric buggiles, each (
accommodating five passengers, to show people around stuc
the gardens. The open-air buggies aliow us to drive roses |

ir gardens become a classroom for Urrbrae TAFE
is Wno \}‘B:!‘. practical experience Dmmng aur

\der the supervision of their lecturers. Rose

i
visitors with reduced mobility along garden pathways pruning is one of the biggest tasks in the garden during
50 they can comfortably experience all areas of the the year, and we are pleased to be part of this mutually
gardens. We also use these buggies for ocur regular benefcial arrangement

Behind the Scenes Tours showcasing our facilities
Trees for Life

Community Partnerships As part of our commitment to a sustainable
We partner with seyeral not- for-profit organisations environment, we have planted 1,900 native trees and
to help us maintain and improve our facilities shrubs along the boundary of the Park. These plants

were provided as tube stock by Trees for Life as part of

Bedford Group our annual membership. Native plants are a vital part
Local disability and support services provider of our gardens; they add ¢ olour and texture and attract
Bedford Group, help us to maintain our grounds native fauna and bees

Bedford employees learn new skills and gain hands-on

experience while working in our gardens. It helps us

to expand our workforce on demand during busy

periods in the park
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Progress on Strategic Priorities

PRIORITY 4: STRENGTHEN ORGANISATIONAL CAPACITY

Information & Communications Technology People & Culture

Qur business is Increa

singly relying on Informatior A high p eam ¢

2 |5 essential to achieving

& Communications Technology. A number of key our vision. Our departmental business and action plans
Initiatives were undertaken this year to ensure our continue to underpin the objectives of the broader
systems can carry us into the future and equip us strategic plan, and our values drive our decisions, actions
to provide a better user experience for staff and and behaviours

customers. These initiatives included
s year we have implemented a new Performance

. Commenced planning for the replace f our pment Review (PDR) framework, with our values
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Work Health & Safety

In line with our broader culture of care and compassion, Centennial Park takes seriously its responsibility to provide

a safe and healthy working en ere possible, the risk of accident or Incident,

customer complaints and work-rel

To continue to measure our performance in Work | and Injury Management against the key performance

indicators set out by the LGAWCS In Novem e next review is scheduled for October 2019

To foster general good health among our employees, we continue to offer the CHG Healthy Lifestyle Program

The below table summarises our WHS data for the last 5 years:

Indicator FY18/19 FY17/18 FY 16/17 FY 15/16 FY 14;*15

Numhn of imjuries resulting in lost time at work

Jt
Number of accidents/incidents reported 27 i6 46 44 43
Number of workplace inspections completed 12 12 12 23 23
*Following the completion of a formal nsk assessment, the frequency of workplace inspections were reduced from bimonthly in all areas to 6 monthly in low-risk

reas and quarterly in meduim-risk areas
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The Board

The Centennial Park Cemetery Bq

1 ie rFmain A ’ no Besed Tl Balalasiol sl v cavan r s Gt
sard our ma decisi mak 1 DOy ana - nrised of seven members

l"N".'f members from each of tne consttuent cc

Each board member contributes unigue skills as well as considerable ¢

ensures robust discussior | and corporate

-

governance. All board members are active in their attendance at meetings and on committees to ensure they keep abreast

of industry and other developments for the continua

Council Elections held during 2018/19 saw the departure of four board members and the appointment for four new board
ik ) 5 i . 2

members. We thank the outgoing and interim board members for their service and welcome our new board members

CURRENT BOARD MEMBERS

Geoff Vogt Andrew Kay

{Chair since July 2017

Jane Russo
ity of Unley

February 2019)

appointed to the Board June 2011 ippointed Apnl 2017 appointed July 2017 apy
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PREVIOUS BOARD MEMBERS

Peter Hughes Luke Smolucha Glenn Spear Adriana Christopoulos
(City of Unley appointed {City of Unley appointed January [City of Mitcham appointed (City of Mitcham appointed
January 2017 = February 2019) 2015 -~ November 2018) June 2016 - November 2018) Novermnber 2014 - Novemnber 2018

INTERIM BOARD MEMBERS

Peter Tsokas Heather Holmes-Ross Matthew Pears
(City of Unley appointed {City of Mitcham appointed (City of Mitcham appointed
November 2018 - February 2019) MNovember 2018 - February 2019) November 2018 - February 2019)

Board/ Committee Member Meeting Attendance

Board /Committee Member Committee | Meeting Attendance
A Heyworth Audit & Risk Management {Chair) 4/4
3
G Martinella (Independent] Audit & Risk Management 3/4

Board Member Meeting Attendance

Board Member | Meeting Attendance

G Vogt (Chair 10/10

A Heyworth 8/10

2
L Smolucha 3/3
P Hughes 5/5

M Pears (intenm BM} 0/1

12
J Russo 5/5

K Hockley 6/6

o
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Financial Performance

The ."\\t,|'|r.".1'\’; once again rec 1§

The final result of $204K wa

a 24% improvement

The Liability Guarantee Fee paid to the owner Cour was $626k
in total, which is 2% more thar

Before the payment of Liability Guarant

was $830K, resulting in a net operat

Cash at Bank is $9.7M

capital works occurring at a slower rate

A complete set of audited general purp

in this Annual Report
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Centennlal
Q park

ANNUAL ACCOUNTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Centennial Park Cemetery Authority

760 Goodwood Road, Pasadena, South Australia 5042

Telephone: {08) 8276 6011 — Facsimile (0B) B275 2266
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Ve have been suthcrised by the Centennal Park Cemeatary Authonty 10 cany

Ine financial s‘azements :n1-2ir (-na faom In car agmon

¢ The gocompanyr:g Loanciw slalements corply wile the Local Govermement Ac! 1999
Lol Goneneeneend (Foncay! Monagamen) Sogaiatmns 2011 und the Auslrahan
Accousl v Slundu-ds

= Tneinancia’ stalements presant A wee and 31 wew of tha Authenty's 1 sanaial pnsihing
at 3C June 2219 ana the rasults of da aperabons ana cash Jo4s far Ihe [iNaNg-3I yaar

+ |nlernal coniols implemeriad oy the Autherily pravide a reasonadle assurance Ihat 1~e
Authority s financial records are complele, azc.rate a~d re'ab'e and were effective

tnraughe /i the financial yea’.
» Tre firancial stateme~is aczura‘ely relec! 1ne Authonity's accoJnting and othe*
records
. L]

-\\ o= : N
NN _ FOMENTRY I
Jorol Milles Gmﬂ@

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER THE BOARD
Dalad this 21 day o¢ August 2019
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2018
$

Income
User charges - Sales 10,238,964
Investment income 248 883
Total Income 10,487,847
Expenses
Employee costs 4,368,239
Materials, contracts & other expenses 4512 534
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 1,490,169
Total Expenses 10,370,942
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 116,905
Net gain (loss) on disposal or revaluation of assets 47,130
Net Surplus / (Deficit) 164,035
Other Comprehensive Income
Changes in revaluation surplus ;
Total Other Comprehensive Income p
Total Comprehensive Income 164,035

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2019

2018
ASSETS Notes $
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents 5 9,796,520
Trade & Other Receivables 5 850,275
Inventories 5 896,377

Total Current Assets

11,543,172

Non-Current Assets

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment 7 36,404 152
Other Non-current Assets 6 569,152
Total Non-current Assets 36,973,304
TOTAL ASSETS 48,516,476
LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Trade & Other Payables 8 2,307,824
Provisions 8 533,701

Total Current Liabilities 2,841,626
Non-Current Liabilities

Provisions 8
Total Non-current Liabilities

14,631,636
14,631,636

TOTAL LIABILITIES 17,473,161
Net Assets 31,043 31 5
EQUITY

Contributed Equity 48,702
Accumulated Surplus 7,684 666
Asset Revaluation Reserve 8 23,227,097
Other Reserves 9 82 850
Total Authority Equity 31|043|31 5

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

2018

Cash Flows from Operating Activities $
Receipts

Operating Receipts 10,086,718

Investment Receipts 248 883
Payments

Operating Payments to Suppliers & Employees (8,200,434)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Operating Activities 2,135,167
Cashflow from Investing Activities

Sale of Replaced Assets 98,499
Payments

Expenditure on Renewal/Replacement of Assets (2,555,834)

Expenditure on New/Upgraded assets (518,874)
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Investing Activities (2,976,209)
Cashflow from Financing Activities
Net Cash provided by (or used in) Financing Activities -
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash Held (841,042)

Cash & Cash Equivalents at beginning of period
Cash & Cash Equivalents at end of period

10,637,562
9,796,520

The above statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying Notes and Significant Accounting Policies
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the financial report are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

The financial report covers Centennial Park Cemetery Authority (“the Authority”) as an individual entity and
regional subsidiary in South Australia under the Local Government Act.

The Authority is a regional subsidiary under the Local Government Act 1999 jointly controlled by the City of
Mitcham and the City of Unley.

1 Basis of Preparation

1.1 Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards
as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting
Standards Board, Interpretations and relevant South Australian legislation.

The financial report was authorised for issue by certificate under regulation 14 of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

1.2 Historical Cost Convention
Except where stated below, these financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the historical
cost convention.

1.3 Critical Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates and requires management to exercise judgement in applying the
Authority’'s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements are specifically referred to in the
relevant sections of these Notes.

The Board evaluates estimates and judgments incorporated into the financial report based on historical
knowledge and best available current information. Estimates assume a reasonable expectation of future
events and are based on current trends and economic data, obtained both externally and within the Authority.
1.4 Rounding

All amounts in the financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

2 The Reporting Entity

The Centennial Park Cemetery Authority is established under the SA Local Government Act 1999 and has its
principal place of business at 760 Goodwood Road, Pasadena_

The principal activities relating to the Authonty’s functions are:

Provision of cremation, cemetery, chapel services and memorial garden facilities.
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Cont Note 1

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3  Income recognition

Income is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Income is recognised when
the Authority obtains control over the assets comprising the income, or when the amount due constitutes an
enforceable debt, whichever first occurs.

All revenue is recognised when the transaction is completed. Cremation, bunal interment and monumental
permit fees are recognised when the service is performed. Plaque and base sales are recognised when
payment is received. Cemetery and memorial interment right fees are regarded as the sale of the right of
interment to the purchaser. The transaction is considered complete once the right of interment is granted and
does not constitute a rental agreement. Interest revenue is recognised on a proportional basis taking into
account the interest rates applicable to the financial assets.

4 Cash, Cash Equivalents and other Financial Instruments

Cash Assets include all amounts readily convertible to cash on hand at the Authority’'s option with an
insignificant risk of changes in value with a maturity of twelve months or less from the date of acquisition.

All receivables are reviewed as at the reporting date and adequate allowance made for amounts the receipt of
which is considered doubtful. As at 30" June 2019 there were no doubtful debts (2018: $0.00).

All financial instruments are recognised at fair value at the date of recognition. A detailed statement of the
accounting policies applied to financial instruments forms part of Note 11.

5 Inventories

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Costs are assigned on a specific
identification basis and include costs and appropriate overheads if any.

6 Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

6.1 Initial Recognition

All assets are initially recognised at cost Cost is determined as the fair value of the assels given as
consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including architects' fees and engineering design fees
and all other costs incurred. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration, cost is determined
as fair value at the date of acquisition.

Capital works still in progress at balance date are recognised as other non-cument assets and transferred to
infrastructure, property, plant & equipment when completed and ready for use.

6.2 Materiality
The current policy is to expense all capital items less than $1,000.

6.3 Subsequent Recognition

Certain asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not matenally different
from fair value. Significant uncertainties exist in the estimation of fair value for a number of asset classes
including land, buildings and other structures and infrastructure. Further detail of these uncertainties and of
existing valuations, methods and valuers are provided at Note 7.

6.4 Depreciation of Non-Current Assets
Other than land, all infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically

depreciated over their useful ives on a straight-line basis which, in the opinion of the Authority, best reflects
the consumption of the service potential embodied in those assels.
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ContNote 1

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Major depreciation penods for each class of asset are shown below. Depreciation periods for infrastructure
assets have been estimated based on the best information available to the Authority, but appropriate records
covering the entire life cycle of some of these assets are not available, and extreme care should be used in
interpreting financial information based on these estimates.

6.5 Impairment
Assets whose future economic benefits are not dependent on the ability to generate cash flows, and where
the future economic benefits would be replaced if the Authonty were deprived thereof, are not subject to
impairment testing.

Assets that are subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount (which is the higher of the
present value of future cash outflows or value in use).

Where an asset that has been revalued is subsequently impaired, the impairment is first offset against such
amount as stands to the credit of that class of assets in the Asset Revaluation Reserve, any excess being
recognised as an expense.

Land used for cemetery purpose is zoned Institutional and subject to legislative restrictions and considered to
be impaired.

7 Payables

7.1 Goods & Services

Creditors are amounts due to external parties for the supply of goods and services and are recognised as
liabilities when the goods and services are received. Creditors are nomally paid within 30 days after the
month of invoice. No interest is payable on these amounts.

7.2 Payments Received in Advance & Deposits
Amounts received from external parties in advance of service delivery are recognised as liabilities until the
service is delivered, or the amount is refunded as the case may be.

8 Employee Benefits

8.1 Salaries, Wages & Compensated Absences

Liabilities for employees’ entitiements to salares, wages and compensated absences expected to be paid or
settled within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll based oncosts)
measured in accordance with AASB 119.

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in respect of

services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using government
guaranteed securities rates with similar maturity terms._
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Cont Note 1

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Present values are calculated using the 10 year government bond rate — weighted average of 2.20% (2018:
2.20%)

No accrual is made for sick leave as the Authonty experience indicates that, on average, sick leave taken in
each reporting period is less than the entitiement accruing in that period, and this expenence is expected to
recur in future reporting periods. The Authority does not make payment for untaken sick leave, except when a
staff member leaves and within 13 weeks of having done so, is engaged by an entity covered by the Local
Government Act (SA) 1999

8.2 Superannuation

The Authority makes employer superannuation contnbutions in respect of its employees to Statewide
Superannuation Scheme (the Scheme), and other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the
“choice of fund” legislation. The Scheme has two types of membership, each of which is funded differently,
Details are included in Note 16.

9 Leases

Lease arrangements have been accounted for in accordance with Australian Accounting Standard AASB 117.
Lease payments are charged to expense over the lease term.

10 GST Implications

In accordance with UIG Abstract 1031 “Accounting for the Goods & Services Tax” Receivables and Credilors
include GST receivable and payable. Except in relation to input taxed activities, revenues and operating
expenditures exclude GST receivable and payable. Non-current assets and capital expenditures include GST
net of any recoupment. Amounts included in the Statement of Cash Flows are disclosed on a gross basis.

Revenues, expenses and assels are recognised net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST), except
where the amount of GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office (ATQ). In these

circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the item of
expense.

11 Comparative Information

Comparative information has been reclassified to be consistent with the current year disclosure of equivalent
information in accordance with AASB 101.

12  Future Upkeep Provision

Interment Rights are issued for varying terms from 25 years up to and including perpetuity. Interment Rights
can be extended for a minimum of five year increments. Interment Right holders have an expectation that the
Park environs will be maintained to an appropnate standard for the interment right period. The Authority
considers this to be a constructive obligation.

In accordance with AASB 137 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets" a provision is
recognised when there is a legal or constructive obligation as a result of a past event and it is probable that a
future sacrifice of economic benefits will be required and that outflow can be reliably measured.

There was no change made to the Future Upkeep Provision for the 2018/19 financial year.

The 2019/20 financial year will see a significant change to the Future Upkeep Provision due to the application
of new accounting standards as per note 1.15.
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ContNote 1

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

13 Payments to Constituent Councils

A Liability Guarantee fee of $626,000 was paid to the Constituent Councils (2018 Liability Guarantee Fee
($616,047).

14 Income Tax

Centennial Park is exempt from Income Tax by virtue of it satisfying the provisions of section 24AR of the
Income Tax Assessment Act 1936 so as to constitute a State/Temitory body.

15 New Accounting Standards

Certain new accounting standards and UIG interpretations have been published that are not mandatory for the
30 June 2019 reporting period and have not been used in preparing these reports.

AASBY Financial Instruments — Disclosures
AASB9 Financial Instruments

AASB15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
AASB16 Leases

AASB1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities

The Authority is of the view that other than AASB 15 and AASB 16, none of the above new standards or
interpretations will affect any of the amounts recognised in the financial statements, but that they may impact
certain information otherwise disclosed.

The Authornty has reviewed the introduction of AASB 15 and AASB 16 and have determined that the
application of AASB 16 will have a matenal impact to the revenue of the Authonty from the 2019/20 financial
year. It is estimated that the impact to revenue will be a deferred amount of approximately $869,000.
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 2 - INCOME

2018
Notes $
USER CHARGES - SALES

Cremation 1,553477
Memorial 1,884 068
Burial 4,792 866
Chapel Fees 1,369,391
Sundry Income

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on Investments
Local Government Finance Authority
Banks & Other
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 3 - EXPENSES

2018
Notes $
EMPLOYEE COSTS
Salaries and Wages 3,657,127
Employee leave expense 315,392
Superannuation - defined contribution plan contributions 16 371,990
Workers' Compensation Insurance 106,287
Less: Capitalised and distributed costs EB?,SS?!
Total Operating Employee Costs —aE
Total Number of Employees 51
(Full time equivalent at end of reporting period)
MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
- Auditing the financial reports 16,500
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 16,500
Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses
Contractors 656,580
Energy 273,346
Insurance 83,878
Maintenance 590,589
Legal Expenses 38,155
Parts, accessories & consumables 1,716,776
Professional services 277,413
Sundry 243,250
Individually Significant ltems
Liability Guarantee 616,047
Subtotal - Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses 4,496,034
451253
INDNVIDUALLY SIGNIFICANT ITEMS
Liability Guarantee Fee 616,047
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Cont Note 3

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 3 - EXPENSES (CONT)

2018
$

DEPRECIATION, AMORTISATION & IMPAIRMENT
Depreciation
Buildings & Other Structures 282,481
Infrastructure 740,249
Plant & Equipment 305,164
Motor Vehicle 162,275

1 ,_G_ﬂ(lﬂﬁi
Amortisation
Trademarks

1,490,169
Note: —

Theré is no Impairment that affects the Statement of Comprehensive Income.
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 4 - ASSET DISPOSAL & FAIR VALUE ADJUSTMENTS

m 2018
Notes - $ $

INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Assets Renewed or Directly Replaced

Proceeds from disposal 77,071 08,499
Less: Carrying amount of assets sold 'ﬂ*g 51,369
Gain (Loss) on Disposal I?,ﬁﬁ
Net Gain (Loss) on Disposal or Revaluation of Assets Ia] I 47130

—
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 5 - CURRENT ASSETS

2018
$

CASH & CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash on Hand and at Bank 201,089
Deposits at Call 1,095,431
Short Term Deposits & Bills, etc 8,500,000

9,796,520
TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Debtors - General 680,094
Prepayments & Other Receivables 170,181
Total 850,276
INVENTORIES
Stores & Materials 5939
Trading Stock 890438

—_—
896,377
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 6 - NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2019 2018
Notes $ $
OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Capital Works-in-Progress m 569,152
Trademarks ! §|0_m:

495,086 569,162
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

1 Valuation of Assets

2 Fair Value Measurement

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various Accounting Standards for recognition
and measurement requirements for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a “level” in
the fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1:  Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Authority can access at
measurement date.

Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly.

Level 3:  Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).
Classifications are reviewed at each reporting date and transfers between levels are determined based on a reassessment
of the lowest level of input that is significant to fair value measurement.

Valuation techniques used to derive Level 2 and Level 3 fair values recognised in the financial statements

The following table sets out the valuation techniques used to measure fair value within Level 2, including a
description of the significant inputs used.

Sale price comparison approach. Sales prices of comparable land in a
similar location are adjusted for differences in key attributes such as
land size. The valuation model is based on price per square metre.

The following table sets out the valuation techniques used to measure fair value within Level 3, including a
description of the significant inputs used.

Depreciated replacement cost being the cumrent cost to construct the
Buildings & Other Structures asset (or its modern engineering equivalent) less an allowance for
depreciation that would have accumulated since original construction.
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Cont Note 7

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

Building & Other Structures and Infrastructure shown in fair value hierarchy level 2 and 3 were revalued as at
30 April 2017 by Martin Burns, Senior Commercial Valuer — Certified Practicing Valuer of Liquid Pacific.
Subsequent additions at cost have been disclosed in the respective fair value hierarchy on the basis that cost
is a material representation of fair value.

Land for cemetery purposes is zoned Institutonal and i1s considered a restricted asset. The valuation of the
Land was based on sales of similarly zoned land which prohibit development.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of land, buildings, mprovements, plant, machinery
and contents are credited to a revaluation reserve in equity. Decreases that offset previous increases of the
same asset class are charged against far value reserves directly in equity, all other decreases are charged to
the income statement.

3 Land & Land Improvements

Estimated future costs of reinstatement of land, capitalised in accordance with AASB 116.16(c), are reviewed
annually (see Note 1) and depreciated over the estimated remaining life of the relevant asset.

Land available for burials and memorials is a restricted asset as the Authority has issued interment rights to
third parties for perpetuity and the site must be maintained for the term of the interment right.

4 Buildings & Other Structures

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

The cost of assets constructed within the Authornty includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing
costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and vanable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred

5 Infrastructure

Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the
asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset.

The cost of assets constructed within the Authorty includes the cost of materials, direct labour, borrowing
costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and varniable overheads.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’'s camying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

Authority and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to
the income statement during the financial period in which they are incurred.
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Cont Note 7

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 7 - INFRASTRUCTURE, PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

6 Plant, Furniture & Equipment

Plant and equipment is carried at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

The camrying amount of plant and equipment is reviewed annually to ensure it is not in excess of the
recoverable amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net

cash flows that will be received from the asset’s employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net
cash flows have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

7 Motor Vehicles

Motor vehicles are measured on the cost basis less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses..

The carrying amount of motor vehicles is reviewed annually to ensure it is not in excess of the recoverable
amount from these assets. The recoverable amount is assessed on the basis of the expected net cash flows
that will be received from the asset's employment and subsequent disposal. The expected net cash flows
have been discounted to their present values in determining recoverable amounts.

8  Capitalisation Thresholds

All items where the purchase price is less than $1,000 excluding GST are expensed.

9 Estimated Useful Lives

The range of useful lives for the classes of assets is shown below:

Plant, Furniture & Equipment | Plant & Equipment | 2.5 to 10 years

Motor Vehicles | 410 10 years _
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 8 - LIABILITIES

2018
H

TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES Notes Cument Non-current
Goods & Services 488,788 -
Payments Received in Advance 742 236 -
Accrued expenses - Employee Entitlements 164 257 -
Accrued expenses - Other 668,460 -
Other 244,083 -

2,307,824 -
PROVISIONS

Employee entitlements (including oncosts) 533,701 69,636

Heritage Monuments Restoration - 36,000
Future Upkeep Provision 1.12 - 14,526,000
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 9 - RESERVES

Net Increments
ASSET REVALUATION RESERVE 01-Jul-18 (Decrements) Transfers 30-Jun-19

Land

Buildings & Other Structures
Infrastructure

Total Asset Revaluation Reserve 23,227,097 - 23,227,097

Comparatives

Transtersto  Transfers from 30-Jun-19

01-Jul-18 b R

OTHER RESERVES

EM M Kay
Recycled Metals Charitable Reserve

Total Other Reserves ! 116,334
Comparatives

PURPOSES OF RESERVES

Asset Revaluation Reserve

The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements arising from changes in fair value of non-current
assets(less any subsequent imparment losses, where applicable)

E M M Kay Reserve

A reserve has been recognised for a bequest received from the estale of a deceased interred at the Park to maintain the site.
The Board has resolved that the expenses incurred on an annual basis maintaining the site will be charged against the
reserve. Interest accrued from the reserve will be absorbed in general operating revenue to offset the administration of the
same. During Financial Year 2015/16 the interment night for E M M Kay was converted to perpetuity and costs offset against
the reserve.

Recycled Metals Charitable Reserve
Funds received from the recycling of metal plaques have been directed to a reserve 1o be used for philanthropic and
charitable purposes.

Contributed Equity Reserve
Equity contributed from City of Mitcham and City of Uniey.
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 10 - RECONCILIATION TO CASH FLOW STATEMENT

2018
$
(a) Reconciliation of Cash
Total cash & equivalent assets 9,796,520
Balances per Cash Flow Statement 9,796,520
(b) Reconciliation of Change in Net Assets to Cash
from Operating Activities
Net Surplus (Deficit) 164,035
Non-cash items in Income Statement
Depreciation, amortisation & impairment 1,490,169
Net Increase (decrease) in unpaid employee benefits 101,148
Net (Gain) Loss on Disposals 47,130
1,708,222
Add (Less): Changes in Net Current Assets
Net (increase) decrease in receivables (173,836)
Net (increase) decrease in inventories (198,933)
Net (increase) decrease in other cument assets 21,590
Net increase (decrease) in trade & other payables 154 167
Net increase (decrease) in other provisions 570,477
Net increase (decrease) in other liabilities 53,480

Net Cash provided by (or used in) operations 2,135,167

(¢} Financing Arrangements

Unrestricted access was available at balance date to the following lines of credit

Bank Overdrafts 50,000 50,000
Corporate Credit Cards 30,000 30,000

The bank overdraft facilities may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 11 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Recognised Financial Instruments

Accounting Policy: Carried at nominal values less any allowance for
doubtful debts. An allowance for doubtful debts is recognised (and re-
assessed annually) when collection in full is no longer probable.

Terms & conditions: Unsecured, and do not bear interest.

Carrying amount: Approximates fair value (after deduction of any

allowance).

H S S H H 5
Cash Assets 1,113,151 8,600,000 - - 9,713,151 9,713,151
Recelvables 652,701 - - - 652,701 652,701

"
.
.

‘IlE

Payables - 1,920,705 1,920,705

Financial s [ $ [ $ $
Cash Assets 1,296,520 8,500,000 - - 9,796,520 9,796,520
Receivables 680,094 - - - 680,094 680,094

E‘

Payables
Current Borrowings

1,475,107 1,475,107

Page 257 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Item 2.3 - Attachment 6 - Centennial Park Cemetery Authority General Purpose Financial Statements for 2018-19

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 11 - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Net Fair Value
All carrying values approximate fair value for all recognised financial instruments. There is no recognised market
for the financial assets of the Authority.

Risk Exposures

Credit Risk represents the loss that would be recognised if counterparties fail to perform as contracted.

The maximum credit risk on financial assets of the Authority is the carrying amount, net of any allowance

for doubtful debts. There are Authority investments made with the SA Local Government Finance Authority
and are guaranteed by the SA Govermnment. Except as detailed in notes 5 & 6 in relation to individual classes
of receivables, exposure is concentrated within the Authority’'s boundarnies, and there is no material exposure
to any individual debtor.

Market Risk is the risk that fair values of financial assets will fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.
All of the Authority's financial assets are denominated in Australian dollars and are not traded on any market,
and hence neither market risk nor currency nsk apply.

Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Authonty will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations with financial liabilities.
In accordance with the model Treasury Management Policy (LGA Information Paper 15), liabilities have a range
of matunty dates.

Interest Rate Risk is the risk that future cash flows will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates.

Most of the Authority's financial instruments - both assets and liabilities are at fixed rates. Any such variations
in future cash flows will not be matenal in effect on either the Authority incomes or expenditures.
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 12 - COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial
statements as liabilities:

Buildings & Other Structures 498,720
Infrastructure 232,100
Plant & Equipment 58,866
789,686
These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year 727,579 789,686
Later than one year and not later than 5 years - -
Later than 5 years -
789,686
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 13 - FINANCIAL INDICATORS

The following indicators have been calculated in accordance with the procedures set out in Information Paper

9 - Local Government Financial Indicators prepared as part of the LGA Financial Sustainability Program for
the Local Government Association of South Australia.

Operating Surplus Ratio

Operating Surplus

204,114
Total Operating Revenue 0972790 %% 1.56% 2.60%
This ratio expresses the operating surplus as a percenfage of total operating revenue.
Net Financial Liabilities Ratio
Net Financial Liabilities 6,768,247
“Total Operating Revenue 10,972, o1.68% 86.09% s1.o1%
Net Financial Liabilities are defined as total liabilities less financial asseis. These are expressed as a percenlage
of total operating revenue.
Asset Renewal Funding Ratio
Net Asset Renewals - 1,453,878
“Depreciation and amortisation

1504475 91.18% 105.40% 51.84%

Net asset renewals expenditure is defined as net capital expenditure on the renewal and replacement of existing assets,
and excludes new capital expenditure on the acquisition of additional assets.

Page 260 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Iltem 2.3 - Attachment 6 - Centennial Park Cemetery Authority General Purpose Financial Statements for 2018-19

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 14 - UNIFORM PRESENTATION OF FINANCES

The following is a high level summary of both operating and capital investment activities of the Authority
prepared on a uniform and consistent basis.

All Councils in South Australia voluntarily have agreed to summarise annual budgets and long-term
financial plans on the same basis.

The arrangements ensure that all Councils provide a common ‘core’ of financial information, which enables
meaningful comparisons of each Council's finances.

The Authority has provided this information for the purpose of consolidation by the two constituent

Councils.
2018
$
Income 10,487 847
less Expenses (10,370,942)
Operating Surplus / (Deficit) 116,905
less Net Outlays on Existing Assets
Capital Expenditure on Renewal and Replacement of Existing
Aanals (2,555,834)
add Depreciation, Amortisation and Impairment 1,490,169
add Proceeds from Sale of Replaced Assets 98,499
(967,166)
less Net Outlays on New and Upgraded Assets
Capital Expenditure on New and Upgraded Assets (518,874)
IB“,!'M!
Net Lending / (Borrowing) for Financial Year (1,369,135)
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 15 - OPERATING LEASES

2019 2018

Lease payment commitments of the Authority

The Authority has entered into non-cancellable operating leases for vanous items of
computer equipment.

No lease imposes any additional restrictions on the Authority in relation to additional
debt or further leasing.

Leases in relation to computer and office equipment permit the Authority, at expiry
of the lease, to elect to re-lease, return or acquire the equipment leased.

No lease contains any escalation clause.

Commitment under non-cancellable operating leases that have not been recognised
in the financial statemements are as follows:

Not later than one year 58,195
Later than one year and not later than 5 years 169 585
Later than 5 years - -
Total I i -
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 16 - SUPERANNUATION

The Authority makes employer superannuation contributions in respect of its employees to Statewide Super
(formery Local Government Superannuation Scheme). There are two types of membership, each of which is
funded differently. Permanent and contract employees of the South Australian Local Government sector with
Salarylink benefits prior to 24 November 2009 have the option to contribute to the Accumulation section
and/or Salarylink. All other employees (including casuals) have all contributions allocated to the Accumulation
section.

Accumulation only Members

Accumulation only members receive both employer and employee contributions on a progressive basis.
Employer contributions are based on a fixed percentage of ordinary time earnings in accordance with
superannuation guarantee legislation (9.50% in 2018/19; 9. 50% in 2017/18). No further liability accrues to the
Council as the superannuation benefits accruing to employees are represented by their share of the net
assets of the Fund.

Salarylink (Defined Benefit Fund) Members

Salarylink is a defined benefit scheme where the benefit payable is based on a formula determined by the
member's contribution rate, number of years and level of contribution and final average salary. Council makes
employer contnbutions to Salarylink as determined by the Fund’s Trustee based on advice from the
appointed Actuary. The rate is currently 6.3% (6.3% in 2017/18) of “superannuation” salary.

In addition, the Authority makes a separate contribution of 3% of ordinary ime eamings for Salarylink
members to their Accumulation account. Employees also make member contributions to the Salarylink
section of the Fund. As such, assets accumulate in the Salarylink section of the Fund to meet the member's
benefits, as defined in the Trust Deed, as they accrue.

The Salarylink section is a multi-employer sponsored plan. As the Salarylink section's assets and liabilities
are pooled and are not allocated by each employer, and retain membership of the Fund, the Actuary is
unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs between employers. As provided by AASB 119.32(b),
the Authority does not use defined benefit accounting for these contributions.

The most recent actuarial investigation was conducted by the Fund's actuary, Louise Campbell, FIAA, of
Willie Towers Watson as at 30 June 2017. The Trustee has determined that the current funding
arrangements are adequate for the expected Salarylink liabiliies. However, future financial and economic
circumstances may require changes to the Authority’s contribution rates at some future time.

Contributions to Other Superannuation Schemes

The Authonty also makes contnbutions to other superannuation schemes selected by employees under the
“choice of fund” legislation. All such schemes are of the accumulation type, where the superannuation
benefits accruing to the employee are represented by their share of the net assets of the scheme, and no
further liability attaches to the Authority.
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 17 - CONTINGENCIES & ASSETS/LIABILITIES
NOT RECOGNISED IN BALANCE SHEET

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Balance Sheet but
knowledge of those items is considered relevant to user of the financial report in making and
evaluating decisions about the allocation of scarce resources.

1. CONTINGENT LIABILITY
The Authority has contingent liabilities with respect to the redemption of unused interment
rights. The Burial and Cremation Act 2013 mandates the refund of unexercised interment
rights at current prices less a provision for administration, maintenance and establishment
costs; the calculation is determined in the regulations. The contingent liability as at the
30th June 2019is $11,973,510. An actual liability will only arise if a claim is made by
existing interment right holders in the future. It is considered that the likelihood of future
claims arising which could have a significant impact on Centennial Park is remote.

Total unused interment rights account for approximately 6.89% of 47,439 burial interment
nghts currently issued.

Total unused interment rights account for approximately 7.94% of 39,369 memorial
interment rights currently issued.

Once an interment or placement of a monument has occurred an interment right cannot be
redeemed.

2. BANK OVERDRAFT
The Authority has a bank overdraft facility of $50,000
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 18 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Transactions with Key Management Personnel
The Key Mangement Personnel of the Authonty includes the Board, CEO and senior managers
In all, 17 persons were paid the following total compensation.

Salaries, allowances & other short term benefits

Amounts paid as direct reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of the Authority have not
been included above.

No key management personnel or parties related to them had any transactions dunng the
year on terms more favourable than those available to the general public.

Transactions with Council Entities
The Authority's Constituent Councils are:
The City of Mitcham
The City of Unley

Councils have influence on the financial and strategic operational decisions of the Authority
given their equal Board member representation.

No one Member Council individually has control over these decisions.

During the year Liability Guarantee payments were made to the two Consituent Councils to
the total value of $626,000 (2017/18 $616,047).

Page 265 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



Item 2.3 - Attachment 6 - Centennial Park Cemetery Authority General Purpose Financial Statements for 2018-19

CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

NOTES TO AND FORMING PART OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

NOTE 19 - FUTURE COMMITMENTS

An arrangement is available to the public whereby any service currently offered by the Authority is
capable of being prepaid.

Some funds were paid to Funeral Plan Management Pty Ltd with income to the Authorty being
recorded only when the service has been provided. Funds under management by Funeral Plan
Management Pty Ltd at 30 June 2019 total $724,384 (2018 $756,620). From 1* December 2014
pre-paid products were no longer paid to Funeral Plan Management Pty Lid.

Note 20 - SEGMENT REPORTING

The Authonty operates in one business and geographical segment being burnials, cremations and
memonals within South Australia.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS OF THE CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

We have audited the financial report of the Centennial Park Cemetery Authority (the Authority), which comprises the
Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2019, the Statement of Comprehensive Income, the Statements of Changes in
Equity, the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies, and other explanatory information and the Certification of Financial Statements.

In our opinion, the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Centennial Park Cemetery
Authority as at 30 June 2019, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1999, Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 and the Australian Accounting
Standards (including Australian Accounting Interpretations).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Australian Auditing Standards. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described as in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section of our report. We are
independent of the Authority in accordance with the ethical requirements of the Accounting Professional and Ethical
Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to our audit of the
financial report in Australia. We have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information other than the Financial Report and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Authority is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the
Authority’s annual report for the year ended 30 June 2019, but does not include the financial report and our auditor’s report
thereon. Our opinion on the financial report does not cover the other information and accordingly we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon, In connection with our audit of the financial report, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial report
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.
We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibility for the Financial Report

The Authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the finandal report in accordance with Australian
Accounting Standards and the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations
2011, The Authority’s responsibility includes establishing and maintaining internal control relevant to preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report so that it is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial report, the Authority is responsible for assessing the Authority’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless

management either intends to liquidate the entity or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Authority’s financial reporting process.

Liability limited by a scheme approved under Professional Standard Legislation

—
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Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that the audit conducted in accordance with the Australian
Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

*  |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

¢ QObtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
internal control.

¢ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by those charged with governance.

¢ (Conclude on the appropriateness of the Authority’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the ability to continue as a going concern. If we condude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial report or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Centennial Park
Cemetery Authority to cease to continue as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report, including the disclosures, and
whether the financial report represents the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

DEAN NEWBERY & PARTNERS
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS

SAMANTHA CRETEN
PARTNER

Signed on the 9" day of September 2019,
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide
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CENTENNIAL PARK CEMETERY AUTHORITY

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FORTHE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

Te 1=¢ besl of 2w khcw'edyu and bube’. we conlim *hal. for the purpose of the aucil o
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] O
Janet Yiller Arzanda ':'worln
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHAIR OF THE AUDIT & RISK
MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE
Dated misd 1 day of August 2019
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Auditor’s Independence Declaration under Section 22 of the Local Government
(Financial Management) Regulations 2011 to the Centennial Park Cemetery

Authority

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of the Centennial Park Cemetery Authority for
the year ended 30 June 2019, | have maintained my independence in accordance with the
requirements of APES 110 - Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants, Section 290, published by
the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011.

SAMANTHA CRETEN
PARTNER

Signed on the 9™ day of September 2019,
at 214 Melbourne Street, North Adelaide, South Australia 5006
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks
Stormwater Board

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED
30 June 2019
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Restated
2019 2018
Notes 3 $

INCOME
Contributions 2 618,195 160,000
Investment Income 2 15,826 -
Total Income 634,021 160,000
EXPENSES
Employee costs 3 234 663 125,670
Materials, contracts & other expenses 3 181,510 38,278
Depreciation 3 2,180 -
Finance costs 3 192 -
Total Expenses 418,545 163,948
OPERATING SURPLUS / (DEFICIT) 215476 (3,948)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 215,476 (3,948)

The accompanying Notes form part of these financial statements
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 30 JUNE 2019
Restated
2019 2018
Notes $ $

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalents - 3,966,683 -
Trade and Other Receivables - 2,024,173 -
Total Current Assets 5,990,856 -
Non-Current Assets
Property, Plant and Equipment 5 3,209,193 249,189
Total Non-current Assets 3,209,193 249,189
Total Assets 9,200,049 249,189
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Trade and Other Payables 6 3,052,742 6,267
Employee Benefits 6 6,500 -
Total Current Liabilities 3,059,242 6,267
Total Liabilities 3,059,242 6,267
NET ASSETS 6,140,807 242,922
EQUITY
Contributed Equity 8 5,929,279 246,870
Accumulated surplus 7 211,528 (3,948)
TOTAL EQUITY 6,140,807 242,922

The accompanying Notes form part of these financial statements
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Capital
Contributions of Accumulated TOTAL
Councils Surplus
Notes ] S

2018
Balance at the beginning of the year 7 - - -
Deficit for the year <restated> - (3,948) (3,948)
Capital Contributions of Councils <restated> 9 246,870 - 246,870
Balance at the end of year <restated> 246,870 (3,948) 242922
2019
Balance beginning of the year <restated> 7 246,870 (3,948) 242 922
Surplus for the year - 215,476 215,476
Capital Contributions of Councils 9 5,682,409 - 5,682,409
Balance at the end of year 5,029,279 211,528 6,140,807

The accompanying Notes form part of these financial statements
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Notes

Cash from operating activities
Operating receipts from constituent councils
Receipts from interest

Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers

Net cash provided from operating activities

Cash from investing activities
Expenditure on new / upgraded assets

Net cash provided from / (used in) investing activities

Cash from financing activities
Contributions from constituent councils

Net cash provided from investing activities

Net increase in cash held
Cash at beginning of financial year

Cash at end of financial year

Restated
2019 2018
$ $
1,246,839 160,000
15,634 -
(228,163) -
(171,597) (157,681)
(330,942) -
531,771 2,319
(223,324) (249,189)
(223,324) (249,189)
3,658,236 246,870
3,658,236 246,870
3,966,683 -
3,966,683 -

The accompanying Notes form part of these financial statements
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 1 - Statement of Significant Accounting Policies

This general purpose financial report has been prepared in accordance with Australian equivalents to
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as they apply to not-for-profit entities, other
authoritative pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board (AASB), Urgent Issues
Group Interpretations (UIGs) and relevant South Australian legislation.

The Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board (the Board) is a Local Government Regional
Subsidiary established under Section 43 of and Schedule 2 to the Local Government Act 1999. The
Regional Subsidiary is under the control of City of Adelaide, City of Burnside, City of Unley, City of
Mitcham and City of West Torrens.

The Board was established by a Gazettal dated 27 February 2018. The Board has been established to
implement the construction and maintenance of infrastructure and other measures for the purposes of a
stormwater management plan prepared by the constituent councils and approved by the Stormwater
Management Authority.

Australian Accounting Standards set out accounting policies that the AASB has concluded would result
in financial statements containing relevant and reliable information about transactions, events and
conditions to which they apply. Matenal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial
statements are presented below and have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise.

The financial statements, except for the cash flow information, have been prepared on an accruals basis
and are based on historical costs, modified, where applicable, by the measurement at fair value of
selected noncurrent assets, financial assets and financial liabilities. The amounts presented in the
financial statements have been rounded to the nearest dollar.

The AASB has issued a number of new and amended Accounting Standards that have mandatory
application dates, some of which are relevant to the Board. The amended pronouncements adopted and
amended pronouncements that have been decided not to be early adopted are set out below:

Adoption of amended standards

AASB 9 Financial Instruments

AASB 9 Financial Instruments establishes principles to account for and report financial assets

and financial liabilities and introduces a new approach to accounting for hedges together with

a new approach to accounting for impairment of financial assets. The standard has a mandatory
application date for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2018. This is not expected to
materially impact the financial statements.

Accounting Standards issued but not effective

AASB 16 Leases (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019)

AASB 16 Leases removes the cumrent distinction between operating and finance leases and requires
recognition of a right-to-use asset and a financial hability to pay rentals, resulting in the recognition of
tenancy leases on the balance sheet. The only exemptions from these requirements are short-term and
low-value leases. The income statement will also be affected, as operating expenses are reclassified as
interest expense and depreciation expense, affecting EBITDA performance metrics. The new standard
requires more extensive qualitative and quantitative disclosures. The standard has a mandatory
application date for financial years commencing on or after 1 January 2019. This is not expected to
materially impact the financial statemenis.
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2019)

AASB 15 Revenue from contracts with customers applied to all contracts with customers, except for
contracts covered by other standards. The standard stipulates how and when revenue is recorded,
requiring the Board to provide users of financial statements with more information and reporting
disclosures. The core principle is the recognition of revenue for the transfer of goods or services, at a
value that reflects the consideration to which the Board expects to be entitled, in return for meeting
performance obligations. This is not expected to materially impact the financial statements.

AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-profit Entities (applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2019)

The standard applies to transactions of not-for-profit (NFP) entities where the consideration to acquire an
asset is significantly less than fair value principally to enable the entity to further its objectives. It also
requires government agencies to recognise income for volunteer services received if the fair value of
those services can be measured reliably and the services would have been purchased if they had not
been donated. This is consistent with current practice under AASB 1004 Contributions, however AASB
1058 supersedes the existing requirements in AASB 1004 . This is not expected to materially impact the
financial statements.

The financial statements were authonsed for issue on by the members of the Board.

(a) Comparatives
When required by Accounting Standards, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform to changes
in presentation for the current financial year.

Following clarification in the current financial year of the entity's policy on capital contributions by
constituent councils amounts previously recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income have
been reclassified to contributed equity.

(b) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at-call with banks, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

(c) Income taxes
The activities of the Board are exempt from taxation under the Income Tax Assessment Act
1997.

(d) Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST, except where the amount of
GST incurred is not recoverable from the Australian Taxation Office. In these circumstances the GST is
recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of an item of the expense.
Receivables and payables in the statement of financial position are shown inclusive of GST.
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(e) Impairment FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

At the end of each reporting period, the Board assesses whether there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired. The assessment will consider both external and internal sources of information. If such
an indication exists, an impairment test is camed out on the asset by comparnng the recoverable amount
of that asset, being the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its value-in-use, to the
asset's camying amount. Any excess of the asset's carmrying amount over its recoverable amount is
immediately recognised in profit or loss.

Where the future economic benefits of the asset are not pnmarnly dependent upon the asset's ability to
generate net cash inflows and when the entity would, if deprived of the asset, replace its remaining future
economic benefits, value in use is determined as the depreciated replacement cost of an asset where it
is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the Board estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Where an impairment loss on a revalued asset is identified, this is recognised against the revaluation

surplus in respect of the same class of asset to the extent that the impairment loss does not exceed the
amount in the revaluation surplus for that class of asset.

(g) Revenue

Operating revenue from constituent Councils is recognised as income as and when the Board becomes
entitled to receive the funds. This is outlined within the Boards Annual Business Plan which is agreed
with all constituent Councils.

Capital Contributions received from Constituent Councils are recognised as Contnbutions by Owners
directly to equity.

Revenue from the rendering of a service is recognised upon the delivery of the service to the customer.

Interest revenue is recognised using the effective interest method, which for floating rate financial assets
is the rate inherent in the instrument.

All revenue is stated net of the amount of goods and services tax (GST).

(h) Trade and other payables

Accounts payable and other payables represent the liability outstanding at the end of the reporting period
for goods and services received by the Board during the reporting period that remain unpaid. The
balance is recognised as a current liability with the amounts normally paid within 30 days of recognition
of the liability.
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

(i) Trade and other receivables

These include amounts due from ATO and accrued interest on deposits in financial institutions.
Receivables expected to be collected within 12 months of the end of the reporting period are classified
as current assets. All other receivables are classified as non-current assets.

Accounts receivable are initially recognised at fair value and subseguently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less any provision for impairment.

(j) Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Key estimates
Impairment - general

The Board assesses impairment at the end of each reporting period by evaluation of conditions and
events specific to the Board that may be indicative of impairment triggers. Recoverable amounts of
relevant assets are reassessed using value-in-use calculations which incorporate various key
assumptions.

(k) Property Plant and Equipment

All assets are initially recognised at cost. For assets acquired at no cost or for nominal consideration,
cost is determined as fair value at the date of acquisition.

All non-current assets purchased or constructed are capitalised as the expenditure is incurred and

depreciated as soon as the asset is held “ready for use”. Cost is determined as the fair value of the
assets given as consideration plus costs incidental to the acquisition, including architects' fees and
engineering design fees and all other costs incurred.

The cost of non-current assets constructed by the Board includes the cost of all materials used in
construction, direct labour on the project and an appropnate proportion of variable and fixed
overhead.

Materiality

Assets with an economic life in excess of one year are only capitalised where the cost of acquisition
exceeds materiality thresholds established by Board for each type of asset. In determining (and in
annually reviewing) such thresholds, regard is had to the nature of the asset and its estimated service
life.

Examples of capitalisation thresholds applied dunng the year are given below.

Infrastructure — Stormwater $10,000

Subsequent Recognition

All material asset classes are revalued on a regular basis such that the carrying values are not materially
different from fair value. Significant uncerntainties exist in the estimation of fair value of a number of asset
classes including land, buildings and associated structures and infrastructure. All assets are currently
held at cost.
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Depreciation of Non-Current Assets

All infrastructure, property, plant and equipment assets recognised are systematically depreciated over
their useful lives on a straight-line basis which, in the opinion of Board, best reflects the consumption of
the service potential embodied in those assets. Office equipment consists of IT equipment and is
depreciated at 50%.

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values of classes of assets are reviewed annually.
Depreciation periods for infrastructure assets have been estimated based on the best information
available to Board, but appropnate records covering the entire life cycle of these assets are not available,
and extreme care should be used in interpreting financial information based on these estimates.

(I) Employee Benefits

Liabilities for employees’ entitlements to salanes, wages and compensated absences expected to be
paid or settled within 12 months of reporting date are accrued at nominal amounts (including payroll
based oncosts) measured in accordance with AASB 119.

Liabilities for employee benefits not expected to be paid or settled within 12 months are measured as the
present value of the estimated future cash outflows (including payroll based oncosts) to be made in
respect of services provided by employees up to the reporting date. Present values are calculated using
government guaranteed securnties rates with similar maturity terms. The Board does not currently have
any employee benefits expected to be paid or settled beyond 12 months.

No accrual is made for sick leave. The Board does not make payment for untaken sick leave.

Superannuation

All superannuation schemes to which the Board makes contributions on behalf of employees are of the
accumulation type, where the superannuation benefits accruing to the employee are represented by their
share of the net assets of the scheme, and no further hability attaches to the Board.

10
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 2 - INCOME

CONTRIBUTIONS

Operating Contributions

City Of Mitcham

City Of Burnside

City Of West Torrens

The Corporation of the City of Adelaide
Corporation of the City of Unley
Subtotal Operating Contributions

INVESTMENT INCOME
Interest on investments
Banks

Total Income

2019 2018

$ $
123,639 32,000
123,639 32,000
123,639 32,000
123,639 32,000
123,639 32,000
618,195 160,000

15,826 -

15,826 -
634,021 -

In accordance with the Charter of the Brownhill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board Schedule 1,
operating contnbutions are received equally from each of the constituent councils at an agreed rate. The
total value of operating contributions to be received is agreed in the annual business plan prepared by the

Board.

Note 3 - EXPENSES

EMPLOYEE COSTS

Salaries and Wages - Board
Salaries and Wages - Employee
Reimbursements - Board
Superannuation

Workers' Compensation Insurance

Total Number of Employees
(Full time equivalent at end of reporting period)

11

2019 2018
$ $
60,000 125,670
155,595 -
5,207 -
12,619 -
1,242 -
234,663 125,670

1
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 3 - EXPENSES (cont)

2019 2018
MATERIALS, CONTRACTS & OTHER EXPENSES $ $
Prescribed Expenses
Auditor's Remuneration
- Auditing the financial reports 3,870 -
Subtotal - Prescribed Expenses 3,870 -
Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses
Administration 30,360 829
Entertainment & Catering 4,298 90
Contractor & Consultant Services 28,720 17,609
Human Resources 12,800 -
Insurance - Mutual Liability Scheme 52,784 10,500
IT Expenses 7,047 -
Legal Expenses 10,853 3,818
Professional Services 30,532 -
Sundry 246 5,432
Subtotal - Other Materials, Contracts & Expenses 177,640 38,278
181,510 38,278
DEPRECIATION
Office Equipment 2,180 -
Total Depreciation 2,180 -
FINANCE COSTS
Bank Fees 174 -
Interest Charges 18 -
192 -
Total Expenses 418,545 163,948
Note 4 - CURRENT ASSETS
2019 2018
$ $
CASH & CASH EQUIVALENT
Cash at Bank 3,966,683 -
3,966,683 -
TRADE & OTHER RECEIVABLES
Contributions Recivable 1,938,650 -
GST Refundable 85,523 -
2,024,173 -

12
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 5 - NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Work In Progress

South Parklands Stormwater - design (Victoria Park)
Hawthorn Reserve Creek upgrade

Upper Brown Hill Creek - Area 1 Creek Works
Upper Brown Hill Creek - Area 1 Land Acquisition
Discretionary Projects

Total Work In Progress

Office Equipment

Office Equipment

Less: Accumulated Depreciation on Office Equipment
Total Office Equipment

Total Property Plant and Equipment

Property Plant and Equipment Reconciliation

Office
Work In Equipme
Progress | nt
$ $
Opening Balance 249,189 -
Additions 2,957,691 4,493
Disposals - -
Depreciation - (2,180)
CIosIng_; Balance 3,206,880 2,313

Note 6 - CURRENT LIABILITIES

TRADE & OTHER PAYABLES
Trade Payables

Credit Card

PAYG Payable

Superannuation Payable

Subtotal Trade & Other Payables

13
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2019 2018
$ $
183,335 80,060
2,884,985 169,129
101,195 -
30,065 -
7,300 -
3,206,880 249,189
4,493 -
(2,180) -
2,313 .
3,209,193 249,189
2019 2018
$ $
3,045,090 6,267
257 -
5,665 -
1,730 -
3,052,742 6,267
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 6 - CURRENT LIABILITIES (Cont)

2019 2018
$ $
EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
Annual Leave Provision 6,500 -
Subtotal Employee Benefits 6,500 -
Note 7 - ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
2019 2018
$ $
Opening Balance (3,948) -
Surplus for the year 215,476 (3,948)
Balance at year end 211,528 (3,948)
Note 8 - CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS OF COUNCILS
2019 2018
$ $
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS OF COUNCILS
City Of Mitcham 592,928 24 687
City Of Burnside 711,513 29,624
City Of West Torrens 2,905,346 120,966
The Corporation of the City of Adelaide 474,343 19,750
Corporation of the City of Unley 1,245,149 51,843
Subtotal Contributions by owner 5,929,279 246,870
Capital Contributions Movement Table
Opening Balance Received 2019 Closing Blanace
City Of Mitcham 24 687 568,241 592,928
City Of Burnside 29,624 681,889 711,513
City Of West Torrens 120,966 2,784 380 2,905,346
The Corporation of the City of Adelaide 19,750 454,593 474,343
Corporation of the City of Unley 951,843 1,193,306 1,245,149
246,870 5,682,409 5,929,279

Capital contribtions of Councils are capital payments received from Constituent Councils for
investing in Infrastructure. The rates of contribution are agreed in the Charter of the Board.

14
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 9 - Reconciliation of cash flow

Net surplus for the year

Changes in assets and liabilities
Decrease/(Increase) in Trade and Other Receivables
Increase in Depreciation

Increase/(Decrease) in Trade and Other payables
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Benefits

Net cash provided from operating activities

15

2019 2018
$ $
215,476 (3,948)
2,180 -
307,615 6,267
6,500 -
531,771 2,319
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Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

Note 10 - Financial Instruments

Details of the significant accounting policies and methods adopted including the criteria for the
recognition, the basis of measurement and the basis on which income and expenses are
recognised with respect to each class of financial asset, financial liability and equity instrument are
disclosed in Note 1 Summary of Significant Account Policies.

Categorisation of Financial instruments

2019 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying

Note Amount Value Amount Fair Value
[Financial liabilities $ $ $ $
Trade and other Payables 6 3,045,347 3,045,090 6,267 6,267
Total Financial liabilities 3,045,347 3,045,090 6,267 6,267
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 3,966,683 3,966,683 - -
Total Financial Assets 3,966,683 3,966,683 - -

Receivable and payable amounts disclosed exclude amounts relating to statutory receivables and
payables.

The fair values disclosed in the table above have been based on cash and cash equivalents, trade
and other receivables and trade and other payables short term instruments in a nature whose
carrying value is equal to fair value.

I Credit Risk
Exposure to credit risk relating to financial assets arises from the potential non-
performance by counterparties of contract obligation that could lead to a financial loss to
the Board.

Credit risk is managed through maintaining procedures to regularly monitor the financial stability of

customers and counterparties and by investing surplus funds in financial institutions that maintain a
high credit rating.

There is no collateral held by the Board securing trade and other receivables.

ii. Liquidity Risk
Liquidity risk arises from the possibility that the Board might accounting difficulty in settling
its debts or otherwise meeting its obligations related to financial liabilities. The Board

manages this risk by preparing and monitoring budgets, only investing surplus cash with
major financial institutions and proactively monitoring the recovery of unpaid debts.

No assets have been pledged as security for any liabilities.

15
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

iii. Market Risk

Exposure to interest rate risk arises on financial liabilities recognised at the end of the
reporting period whereby a future change in interest rates will affect future cash flows.

The following table illustrates sensitives to the Board's exposure to changes in interest

rates.
019 18
Weight
ed % Weighted
Averag Carrying Average Carrying
e Value Interest rate Value
Financial liabilities $ $ $ $
Trade and other Payables 0% 3,045,347 0% 6,267
Financial Assets
Cash at bank 0% 3,966,683 0% -

Note 11 - Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

At 30 June 2019, the Board is unaware of any liability, contingent or otherwise, which has not
already been recorded elsewhere in this financial report.

Note 12 - Commitments for Expenditure
Capital Commitments

Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not recognised in the financial
statements as liabilities

2019 2018

$ $
Infrastructure 169,000 -
Total Capital Commitments 169,000 -

These expenditures are payable:
Not later than one year 169,000 -
Later than one year and not later than 5 years - -

Later than 5 years - -
169,000 -

16
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Note 13 - Events after the end of the reporting period

Since the reporting date, there have been no events that would materially impact on the contents
of this report.

Note 14 - Economic Dependence

Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board is dependent on its constituent councils and
other funding bodies for the majority of its revenue used to achieve its objectives. At the date of
this report, the Board believe that the Member Councils and other bodies will continue to support
the Board.

Note 15 - Related Party Transactions

The total remuneration paid to key management personnel of Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks
Stormwater Board Incorporated during the year was as follows:

Key management personnel include the former Project Director employed by the City of Unley, the
current Project Director employed by the Board and the members of the Board appointed under
section 112 of the Local Government Act 1999.

The key management personnel were paid the following total compensation:

Salaries and wages $221,714.00

Other related parties includes close family members of key management personnel and entities
that are controlled or jointly controlled by those key management personnel individually or
collectively with their close family members. There were no transactions with other related parties.

Note 16 - Board details

The registered office of the Board and principal place of business is:
Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board
PO Box 124 Unley SA 5061

17
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ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

CERTIFICATION OF AUDITOR INDEPENDENCE

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we confirm that, for the purpose of the audit of Brown Hill
and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board for the year ended 30 June 2019, the Board's Auditor,
................................ , has maintained its independence in accordance with the requirements of

the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management) Regulations
2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22(3) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 .

Name: Judith Choate Name:
Position: Chairperson Position:
Date: Date:

18
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STATEMENT BY AUDITOR

| confirm that, for the audit of the financial statements of Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks
Stormwater Board for the year ended 30 June 2019, | have maintained my independence in
accordance with the requirements of APES 110 — Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants,
Section 290, published by the Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board, in accordance
with the Local Government Act 1999 and the Local Government (Financial Management)
Regulations 2011 made under that Act.

This statement is prepared in accordance with the requirements of Regulation 22 (5) Local
Government (Financial Management) Regulations 2011 .

Name of Auditor Luke Williams
Name of Audit Firm Galpins Accountants, Auditors & Business Consultants

Date:

19
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CERTIFICATION OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

In the opinion of the committee, the Financial Statements comprising of the Statement of Financial
Performance, Statement of Financial Position, Statement of Changes in Members' Funds,
Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to the Financial Statements:

1. Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of Brown Hill and
Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board as at 30 June 2019 and its performance
for the year ended on that date in accordance with Accounting Standards
and other mandatory professional reporting requirements.

2. At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that
Brown Hill and Keswick Creeks Stormwater Board will be able to pay its
debts as and when they fall due.

The Board is responsible for the reliability, accuracy and completeness of the accounting records
and the disclosure of all material and relevant information.

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the Board and is signed for and on behalf
of the Board by:

Name: Judith Choate Name:
Position: Chairperson Position:
Date: Date:

17

Page 294 of Audit Committee Meeting Agenda 11 November 2019



INFORMATION REPORT

REPORT TITLE: PROCUREMENT SAVINGS IDENTIFIED

ITEM NUMBER: 2.4

DATE OF MEETING: 11 NOVEMBER 2019

AUTHOR: MICK WETHERALL

JOB TITLE: ACTING MANAGER FINANCE &
PROCUREMENT

ATTACHMENTS: NIL

1. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This report provides information to the Audit Committee of new tenders
and contracts which have achieved savings/cost avoidances of more than
$20k and overruns of more than $50k in the first quarter of the 2019/2020
financial year. Information is also provided on any procurement
dispensations for the same period.

2. RECOMMENDATION

That:

1. The report be received.

3. RELEVANT CORE STRATEGIES/POLICIES

4. Civic Leadership
4.2 Council provides best value services to the community.

4. BACKGROUND

The Audit Committee requested that information on tenders and contract
cost savings/cost avoidances in excess of $20,000 and cost overruns in
excess of $50,000, resulting from procurement activities, be reported to
the Committee on a quarterly basis.
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DISCUSSION

Procurement Savings/Cost Avoidances and Overruns for Quarter 4,
2018/2019

Since the last report the following major contracts have been completed:

Thames Street Drainage Upgrade

The budget estimate for this project was $170,000. The tender was
awarded for a competitive price of $106,000, with a saving of some
$64,000. The highest tender received for the project was $281,000
highlighting the excellent savings achieved.

King William Road Seating

This was for the manufacture and supply of twelve bench seats and twelve
single seats for the King William Road upgrade. The budget was $90,000
and a contract was secured for $76,000 with additional services added for
a further $8,000. The highest tender received was for $106,000 with cost
avoidance being $30,000.

Recruitment of Four Finance Officers

The budget for the procurement process was $48,000. The contract was
secured for $20,000 together with a number of value adds, representing a
saving of $28,000. The highest quote was $53,000, providing a possible
cost avoidance of $33,000.

Ride on Reel Mowers (x2)

The budget estimate for the replacement of these pieces of equipment
was $130,000. The winning price was negotiated down to $110,000, with a
saving of $20,000. Cost avoidance of $46,000 based upon the highest
tendered price of $176,000.

Re-construction of Roundabouts in Cambridge Terrace at Wattle and
Fisher Streets

The budget for these works was estimated at $168,000. The actual
construction costs were $281,000. The shortfall of $113,000 has
subsequently been made up with available grant funding.

Dispensation from Procurement Policy

In circumstances where the Council enters into purchasing contracts, other
than those resulting from a competitive process, the Council will record the
reasons for entering into those contracts. Where the amount is over $100K
the purchase must be reported to the Council’s Audit Committee.

There were no dispensations in excess of $100K granted during this
quarter. The following items were inadvertently omitted from the previous
reporting period and are listed below:
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Project Responsible | Supplier | Approved Value $ | Reason for Dispensation
Officer by

LED Manager Gerard CEO 580,000 | The only supplier of
Street Strategic Lighting lighting products
Light Assets approved by SAPN.
Upgrade
Kenilworth | Asset Fulton CEO 270,000 | Timing constraint with
Road & Project Hogan intersection buildouts. Fulton
Leah Street | Engineer Hogan already undertaking
- Kerbing bitumen works. Compatibility
Works and integration of kerb

buildouts and road
construction is sought.
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